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Chairman's Statement

Dear Shareholders,

The global business environment was rife with significant uncertainty
and challenges in 2018. Nevertheless, Wanda Hotel Development
Limited (the “Company”) managed to implement a number of strategic
initiatives under our business plan and deliver good results. Business
transformation was progressing well. The Company, as always, seeks
to develop its business by adhering to the strategic goal of achieving
long-term development of the Company and sustainable growth of
shareholders’ value in the long run.

The acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Wanda Hotel
Management (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Wanda Hotel Management HK”)
from Wanda Commercial Properties (Hong Kong) Co., Limited (“Wanda
HK”) was completed in December 2018. The acquisition of Wanda Hotel
Management HK enables the Company to achieve scale and market
leadership in the hospitality and tourism industry and should create value
for our shareholders in the future, and is in line with the Group’s plan to
adopt an asset-light business model gradually.

At the same time, consistent with the strategy to deleverage and
monetize prior investments, the Company disposed of three overseas
property projects in London, Gold Coast and Sydney in Australia during
2018. The disposals of these overseas property projects significantly
strengthened the financial profile of the Group and placed the Group
in an excellent position to pursue investment opportunities that would
further enhance shareholder value.

Looking ahead in 2019, with support from our parent company, Dalian
Wanda Commercial Management Group Co., Ltd. (“DWCM”), the Group
will steadily proceed with business transformation and seek to identify
attractive investment opportunities with the objective of expanding our
revenue sources as well as improving our profitability, thus laying a solid
foundation for its long-term development.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, directors, management team,
staff, business partners and all others who have rendered their unfailing
support and contribution to the Group.

Ding Benxi
Chairman

20 March 2019
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Joint Venture Platform in the Americas and Chicago Project,
America

In July 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda HK to
establish a joint venture platform in the Americas with a total capital
commitment of HK$10 billion, in which the Company holds 60% and
Wanda HK holds 40%, for the joint acquisition and development of
suitable real property projects in the Americas.

On the same day, through Wanda Chicago Real Estate LLC (“Wanda
Chicago”), a wholly owned subsidiary of this joint venture platform, the
Company and Wanda HK entered into (i) the formation and contribution
agreement with Magellan Parcel C/D LLC (“Magellan”) and Lakeshore
East LLC; and (ii) the operating agreement with Magellan to jointly
develop a project in Chicago (“Chicago Project”) in which Wanda
Chicago holds 90% and Magellan holds 10% of such joint venture.

The planned total gross floor area of the Chicago Project is
approximately 176,000 sg.m.. It is located in the heart of Chicago,
adjacent to Millennium Park and the Chicago CBD. Many of the well-
known destinations are within walking distance of the project, such
as the Theatre District, Museum Campus and Michigan Avenue. This
is the last unbuilt site within the Lakeshore East area with excellent
geographic location. The project is expected to be developed into a
361-meter, 101-storey five-star hotel (with over 200 rooms) and high-
end condominiums, which will be Chicago’s third highest building
upon completion and a new landmark in Chicago. Pre-sale of high-
end condominiums portion commenced in September 2015, and
approximately 56% of total saleable area were pre-sold up to the end
of December 2018. The Chicago Project obtained planning approvals
and completed settlement in April 2016. Construction work commenced
in August 2016 and is progressed as planned. The development of the
Chicago Project is expected to be completed in 2020.

Business Review

E 3 ACI]

EMRESEFAEREBZMEIAR

R-ZE—MFLH  ARBEEEEBNIL—
BMEERE  ARIBAENEIEZI00EET
MEMKERETE  ERARRREESRE
DR BLEEFE60%K%40% s - ATE
FEMRESHAE 2 ER B KEETRER
B -

FIH ARRHEBEREBERAZEETAN
% & [} B 2 ")Wanda Chicago Real Estate
LLC([B&EZ e ) - () 2 Magellan Parcel C/
DLLC ([Magellan]) } Lakeshore East LLCET
ST KR E R 0 R (i) B2 Magellan 7] 37 iE &
ek - LRI AZ IS —EEE ([Z
MEFIER ) - EPEEZ IS & Magellan 75 5l
BFHEZAEREI0% & 10% e o

CMFEE 2HEBREMBENR1768T
FOK - HEZ IS mRROME - BT EAER
MZIETCBD + F1Ta BBl - SRR -
BERAEEZRGH - RRNEEERERN
BE— AR - wIBUE DB - BB
2l — 5361k 101 BEE R E RS (T8
FTEEHEC0ERRE) RSB ABIER &
REBRBENTE=ZSEE KBS INETH
HiE - SREABMSIEN -E—HFNARA
BE  HEZT-N\F+ZAK  BRiEE
#156% < A SHEMRETE - ZHFEEERZ
T RNFHAREHREBOE - TRRE - BER
ZTE-ARFNARBERIR - BATERAE
HIAF o ZNFEE BN ZE_EFTRHA
& o

BERERRERDA 5
—E-N\FEH



Business Review

E 3 ACI]

Guilin Project, the PRC

In February 2014, the Company acquired a piece of state-owned land
in Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, the PRC with Wanda
HK in the form of a joint venture, in which the Company holds 51% and
Wanda HK holds 49%. The project (“Guilin Project”) is located in the
central area of Guilin High-tech Zone, with planned total gross floor area
of approximately 330,000 sg.m., including 153,000 sg.m. of shopping
mall and 177,000 sg.m. of retail, residential and other properties for sale.

The construction work of the Guilin Project has completed and the
shopping mall opened in September 2015. With satisfactory commercial
leases and operating conditions, the shopping mall has become a
supreme landmark business centre in Guilin. For the sales of properties,
approximately 94% of the saleable area were sold up to the end of
December 2018, and properties were being delivered to owners since
December 2015.

Hengli City, Fuzhou, the PRC

The total gross floor area of Hengli City is approximately 242,000 sg.m..
The project is a residential, office and retail complex located in Fuzhou,
the PRC. As of 31 December 2018, the floor area of its remaining
properties was approximately 76,417 sq.m., and the majority of the
office and car park units were leased. The commercial portion was fully
leased to Wangfujing Department Store, offering stable cash flow in
rental income for the Company. During 2018, revenue of approximately
HK$7.3 million was generated from the sales of a residential unit and car
park units.
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Wanda Hotel Management HK

On 31 December 2018, the Company completed its acquisition of all the
issued shares in Wanda Hotel Management HK for a total consideration
of HK$878 million. Wanda Hotel Management HK therefore became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company after the completion of the
acquisition. The Company’s acquisition of Wanda Hotel Management
HK is considered to be a business combination under common control
as their respective intermediate holding companies are both under the
common control of Wanda HK. As such, the consolidated financial
statements for 2017 and the financial position as at 31 December 2017
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements have been restated
as a result of the adoption of merger accounting as if the business
combinations had occurred from the beginning of the earliest financial
years presented.

Wanda Hotel Management HK is a leading hotel services provider in
China and is principally engaged in the business of development and
operation of hotels, hotel management services, hotel design, hotel
construction management and related consultancy and other ancillary
businesses. Wanda Hotel Management HK currently manages hotels
under the following brands: —

° Wanda Reign

o Wanda Vista

° Wanda Realm

° Wanda Jin

° Wanda Moments

As at 31 December 2018, Wanda Hotel Management HK managed a
total of 69 hotels in operation and was contracted to manage 49 hotels
which have not yet commenced operation and were under construction.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During 2018, the Company continued to execute its deleveraging
strategy with satisfactory progress. To this end, the Group has
completed disposal of certain property projects.

Business Review
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Business Review

E 3 ACI]

London Project, UK

In September 2013, the Company acquired a project (“‘London Project”)
at 1 Nine ElIms Lane, London SW8 5NQ, in the UK with Wanda HK in the
form of a joint venture, in which the Company holds 60% and Wanda HK
holds 40%.

On 16 January 2018, the Company as vendor and R&F Properties (HK)
Company Limited (“R&F”) as purchaser entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in respect of the proposed disposal of 60% of the entire
issued share capital of Wanda International Real Estate Investment Co.
Limited (“Wanda International”), the holding company of the London
Project, and the Company, R&F and Wanda International entered into
a shareholder loan repayment agreement, pursuant to which R&F
agreed to repay the debt for and on behalf of Wanda International to the
Company. The disposal was completed on 6 July 2018.

Joint Venture Platform in Australia, Gold Coast Project and
Sydney Project, Australia

In August 2014, the Company formed a joint venture with Wanda HK to
establish a joint venture platform in Australia, namely Wanda Australia
Real Estate Investment Co., Limited (“Wanda Australia RE”), with a
total capital commitment of HK$12.5 billion, in which the Company
holds 60% and Wanda HK holds 40%, for the joint acquisition and
development of suitable real property projects in Australia.

On the same day, through Wanda Australia Commercial Properties
Pty Ltd. (“Wanda Australia CP”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Wanda
Australia RE, the Company and Wanda HK entered into the subscription
and shareholders agreement with KiEEEHEE R SERMNHEBRA
7] Dalian Wanda Commercial Management Group Co., Ltd* (previously
known as Dalian Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd.) (‘DWCM”),
Mr. Riyu Li and Ms. Fengliu Wu (collectively, “Li”, who were shareholders
of Ridong (Gold Coast) Development Pty Ltd. (“Gold Coast Project
Company”) and the Gold Coast Project Company. After completion of
the subscription under the agreement, the Gold Coast Project Company
is now owned by Wanda Australia CP and Li, as to 55% and 45%
respectively, for the joint development of the a project in the Gold Coast
(“Gold Coast Project”).

* For identification propose only
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After the acquisition of the Gold Coast Project, on 23 January 2015
and 4 March 2015, the Company and Wanda HK, through Wanda
One Sydney Pty Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wanda Australia
CP, entered into agreements to acquire the second premium project in
Australia (“Sydney Project”, together with the Gold Coast Project, the
“Australia Projects”).

On 18 January 2018, Wanda Australia RE, AWH Investment Group Pty
Ltd. (“AWH”) and Wanda Australia CP entered into a master agreement
in respect of the proposed disposal of the entire equity interest in Wanda
Australia CP and repayment of debt in instalments by Wanda Australia
CP to Wanda Australia RE. The proposed disposal was approved in the
special general meeting convened on 12 March 2018. The disposal of
the two projects was completed on 18 May 2018.

OUTLOOK

After the disposal of the London Project, Gold Coast Project, Sydney
Project, and the injection of Wanda Hotel Management HK, the Group’s
strategies under the business transformation are to focus on fee based
businesses, to improve cash flow, and to reduce leverage with the
following initiatives:

1. To continue to monetize prior property investments. The
remaining Chicago Project is still under construction. Potential
disposal at current market level can help realize value of the
investments and reduce current and future indebtedness (for
project construction loans purpose);

2. To capitalize on the hotel management expertise of the Company
(i.e. hotel design, construction and operation management, etc.)
where the Group can potentially develop into an industry leader
in the segment in China; and

3. To improve the operating efficiency of Hengli City and the Guilin
Project through cost control and targeted marketing, while at the
same time evaluate future plans regarding these two assets.

The Group will continue to prudently seek profitable investment
opportunities, further expand the Group’s sources of revenue, enhance
the Group’s profitability and maximize return for its shareholders.

Business Review
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Financial Review

Br %51 RR

On 31 December 2018, the Company completed its acquisition of all the
issued shares in Wanda Hotel Management HK for a total consideration
of HK$878 million. Wanda Hotel Management HK therefore became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company after the completion of the
acquisition. The Company’s acquisition of Wanda Hotel Management
HK is considered to be a business combination under common control
as their respective intermediate holding companies are both under the
common control of Wanda HK. As such, the consolidated financial
statements for 2017 and the financial position as at 31 December 2017
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements have been restated
as a result of the adoption of merger accounting as if the business
combination had occurred from the beginning of the earliest financial
years presented. Likewise, the financial figures of 2017 in the following
paragraphs are also restated.

REVENUE AND RESULTS

The Group’s revenue from its continuing operations for 2018 was
approximately HK$1,019.8 million (2017: HK$656.4 million). The increase
in revenue was mainly due to i) increase in property sales revenue of
approximately HK$153.8 million primarily from remaining inventories
at the Guilin Project; ii) increase in hotel design and construction
management fee income of approximately HK$140 million for new hotel
projects contracted to be managed by Wanda Hotel Management HK;
and iii) increase of hotel management fee income of approximately
HK$60.6 million mainly driven by newly opened hotels and better
operating performance achieved by the hotels under management.

There was no revenue from discontinued operations for 2018 (2017:
HK$0.9 million) since certain rental agreements in the disposed Sydney
Project expired in 2017 and the old property structure of the Sydney
Project was demolished in 2017.
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Financial Review

B ¥5 2l B8

As a result of the disposals of the London Project and Australia Projects ARNERICEBERMER « URNAEE
and the injection of Wanda Hotel Management HK following the — ¥(BEEEIASFERE (H8)  KEEBE
Group’s business transformation, the Group has identified four business T UE RS ES - AR BB RERE B AT

segments to better reflect its current operating businesses as below: —

1. Property sales;

2. Property leasing and management;

ZRERY  —

1. E S

2. MEHENER

3. Development and operation of hotels, hotel management services; 3. R - EEREEEERS 0 &

and

4, Hotel design and construction management services.

4. BIRRRET MR E R -

The following table illustrates the segment revenue and results from TRAFAS - N\FAREEFELCEEB 2D

continuing operations of the Group during 2018: — BlMas R AR - —
2018 2017 Changes
—g-N% —E—tf 29
Segment Segment Segment Segment Segment Segment
revenue profit/(loss) revenue profit/(loss) revenue profit/(loss)
AEER, PEEF/ PEER],
an:il 6 (B8) 2 EEs (B#) 7 #iEs (E5#8)
$000 $000 $000 $:000 $:000 $000
Tr T Fr Fr Fr Fir
Property sales MEIHE 187,522 (3,250) 33,748 (130,852) 153,774 127,602
Property leasingand ~ #M1EHAEREE
management 188,685 (284,670) 179,692 130,724 8,993 (415,394)
Development and BEERE  2ER
operation of hotels, BIEERRHB
hotel management
services 429,181 236,810 368,546 186,921 60,635 49,889
Hotel design and BIERET R
construction BREE R
management services 214,403 116,680 74,394 44,453 140,009 72,227
Total @5t 1,019,791 65,570 656,380 231,246 363,411 (165,676)

The measure used for reporting segment results is profit/(loss) before ARREDEEE AR EMN AR S,

tax.

(E18) »
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Financial Review

Br %51 RR

In 2018, the segment profit from the continuing operations of the
Group decreased to approximately HK$65.6 million from approximately
HK$231.2 million in 2017.

The property sales segment reported loss of approximately HK$3.3
million (2017: loss of HK$130.9 million). The segment loss decrease was
mainly due to an increase in property sales revenue from the remaining
inventories at the Guilin Project.

The property leasing and management segment reported loss of
approximately HK$284.7 million (2017: profit of HK$130.7 million).
The loss in this segment in 2018 could be principally attributed to a
net valuation loss of investment properties in Hengli City project of
approximately HK$430.8 million.

The development and operation of hotels, hotel management services
segment reported profit of approximately HK$236.8 million (2017:
HK$186.9 million), representing an increase of HK$49.9 million from
2017. The increase was mainly due to the opening of new hotels and
better overall performance of hotels under management.

The hotel design and construction management services segment
significantly increased its profit to approximately HK$116.7 million in
2018 from HK$44.5 million in 2017, mainly driven by an increase in new
hotel projects contracted to be managed by Wanda Hotel Management
HK.

During the year, the Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders of
the Company amounted to approximately HK$766.7 million (2017: loss
of HK$285.4 million) with the breakdown set out as below: —
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—ZT—t4 : §5IE 130,900,000 7T) c D
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284,700,000 7T( = & — £ F: & ¥
130,700,000/87T) © P E = F—/\F 2 B8
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EE49430,800,000 ST 2L ©

BEER 2ERBEEERSE S LR
2 & F %) /236,800,000 T( —Z & — +
£ 186,900,000 70 ) * =T —HF M
49,900,000/ 7T © #EINTHEERAINBIEFZE
KT EIR G 2 BEERRIBIRFAFTE -

BIERFT RS TERBO T2 &FHE
— -+ F #944,500,000 8 L KIEIE NE ZF
—\F#J116,700,000 870 * TEXEEHE
(BA)FIHNBEE 2 NB/EEBIZ M) o

REENRN  AEBZ AR AIERGE ARG
F#) A 766,700,000/8 T ( —E—+F : 8
285,400,000 7T) © A BMET|NT « —

2018 2017 Changes
—E-N\E —T—+F )
$’°000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fir Fir

Profit/(loss) attributable to RAEIE=SFE ARG

the equity holders of the Company:  J&#l,/ (&) :

— From continuing operations — REBELEET 23,168 (57,637) 80,805
— From discontinued operations — RERIEREFE 743,548 (227,801) 971,349
Total #Et 766,716 (285,438) 1,052,154
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Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company from continuing
operations was approximately HK$23.2 million (2017: loss of HK$57.6
million). The increase in profit was mainly attributable to i) increased profit
of approximately HK$153.8 million from property sales segment; ii) a
decrease of finance costs of approximately of HK$80.9 million in 2018
since the Group repaid interest-bearing loans from financial institutions
and loans from an intermediate holding company; iii) increase in revenue
of HK$200.6 million contributed by Wanda Hotel Management HK; iv)
an income tax credit of approximately HK$17.9 million as compared to
income tax charge of approximately HK$186.3 million in 2017 as a result
of lower land appreciation tax incurred during the year and reversal of
deferred tax of approximately HK$76 million in 2018; and offset by v) net
valuation loss of investment properties in Hengli City of approximately
HK$430.8 million.

During the year, the Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company from discontinued operations was approximately HK$743.5
million (2017: loss of HK$227.8 million). Such change was mainly
attributable to gains on the disposal of the two projects in Australia and
London Project of approximately HK$473.3 million and HK$442.4 million
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment increased by 69.6% to approximately
HK$640.2 million at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$377.4 million). The increase was mainly attributable to
increase of construction in progress of Chicago Project by approximately
HK$271.2 million in 2018.

FREEHOLD LAND

Freehold land was approximately HK$159.1 million at 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: approximately HK$158.8 million). The
increase was mainly attributable to exchange gain on re-translation of
foreign currency.
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development increased by 65.8% to approximately
HK$3,113.7 million at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
HK$1,878 million). The increase was mainly attributable to increase of
capital expenditure on Chicago Project.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 December 2018, there was no asset classified as held for sale
(31 December 2017: HK$10,277 million), mainly due to the London
Project, Australia Projects were disposed in 2018. Details of the
abovementioned disposals are set out in notes 13 and 38 to the financial
statements.

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had deposits and other receivables
of approximately HK$1,767.9 million (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$28.3 million). The increase in deposits and other receivables was
mainly due to (i) proceeds receivables from the disposal of the London
Project of approximately HK$831.8 million, in which approximately
HK$713 million and HK$118.8 million are expected to be received by
June 2019 and December 2019 respectively; (i) proceeds receivables
from the disposal of the Australia Projects of approximately HK$715.9
million, which is expected to be received by 30 June 2019; and (i) the
deposits of tax amount of HK$187.2 million to Australia tax authority in
relation to the disposal of the Australia Projects, which has been fully
refunded from Australia tax authority in March 2019.

NET ASSETS AND EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded total assets and total
liabilities of approximately HK$12,333.4 million and HK$9,126 million
respectively. The Group had net assets of approximately HK$3,207.4
million as at 31 December 2018 as compared to approximately
HK$3,355.7 million as at 31 December 2017. As at 31 December
2018, the equity attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$2,220.1 million as compared to HK$2,420.5 million
as at 31 December 2017.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$2,746.3 million as at 31 December 2018 as compared with
HK$2,600.9 million as at 31 December 2017. The increase was
mainly due to cash proceeds received from the disposal of London
Project. About 85%, 11% and 4% of the cash and bank balances were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), Great British Pound (“GBP”) and
United States Dollar (“‘USD”) respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the
current ratio, which is the quotient arrived at by dividing current assets
by current liabilities, was 1.26 as compared with 1.14 as at 31 December
2017. The gearing ratio, which is the quotient arrived at by dividing net
debts by the aggregate of net debts and total equity, was 23% as at 31
December 2018 as compared with 53.5% as at 31 December 2017. The
decrease in gearing ratio was mainly attributable to repayment of interest
bearing loans from financial institutions and loans from an intermediate
holding company.

BORROWINGS AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had interest-bearing loans from financial institutions of
approximately HK$1,192.9 million as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: HK$1,814.9 million). The decrease was mainly due to
the repayment of bank loans. These loans were denominated in RMB
and USD. Approximately 3.9% of these loans are repayable within one
year. The rest is repayable after one year.

The Group had other interest-bearing borrowings of approximately
HK$385.6 million as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017:
HK$287.1 million). The above borrowings were obtained from entities
controlled by a former director. These borrowings were denominated in
RMB and HK$. Approximately 3.3% of these borrowings are repayable
within one year. The rest is repayable after one year.
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The Group had interest-bearing loans from an intermediate holding
company of approximately HK$1,380.1 million as at 31 December
2018 (31 December 2017: HK$3,139.6 million). These loans were
denominated in GBP and HKD and were repayable from 2019 to
2023. The Group also had non-interest-bearing loans from the same
intermediate holding company of approximately HK$743.7 million of
which HK$678.3 million and HK$65.4 million were denominated in
USD and Euro (“EUR?”) respectively as at 31 December 2018. The loans
denominated in USD are repayable in 2020 and the loans denominated
in EUR are repayable in 2019.

As the Group continues to explore business opportunities under its
transformation initiatives, different funding venues, including debt,
bank loan and equity, will be considered when and if appropriate. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group’s contracted commitment for capital
expenditure is approximately HK$4,235.9 million (31 December 2017:
HK$12,627.9 million). The decrease was mainly due to disposal of
London Project completed on 6 July 2018.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE
EXPOSURE

The Group’s business is principally conducted in RMB and USD. The
functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC and the United
States of America (the “USA”), are RMB and USD respectively and
they do not have significant monetary assets or liabilities denominated
in currencies other than their respective functional currencies. The
functional currency of the Group’s other subsidiaries is Hong Kong
Dollar. The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through loans
that are denominated in RMB, GBP, USD and EUR respectively. The
Group maintains a conservative approach on foreign exchange exposure
management. During the year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments to hedge foreign currency exposure and the Group did not
have any hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2018.
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During the year, the Group had interest-bearing loans from financial
institutions, third parties and an intermediate holding company.
Accordingly, the Group’s cost of loans was affected by changes in
interest rates. As at 31 December 2018, interest-bearing borrowings
of HK$1,192.9 million, being approximately 40% of the total interest-
bearing borrowings, were on a floating rate basis. The remaining
interest-bearing borrowings of HK$1,765.7 million were on fixed interest
rate basis. During the year, the Group had monitored the suitability and
cost efficiency of hedging instruments and had considered a mix of fixed
and floating rate loans in order to manage interest rate risks. The Group
will prudently consider entering into currency and interest rate hedging
arrangements to minimise such exposures if and when appropriate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged certain of its assets to
financial institutions in the PRC to secure the loans of approximately
HK$1,192.9 million granted by these financial institutions. The aggregate
carrying value of these building held for own use, construction in
progress, freehold land, prepaid land lease payments, investment
properties, properties under development, completed properties held for
sale and restricted bank deposits as at 31 December 2018 amounted
to approximately HK$5.5 million, HK$608.1 million, HK$159.1 million,
HK$16.7 million, HK$850.5 million, HK$3,113.7 million, HK$7.7 million
and HK$4.9 million respectively.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

There are no changes in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had provided guarantees in an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$413.7 million to banks in favour
of its customers in respect of mortgaged loans provided by the banks
to these customers for their purchase of the Group’s properties. Each
of these guarantees would be released upon the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANY

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, there was not
any material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated
company during 2018.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had around 538 full time
employees, who are located in the PRC, Hong Kong and the USA.

During the year, the Group remunerated its employees based on their
performance, experience and the prevailing market salaries. Performance
bonuses were granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
included insurance and medical cover, and subsidized educational and
training programs.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No Director has the right to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Other than the matters outlined elsewhere in this report, there have
been no matters that have occurred subsequent to the reporting date
which have significantly affected, or may significantly affect the Group’s
operations, results or state of affairs.
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Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ding Benxi, aged 64, has been a Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board since July 2013. He has also been an executive
director of DWCM since December 2009 and the chairman of the board
of directors of DWCM since December 2012. He is also a director and
the president of Dalian Wanda Group Co., Ltd. (“Dalian Wanda Group”)
and the chairman of Beijing Wanda Culture Industry Group Co., Ltd
b RBE L EZEEE AR AR (“Wanda Culture”). From December
2009 to December 2012, he was the president of DWCM. Before joining
DWCM in December 2009, Mr. Ding served in various positions of Dalian
Wanda Group, including president, chief executive officer and vice
president.

Mr. Ding completed the correspondence course of Renmin University
of China (FEIARAE) in July 1998. He became a senior engineer of
China State Construction Engineering Corporation (FF B3 4E T2 422 7))
in August 1997.

Mr. Zhang Lin, aged 47, has been a Non-executive Director since
November 2017. He has also been serving as the director of Dalian
Wanda Group since February 2011. Mr. Zhang has concurrently
been acting as the chairman and a director of Wanda Film Holding
Co. Ltd (B =EFRMHBRAF]) (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code : 002739.S2) since November 2006;
the chairman and a director of AMC Entertainment Holdings, Inc. (a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange, stock code: AMC)
from August 2012 to 12 March 2018; the chief executive officer of
Wanda Culture since December 2012; the president of Wanda Culture
since January 2014; the chairman of the board of Infront Holding AG
since July 2015; and the chairman of World Triathlon Corporation since
November 2015. In addition, Mr. Zhang had also been a non-executive
director of DWCM since December 2009 to 29 January 2016. He joined
Dalian Wanda Group in March 2000 and formerly held various positions,
including but not limited to the vice president of Dalian Wanda Group
and the finance director of Dalian Wanda Group and general manager of
project companies in Chengdu, Shenyang and Nanjing respectively. Mr.
Zhang has extensive experience in financial management and operation
management of large property development, property management,
and entertainment corporations, especially in corporate strategy and
investment.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENGREER

Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
(FRALEF £ RE) in July 1994 and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accounting. In January 2012, Mr. Zhang received an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from Beijing University (1t XA E2). Mr.
Zhang is a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a non-practicing member of the China Certified
Tax Agents Association.

Mr. Han Xu, aged 48, has been a Non-executive Director since March
2019, has extensive experience in finance and general management.
From February 2017, Mr. Han has been serving as the Vice President
of Dalian Wanda Group, a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability, and a controlling shareholder of the Company and
is responsible for overseeing all financial operations of Dalian Wanda
Group. Prior to that, since his joining of the Dalian Wanda Group in
2002, Mr. Han served in various roles including General Manager
of Finance Department, General Manager of the Group Financial
Management Center, President Assistant and Senior President Assistant
within the Dalian Wanda Group. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration in Dongbei University of Finance and Economics.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ning Qifeng, aged 53, has been an Executive Director since
November 2017. Mr. Ning has also been the president of Wanda Hotel
Management (Shanghai) Co. Limited (B HEEE(LE)ER AR
since July 2017. Mr. Ning had been a vice president of DWCM from
December 2009 to June 2015 and had been a senior vice president of
DWCM from June 2015 to July 2017. Mr. Ning formerly also served as
a chief vice president of DWCM; a vice president and an assistant to
the president of Dalian Wanda Group; the general manager of Wanda
Hotel Construction Ltd. (& &8 /52 AR A 7)) and the dean of Wanda
Commercial Planning and Research Institute (B3R 25 ).
Mr. Ning has extensive experience in property development and property
management (including hotel development and hotel construction
management).

Mr. Ning obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering from Northwest
Architecture Engineering Institute (FA1LiZEETI220%) in July 1986,
a master’s degree in engineering from Northwest Metallurgical
Construction Institute (Fib)Aa& 255 6) in July 1992 and a Ph.D in
engineering from Tongji University (A A£2) in May 2004,
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Zhiping, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since March 2018. He studied at the China Textile University
(currently known as Donghua University) in Mechanical Engineering
in 1979 and graduated with a master degree in engineering in 1986.
Since 1987, Mr. He has previously served as the assistant to the general
manager of the United Rail Ltd, Shenzhen Branch of China Nonferrous
Metals Company (FEBELERYEE ARE HEERAE), the
assistant to the general manager and vice general manager of Hainan
Sanya Huaya Enterprise Group Corporation (8f =25 B P EEFE N
7)) and a director of China Great Wall Securities, LLC (RHZE5AR
T2 7). He is currently the chairman of the board of directors and
the general manager of China Wall King Holding Co., Ltd (FFB#Z &%

BERERA
& Technology Company Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, stock code: 2357). Mr. He also serves social positions
such as the vice president of the Revolutionary Area Development

7)), and a non-executive director of AviChina Industry

Association of Jiangxi Province, Executive Vice President of Gan General
Chamber of Commerce and the Council of Donghua University.

Mr. Liu Jipeng, aged 63, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since July 2013. He has also been an independent non-
executive director of DWCM from December 2009 to January 2016. Mr.
Liu has 31 years of experience in economic & corporate research. Mr. Liu
has served as the dean of the Business School of the China University
of Political Science and Law (FEIBUAAZ /R ERT) since November
2016; the chief, professor and doctoral tutor of the Capital Research
Centre of the China University of Political Science and Law (R EIE A
KEE KRS R since 2015; legal advisor of State-owned Assets
Supervisory Management Committee of State Council (E#fzEE &
EEEEELZE®) since 2017; the deputy director of the independent
directors committee of China Association for Public Companies (-7
EHARHE) since 2016 and a vice chairman of the China Enterprise
Reform and Development Society (| B{b 324 BRI E) since
2012. Mr. Liu is currently an independent non-executive director of
China Oceanwide Holdings Limited (stock code: 715), whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”), China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., whose shares
are dually listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1988)
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600016), and China
Tonghai International Financial Limited (stock code: 0952), whose shares
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EENGREER

are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, an independent director
of Zhongjin Gold Corporation, Limited (Stock Code: 600489), whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and Chongging
Changan Automobile Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 000625), whose shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Liu also previously served
as an independent director of AVIC Capital Co., Ltd, whose shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600705), from May
2011 to May 2017.

Mr. Liu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in Economics from the
Beijing School of Economics (1t AL £x) in July 1983 and a master’s
degree in Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (F
Fit2RER) in July 1986.

Dr. Xue Yunkui, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director since July 2013. He has also been an independent non-
executive director of DWCM from December 2009 to January 2016. Dr.
Xue has 31 years of experience in accounting research and practice.
He currently serves as the professor in accounting of the Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business (K/T#E£63), and he previously served
as the vice president/professor in accounting of the Shanghai National
Accounting Institute (E/BBEKREEEFT) from 2000 to 2002, the
associate dean/professor in accounting of the School of Accountancy
of the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (/&8 & A 2e
=HE2F%) from 1998 to 2000 and a post-doctorate fellow at the School of
Accountancy of the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics (L&
YEE K B 10T from 1996 to 1998,

Dr. Xue served as an independent director for Shanghai Shentong
Metro Co., Ltd. (L/BRBHEKHBIRAF], a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600834) from 2011 to
2016, and has served as independent director for Shanghai Baosight
Software Co., Ltd. (L/BEEFERHFKHBRRAF], a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600845) since July 2013, for
Dazzle Fashion Co., Ltd. (MiZE kD AR A 7], a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 603587) since September
2013 and for Aeon Life Insurance Company, Ltd. (&4 AS{RE %
R 2 /]) since April 2015, respectively.
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Directors and Senior Management

Dr. Xue graduated with a bachelor’s degree in economics from Sichuan
Finance Institute (79118748 £28%, now renamed as the Southwestern
University of Finance and Economics (FARIEI4E A E2) in July 1984. He
received a Ph.D. from the Southwest Agriculture University (FaEg 22
K now renamed as Southwest University (FiEAZ2)) in June 1995
and completed postdoctorate research in accounting with the Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics (/&8 £ A E2) in July 1999.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Hui Wai Man, Shirley, aged 51, joined the Group in December
2000. She is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is responsible
for the company secretarial affairs of the Group. Ms. Hui has over 20
years of professional experience in public accounting and corporate
finance. She is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She is also a member of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the Hong Kong
Securities Institute.

Mr. Tse Chi Cheung, aged 39, joined the Group in November 2015.
He is the Company’s Deputy Chief Financial Officer and is responsible
for the financial management of the Group. Mr. Tse holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from City University of Hong Kong.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tse had held senior positions in an international accounting
firm and listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Tse has more than 10 years
of experience in financial management, corporate finance and auditing.
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The Directors are pleased to submit the annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company and the Group are property
development, property leasing, property management and investment
holding activities. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2018
is presented in Chairman’s Statement, Business Review and Financial
Review on page 4, pages 5 to 9 and pages 10 to 18 respectively. The
Financial Review also includes an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the financial year ended 31 December 2018 in terms of financial
key performance indicators on page 15. Likely future developments
in the Group’s business are disclosed in Chairman’s Statement and
Qutlook section of Business Review which forms part of this Directors’
Report on page 5 and page 9 respectively. The geographical analysis
of the Group’s revenue and operating profit is set out in note 5 to the
financial statements. The particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since 31 December 2018 (including but not
limited to transactions in relation to subsidiaries) are set out in Business
Review and Financial Review on page 18.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found in
Business Review and note 47 to the financial statements on pages 5
to 9 and pages 282 to 293 respectively, with financial risk management
policies and practices of the Group covered under the aforesaid note 47
to the financial statements.

The Group is committed to the sound performance of its corporate
social responsibilities and believes that a high standard of performance
is very helpful for maintaining sound relationships between corporate
and society as well as promoting staff confidence. The Group is a
keen supporter of environmental protection and takes the protection
of ecological environment and promotion of sustainable development
as its goal. We have introduced eco-friendly measures in our business
of property development, leasing and management. For instance, we
have reduced our carbon emission by implementing green building and
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energy-saving measures. We have also reduced the potential impact
of our business on the ecological environment through proper waste
disposal. Further discussion of environmental, social and governance
matters, covering the Group’s environmental policies and performance is
set out in Corporate Governance Report and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report on pages 48 to 70 and pages 71 to 91 respectively.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with rules and
regulations and the impact of non-compliance with such rules and
regulations on the business. The Group has been allocating system and
staff resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations
and to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators through
effective communications. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with all relevant
rules and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.

The Company strives to achieve corporate sustainability through
providing quality services for our customers and collaborating with our
suppliers. To enhance customer satisfaction and promote a customer-
oriented culture within the Company, we take ‘Customer First’ as one
of our core values. We value feedback from customers and have also
established the mechanism in handling customer service, support and
complaints. We also proactively collaborate with our suppliers and
contractors to deliver quality and sustainable products and services. We
have developed certain requirements in our standard tender documents.
These requirements include regulatory compliance, labour practices,
anti-corruption and other business ethics.

The Group values its employees and encourages its staff to achieve
a good work-life balance. The Group continued to devote resources
to improve staff benefits with a view to improving staff morale as well
as attracting and retaining talents. We have established fair, open and
comprehensive employment policies to attract talent.

The applicable discussion and analysis as cross-referenced above shall
form an integral part of this Directors’ Report.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 100 to 103 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable, stable and continuing dividend policy. The Company’s
dividend policy aims strike a balance between allowing Shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profit and allowing the Company to retain
adequate reserves for business operations and future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider in
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company and applicable laws
and regulations, various factors including (i) the earnings per share of
the Company; (i) the reasonable return in investment of investors and
Shareholders in order to provide incentive to them to continue to support
the Company in its long-term development; (i) the financial conditions
and business plan of the Company; and (iv) the market sentiment and
circumstances. Compliant with the conditions under the dividend policy,
the Board may propose final dividends, interim dividends or special
dividends distribution as the Board considers appropriate based on the
profitability and capital requirements of the Company. The Company
shall review and reassess the dividend policy and its effectiveness on a
regular basis or when necessary.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has made donations of approximately
HK$120,000 in total.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 68.4% of the Group’s total sales in
2018 while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 31.1% of the Group’s total sales in 2018.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers comprised approximately 94.6% of the Group’s
total purchases while the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier was approximately 86.1% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any interest in the five largest suppliers or
customers of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements,
is set out on pages 296 to 297. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the major properties and property interests of the Group
are shown on pages 298 to 300 of the annual report.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme in Hong Kong
and certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll costs to pension schemes operated
by the respective governments. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the pension schemes is to pay the required ongoing
contributions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Lin
Mr. Han Xu
(appointed with effect from 14 March 2019)
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris
(resigned with effect from 13 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors ("INED"):
Mr. He Zhiping
(appointed with effect from 29 March 2018)
Mr. Liu Jipeng
Dr. Xue Yunkui
Mr. Zhang Huagiao
(retired with effect from 30 May 2018)
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In accordance with clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or, if their number is not three or a multiple by three, then the number
nearest one-third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire
in every year shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors on the
same day shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be
determined by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
The Company at any general meeting at which any Directors retire may
fill the vacated offices.

In accordance with code provision A.4.2 in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

All of the directors of the Company have entered into services contracts
with the Company. The term of appointment of Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Liu
Jipeng and Dr. Xue Yunkui is 3 years from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016;
the term of appointment of Mr. Ning Qifeng and Mr. Zhang Lin is 3 years
from 17 November 2017 to 16 November 2020; the term of appointment
of Mr. He Zhiping is 3 years from 29 March 2018 to 28 March 2021; the
term of appointment of Mr. Han Xu is 3 years from 14 March 2019 to
13 March 2022; the term of appointment of Dr. Teng Bing Sheng and
Dr. Chen Yan is 3 years from 21 March 2019 to 20 March 2022; each of
which is renewable automatically for successive terms of one year each
commencing from the date next after the expiry of the then current term,
unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party. None of the above service contracts is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordnance (“SFQ”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), were as follows:

Interests in shares of DWCM (Note 1)

ESCESER

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H8 ' ZARERE
& M RD) ([ 5 R ETE 5G] ]) 5 352 &
ZIREMFE 2 ELMATRERRE EmAF
ERETREFRSHRETA (MRETRI DM
HMEARBINBEYRT EFAFEIHE
ARAKRB R EEBZEE (EEREF MRS
fERBIE XV &E) 2 BB 2 fEas i T

RAEBERXEERN P 2R
(BfaE 1)

Approximate

Long percentage of

position/ the issued

Short Capacity/Nature Interest in share capital

Name of Director position of interest Shares of DWCM of DWCM

HREBE

RREEBE HEER

[GE 3§53 ERITREZ

EEpA "R/ KR B4 EnitE [igvileslrd -5 BMOBES

Mr. Ding Benxi Long Beneficial owner 50,000,000 1.10%
TR TS HE EHEBEAA

Mr. Ning Qifeng Long Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.13%
EHERE e BEmEEA

Mr. Zhang Lin Long Beneficial owner 10,000,000 0.22%
SRR E BHEERA

Mr. Han Xu Long Beneficial owner 1,600,000 0.035%
BBEE HE EHEBEAA

Mr. He Zhiping Long Beneficial owner 25,000,000 0.55%
5T hE e BEmEEA

Notes:

(1) DWCM, being an indirect holding company of the Company, is an
associated company of the Company under Part XV of the SFO. The
calculation is based on the total number of 4,527,347,600 shares in issue
as at 31 December 2018.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which have been notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and chief executive
of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or which have been entered in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or which have been
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company did not have any effective share option scheme during the
year ended and as at 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
neither the Directors nor chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities
of the Company, or had exercised any such right.
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DISCLOSEABLE INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the Company, the

following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the

Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying

shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant

to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO, or were, directly or indirectly,

interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share

capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of

any member of the Group were as follows:

RIBREZ KBS IROIRREA

Wz EmMRR

R-ZE—NFE+-_A=Z+—8 ®ARQFF
H: U TAL(BEZEEARAEFETBRAER
SN R MR D R A RIEE S KBRE
5Bl XV P 336 5B M AN A Rl K 5 2 2
SR E - S E B ok A M AR AT A A
BERTRAEEAMKE AR ZBRREAE L&
= 2 BB A E{E 5% sk A 2 S 80k
BT

Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RAERAF RAEAT
B3 B A6 RE S2RITREZ
BE/EB "R/ KE B Rt B4z RS BHABE DL
Wanda Commercial Long Beneficial owner 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Properties Overseas
Limited
(“Wanda Overseas”)
BENEMEGIINGRLAR A BEmmAA
(I8=8HN )
Wanda Real Estate Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Investments Limited corporation (Note 1)
EEMERERRAA TR N IEHER 2
(ME1)
Wanda HK Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 2)
BERE TR N IEHER 2
(M7E2)
DWCM Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 3)
NEBEMFEERE TR N IEHER 2
(M7E3)
Dalian Wanda Group Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 4)
RNEBEEE TR N IEHER 2
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Interest in Approximate
Long shares and percentage of
position/ underlying the issued share
Short Capacity/Nature shares of capital of
Name position of interest the Company the Company
RAERAF EAR AT
IR 17 K AH A ERITREZ
wE/ LB HR/ KR B RERME [igvileslrd -5 BMYOBE
Dalian Hexing Investment Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
Co., Ltd. corporation (Note 5)
(“Dalian Hexing”)
RNEREIZERR AR HE MREEHER 2
(TREAHE]) (MF7E5)
Mr. Wang Jianlin Long Interest in controlled 3,055,043,100 65.04%
corporation (Note 6)
FREMEE 5=y MREEHER 2 s
(Mt 6)
Mr. Chen Chang Wei Long Beneficial owner 297,460,230 6.33%
(“Mr. Chen”) and held by controlled
corporation (Note 7)
BRRESRE TR BHEEREAK
(MBREAD) LA
BB (H:E7)
Long Interest of spouse 27,683,423 0.59%
(Notes 7 and 8)
e FoiBiEss
(MH5E7 &2 8)
Ms. Chan Sheung Ni Long Beneficial owner 27,683,423 0.59%
PR XN Ge 22+ TR BHEERA
Long Interest of spouse 297,460,230 6.33%
(Note 9)
HE oS Ess (FIEE9)
Ever Good Luck Limited Long Beneficial owner 73,860,230 1.57%
(Note 10)
Ever Good Luck Limited oy EmEAA
(KzE10)
Long Trustee 204,237,800 4.35%
e HEFEA
BERERRERLT 33
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Notes:

34

Wanda Real Estate Investments Limited holds more than one-third of
the issued shares of Wanda Overseas and is therefore deemed to have
an interest in the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which
Wanda Overseas is interested.

Wanda HK holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited and is therefore deemed to have an interest in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company in which Wanda Real
Estate Investments Limited is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi,
being a non-executive Director and Chairman of the Board, is a director of
Wanda HK.

DWCM holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Wanda HK and
is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company in which Wanda HK is deemed to be interested. Mr. Ding
Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Board, is
an executive director and the chairman of the board of directors of DWCM.
Mr. Ning Qifeng, being an Executive Director, was a senior vice president of
DWCM from June 2015 to July 2017.

Dalian Wanda Group holds more than one-third of the issued shares
of DWCM and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which DWCM is deemed to
be interested. Mr. Ding Benxi, being a Non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board, is a director and the president of Dalian Wanda
Group. Mr. Zhang Lin, being a Non-executive Director, is a director of
Dalian Wanda Group.

Dalian Hexing holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Wanda Group and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Wanda Group is
deemed to be interested.

Mr. Wang Jianlin holds more than one-third of the issued shares of Dalian
Hexing and is therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company in which Dalian Hexing is deemed to be
interested.

As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Chen was deemed to have a long position
of 325,143,653 Shares, of which (i) 19,362,200 Shares were beneficially
and legally owned by him, (i) 204,237,800 Shares were held on trust for
him by Ever Good Luck Limited (“Ever Good”), (iii) 73,860,230 Shares were
beneficially owned by Ever Good, and (iv) 27,683,423 Shares were held by
his spouse, Ms. Chan Sheung Ni, as beneficial owner.
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8) Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen.

9) Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is the spouse of Mr. Chen. Ms. Chan Sheung Ni is
therefore deemed to have an interest in the shares of the Company in
which Mr. Chen is interested.

(10) The entire issued share capital of Ever Good Luck Limited is ultimately
owned by Mr. Chen and Mr. Chen is the sole director of Ever Good Luck
Limited. See note (7) in the section headed “Discloseable interest and short
positions of shareholders under the SFO” in this Directors’ Report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Group has conducted the following connected transactions during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Acquisition of Wanda Hotel Management HK

On 26 September 2017, the Company and Wanda HK entered into a
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed
to purchase and Wanda HK agreed to sell the entire equity interest
in Wanda Hotel Management HK at a cash consideration of HK$878
million (subject to downward adjustment). The acquisition was approved
in the special general meeting convened on 8 December 2017 and was
completed on 31 December 2018.

Since Wanda HK is directly and wholly-owned by DWCM, an indirect
holding company and a controlling shareholder and therefore a
connected person of the Company, Wanda HK is an associate of
DWCM and therefore a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules. Wanda Hotel Management HK is a leading hotel
services provider in China and is principally engaged in the business
of hotel management and operation, hotel design, hotel construction
management and related consultancy and other ancillary business, with
comprehensive capabilities in hotel management and operation. The
Company considers that the hotel management and operation business
of Wanda Hotel Management HK are in line with the Group’s business
aspiration and closely related to the existing property development and
management business of the Group. The acquisition serves as further
development and expansion of the existing business of the Group.

Directors’ Report

EFEWRES

©) BRI L REREEZRE

© BRIELRERREEZRE - RWNELLE
IR BN ARB (REEERETHEAER)
2Bt s s

(10)  Ever Good Luck Limited 2 2P & 27T AR f R
SRR - PR % 4 & Ever Good Luck
Limited ZM—EF - AAEEGHREEZ (IR
T)‘é 5 REERGIREERE 2 S RA

B2 —fpEE(7) »
BER S
AEBERBZE_E—\F+_A=+—H1
FEHETUTEER S
WEEERE (B8)

RZE—EFNAZ+AA  ARFREEESR
BRI EE W - Bt - AR RIRBENERE
ERBRBLEBERE (B8 22 5E
I8 4 R (B4 878,000,000 7T (Al A N ) o
WHBER=ZZ—tF+=-AN\BBRANKRRE
FlAEe FESHAYER-_Z—N\F+_A
=+—H5%K -

RRBERSHANR ZBERERA R RIER
BRREEZHXEEERE2ERE - XA
RABRRRZEBEAL BB ETERAE
BERFEEIHMEA  YRRE EWRA
RRARRABZRBEALT - BERE (BE) /T
BB SR ARG e - TEREBEEEN
BEXET  UNBERE  BEERERE - A

WMER N EMMERER  WEEERREEN
ERABHEIMES - ARARRA/EEEE (&

B)ZBEEEEREBEBTEARE X
PRS- WERARKERENEERNMEERHR
BEMAR - ARNESE - P RRLBATE
B2 RBE -

BEBERRERAA 35
—E-N\FEH



Directors' Report

EFEWRES

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has conducted the following continuing connected
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground
and related business (“Kidsland Tenancy Agreement”)

Pursuant to the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement dated 8 June 2015
entered into between Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza Co., Ltd. (“Guilin
Project Company”) as landlord and Wanda Kidsplace Group Co. Limited,
formerly known as Wanda Kidsland Co. Limited (“Wanda Kidsland”) as
tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC,
was leased for a term of five years commencing from 12 September
2015 to 11 September 2020 for the operation of children entertainment
and playground business and other related business, including the sale
of kids clothing and food and beverage.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Wanda Kidsland is indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wang
Jianlin who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Wanda Kidsland
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Kidsland Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB1,522,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB1,447,000.

Leasing of premises for operation of cinema and related
business (“Cinema Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Cinema Tenancy Agreement dated 8 September 2015
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Wanda
Cinema Line Co., Ltd. (“Wanda Cinema”) as tenant, certain portions of
the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of
20 years commencing from 12 September 2015 to 11 September 2035
for the operation of cinema business and related business, including sale
of food and beverages.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Wanda Cinema is indirectly wholly-owned by Dalian
Wanda Group which is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Wanda
Cinema is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Cinema Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB3,846,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB2,009,000.

Leasing of premises for children entertainment, playground
and other related business under the brand of “Wanda
Kidsplace * (B# 2 B £ )" ("Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement")

Pursuant to the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement dated 29 June 2018
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin
Gaoxin Wanda Kids Entertainment Co., Ltd (“Guilin Wanda Kids”) as
tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC,
was leased for a term of ten years commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30
June 2028 for the operation of children entertainment and playground
business and other related business, including the sale of kids clothing

R

and food and beverage, under the brand of “Wanda Kidsplace * (FiEE
/E\ EE )”.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Since Guilin Wanda Kids is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Wang Jianlin who is a controlling shareholder of the Company, Guilin
Wanda Kids is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Kidsplace Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB99,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB94,000.

Leasing of premises for kids experience business under the
brand of "Wanda Kidsplace International Early Education Club*

(BEE R TEREHELIR)" ("Early Education Tenancy

Agreement")

Pursuant to the Early Education Tenancy Agreement dated 29 June
2018 entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and
Horgos Wanda Education Technology Co., Ltd Guilin Branch (“Horgos
Wanda Education”) as tenant, certain portions of the Guilin Gaoxin Plaza
in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of five years commencing
from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2022 for the operation of kids experience
business under the brand of “Wanda Kidsplace International Early
Education Club * (B E B T B RHALEE])".
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Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Horgos Wanda Education is indirectly wholly-owned by
Dalian Wanda Group who is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
Horgos Wanda Education is a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total rent payable to the Guilin Project Company
under the Early Education Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB386,000, and the actual amount incurred was
approximately RMB367,000.

Leasing of premises for carpark business (“Carpark Tenancy
Agreement”)

Pursuant to the Carpark Tenancy Agreement dated 29 June 2018
entered into between Guilin Project Company as landlord and Guilin
Wanda Shopping Plaza Business Management Co., Ltd (“Wanda Plaza
Business Management”) as tenant, certain carpark premises of the Guilin
Gaoxin Plaza in Guilin City, the PRC, was leased for a term of one year
commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 for the operation of
carpark business.

Guilin Project Company is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Since Wanda Plaza Business Management is indirectly wholly-
owned by DWCM who is an indirect holding company and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, Wanda Plaza Business Management is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap of the total amount payable to the Guilin Project
Company under the Carpark Tenancy Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2018 was RMB1,520,000, and the actual amount incurred
was approximately RMB1,393,000.
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Provision of hotel management services to DWNCM

Pursuant to the hotel management framework agreement (the “Hotel
Management Framework Agreement”) dated 13 November 2018
entered into between the Company and DWCM, DWCM may from time
to time engage the Group (including Wanda Hotel Management HK
and its subsidiaries) to provide hotel management services (the “Hotel
Management Services”) which may include, among others:

- pre-opening support and technical advisory services regarding
specification standards required for hotels being managed
and other coordination services to facilitate the pre-opening
preparation;

- procurement of services and products for operation of hotels;

- carrying out marketing and business development activities and
providing accounting, finance, human resources and information
technology functions;

- setting the prices of guest rooms and other services; and
- other relevant functions and services for the operation of hotels

for the property projects of DWCM for a term from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2038. Members of the Group and DWCM and its
subsidiaries (the “DWCM Group”) shall enter into separate agreements
(“Individual Hotel Management Agreement(s)”) in relation to the provision
of Hotel Management Services for relevant projects, which shall be
subject to the terms and conditions under the Hotel Management
Framework Agreement and the applicable annual caps. The duration
of each Individual Hotel Management Agreement shall not exceed the
term of the Hotel Management Framework Agreement and the terms
of the Individual Hotel Management Agreements shall be made on
normal commercial terms. DWCM is a controlling shareholder of the
Company, and DWCM Group is a connected person of the Company
and the Hotel Management Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The service fees payable by the DWCM Group to the Group for the Hotel

Management Services for each hotel shall be fair and reasonable and

shall be charged on the following basis:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

management fees comprising a base management fee at a rate of
2.5% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel and an
incentive management fee at a rate between 6% and 8% (inclusive)
of the gross operating profit of the relevant hotel;

group service fees for the relevant financial, human resources and/
or information technology services provided by the Group charged
at a rate of 2% of the gross operating revenue of the relevant hotel;

pre-opening fees, comprising a hotel pre-opening support fee
of RMB500,000 (or other currency equivalent) for each hotel
and a technical services fee of RMB2 million (or other currency
equivalent) for each hotel; and

6% of the room income for each room booking made via the
official reservation systems of hotels under Wanda Hotel Brands;
5.6% of the of aggregate revenue contributed by each customer
introduced by the regional sale department of hotels of Wanda
Hotel Brands; and 5% of certain spending of any member of
Wanda Club, a club for customers of the hotels of Wanda Hotel
Brands.

The annual caps of the total amount payable by DWCM Group for each

of the three years ending 31 December 2021 for the provision of Hotel

Management Services by the Group are approximately RMB81,118,000,
RMB80,804,000 and RMB81,988,000 respectively.
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Leasing of property (including office, storage and parking
space) in the PRC for daily operation needs and provide
property management services for the leased properties (the
"Management Services") by DWCM Group to the Group

Pursuant to property leasing framework agreement (the “Property
Leasing Framework Agreement”) dated 13 November 2018 entered
into between the Company as lessee and the DWCM Group as lessor,
DWCM Group may from time to time (i) lease property (including office,
storage and parking space) in the PRC to Wanda Hotel Management
HK and its subsidiaries for its daily operation needs and (i) provide
Management Services in accordance with the terms and conditions
thereto.

Management Services to be provided by the DWCM Group will be
specific to the leased property, and may include but are not limited to
the management and maintenance of shared and public facilities (such
as rooftops, corridors, flowerbeds, trees, outdoor pipes, drains, ponds,
car parks, etc.) and traffic and parking management at the leased
property. Members of the Group and DWCM Group shall enter into
separate agreements (“Individual Lease Agreement(s)”) in relation to the
lease of property by DWCM Group to Wanda Hotel Management HK
and its subsidiaries (depending on the particular property being leased,
this may include Management Services), which shall be subject to the
terms and conditions under the Property Leasing Framework Agreement
and the annual caps thereunder. The duration of each Individual Lease
Agreement shall not exceed the term of the Property Leasing Framework
Agreement and the terms of the Individual Lease Agreements shall be
made on normal commercial terms.

The annual caps in respect of the transactions contemplated under
the Property Leasing Framework Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2021 are approximately RMB15,438,000,
RMB16,114,000 and RMB16,824,000 respectively.
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Review by and Confirmation of INEDs

The INEDs have reviewed the continuing connected transactions
conducted during the year ended 31 December 2018, and confirmed
that such transactions were entered into:

(1) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better to the Group; and

(8) according to the terms in the relevant transaction agreements,
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation by the Auditors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Directors engaged
the auditors of the Company to perform certain work on continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors of
the Company have confirmed by way of a letter to the Board that, for the
year ended 31 December 2018:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Board;

(2)  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

(8)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and
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(4)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in this annual report, nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that such
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
set and disclosed by the Company.

During the year, the Group has not entered into any other significant
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which should
be disclosed pursuant to the requirement under the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the
related party transactions set out in note 42 to the financial statements
which were also connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of their respective subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or any entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID DIRECTORS/EMPLOYEES

Details of emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
Directors/employees of the company are set out in notes 10 and 11 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, the interest of Directors and their respective
associates in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with business of the Group:

EERDEBROHES B
g2

EERARNTREGESHES RBREZHEF
EER B wRMET 10211 °

EENBFERB 2R

RZZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H FEKHEEH
S8R A BN R [ S 75 (T LI BRI ) I AK
BIF R AR BT L X A ST

Name of Director/

Nature of interest in

Business of

associate Name of company the company the company
B WMRAME NEER REAFPEHZZME BRATZEK
Mr. Ding Benxi DWCM Being a director and Engaging in property
shareholder with development, property
1.10% interest lease, property
management and
investment holding
TARGFRE NEBEZEETE EEEERKRR WEEMERE -
HBE1.10% Exm MHEEE - WE
BRI B R
Mr. Ning Qifeng DWCM Being a shareholder with Engaging in property
0.13% interest development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding
EHFEEE NEBEEER BEERR - #H0.13%ER  LEWEME WX
HE  WEEER
REER
Mr. Zhang Lin DWCM Being a shareholder with Engaging in property
0.22% interest development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding
SRARITTHE RNEBEEBXEE BERR - HH0.22% R  LEWERE WX
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Name of Director/

Directors’ Report

Nature of interest in

EFEWRES

Business of

associate Name of company the company the company
BEE MBRAKSE NEERE REZARPERZMHE AT ZER
Mr. Han Xu DWCM Being a shareholder Engaging in property
with 0.035% interest development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding
BIBSEA RNEBEHEER BEERR - B 0.036% e EMEMRE - W
HE  MEEER
KB
Mr. He Zhiping DWCM Being a shareholder Engaging in property
with 0.55% interest development, property
lease, property
management and
investment holding
5T hE RNEBEHEER EERR HE055%En  EEMERE W%

As at 31 December 2018, save as disclosed above, none of the
Directors or their respective associates was interested in any business
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly, with
business of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each INED an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers
all the INEDs to be independent.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, subject to the relevant statutes,
every Director of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless by the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they incur in the execution of their
duty or supposed duty. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2018 and remained in force as
of the date of this report.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained insurance for
the Directors against liabilities to third parties that may be incurred in the
course of performing their duties as at the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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AUDITORS

During the year, Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the Company’s
auditors for the year ended 31 December 2018 at the Company’s
Annual General Meeting held on 30 May 2018 and to hold office until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

NING Qifeng
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2019
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with an emphasis on the principles of transparency,
accountability and independence. The Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance is
essential for the effective management, a healthy corporate culture
and balancing of business risk. Furthermore, it is also essential to the
success of the Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) during the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Except for deviation
from CG Code provision A.6.7 as explained in the relevant paragraphs
on page 52 in this report, the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Company’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2018.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, including one Executive
Director, three Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Company has maintained three Independent
Non-executive Directors which represent over one-third of the Board
during the year ended 31 December 2018. The Board’s composition
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this
report is set out as follows:

Executive Director:
Mr. Ning Qifeng

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Lin
Mr. Han Xu
(appointed with effect from 14 March 2019)
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris
(resigned with effect from 13 February 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors ("INED"):
Mr. He Zhiping
(appointed with effect from 29 March 2018)
Mr. Liu Jipeng
Dr. Xue Yunkui
Mr. Zhang Huagiao
(retired with effect from 30 May 2018)

All Directors have distinguished themselves in their respective fields of
expertise and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional
ethics and integrity. The brief biographical details of the Directors are set
out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 19 to
23. There are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
amongst the Directors.
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BOARD PRACTICE

The Board is collectively and ultimately responsible for how the Company
is managed, its strategic direction and performance. There is a formal
schedule of matters specifically reserved to and delegated by the Board.
The Board has given clear directions to the management team that
certain matters (including the following) must be reserved to the Board:

—  Publication of final and interim results of the Company;
—  Dividend distribution or other distributions;

—  Treasury, accounting and remuneration policies;

— Review on internal control system and risk management;

—  Changes to major group corporate structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcement;

— Notifiable transactions and non-exempted connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions;

—  Proposed transactions requiring shareholders’ approval;
—  Capital re-structuring and issue of new securities;

— Joint-ventures with outside party involving capital commitment
from the Group of over 5% of the relevant size test of the
Company; and

—  Financial assistance to Directors.

Day-to-day operations of the Group and implementation of the Board’s
decisions and strategy are delegated to the Company’s management
team.

The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary, has ensured that the
Board adheres strictly to all rules and requirements for its meetings and
the maintenance of full and proper records. Procedures are established
for every Director to have access to Board papers and related
information, to have the services of the Company Secretary, and to
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense upon
reasonable request.
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The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensures that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publications of such

J/J:\‘ 'kk/l:l#ﬁm
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financial statements.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2018, HE—Z— ) \F+-_A=+—HLEFER &

to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve the Group’s
annual and interim results. At least 14 days’ notice is given for all regular
Board meetings together with the meeting agenda such that all Directors
are given the opportunity to include matters for discussion in the agenda.
In addition, three general meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2018 and attendance of each Director at these meetings is

set out as follows:

$§E§ETT£/X§E§ CARIERANEE R
AR S ERMBRE - WEBRIEREE
ZEERPEES  cMBEESYRREREY
R H AT HER SR EERBE - DA
CHBESIERENERERNNANRSEE -
o RBEZZE—N\F+A=+—HItF
ERNERITZARERE  SEFHFZEY
BZIEREINT

Number of Number of
Board meetings general meetings
attended/held attended/held
EEESERLHE BRERAERE
HE BT HE BT
Executive Director: BITES
Mr. Ning Qifeng BRI E 5/5 0/3
Non-executive Directors: EHITES :
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBEE(EHE) 5/5 0/3
Mr. Zhang Lin SRFRSTAE 5/5 0/3
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris (resigned with effect from HBEEE(BZE—NEF 5/5 3/3
13 February 2019) “At+=HBET)
Mr. Han Xu (appointed with effect FHREE(BEZZ—NEF N/A N/A
from 14 March 2019) =A+TImEREERE) TE A TE A
Independent Non-executive Directors: Ei'a'lﬁﬂﬁ'ﬁ? :
Mr. He Zhiping AEFEE(BZZE—N\F 2/2 0/2
(appointed with effect from 29 March 2018) AT hBRERE)
Mr. Liu Jipeng 2485 A 5/5 0/3
Dr. Xue Yunkui BEEEEL 5/5 0/3
Mr. Zhang Huagjiao (retired with effect wEEE(BZT—/\F 3/3 0/2

from 30 May 2018)

HEA=+THRERE)
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CG Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings. Due to other business engagements, certain Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors did not attend the
annual general meeting and special general meeting. Please refer to the
preceding table for details of attendance of the Non-executive Directors
and the Independent Non-executive Directors.

General meeting is one of the channels for communication between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. The Company’s auditors,
were available to answer questions at the annual general meeting held
on 30 May 2018. Other than the general meetings, the shareholders
may also communicate with the Company through the contact
information listed on the Company’s website. Measures for effective
communication between the Board and the shareholders are described
in the paragraphs under “Communication with Shareholders” and
“Shareholders’ Rights” in this report.

Mr. Ding Benxi was appointed as Non-executive Director and Chairman
of the Company on 3 July 2013, and Mr. Ning Qifeng was appointed
as Executive Director on 17 November 2017. Whilst the Company has
not appointed a chief executive officer, the duties of the chief executive
officer have been performed by Mr. Ning Qifeng, the Executive Director
of the Company. The Board considers that the current arrangement is
adequate in view of the size and complexity of the Group’s operations.
The Board will consider appointing chief executive officer at an
appropriate stage when the Group has increased the size of operation.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience.
Their active participation in Board and committee meetings brings
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s strategy,
performance and management process, taking into account the interests
of all shareholders.

The Company has three Non-executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors representing over one-third of the Board. One
of the Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate accounting
or related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent.
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According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the Non-
executive Directors are three years, from 3 July 2013 to 2 July 2016 for
Mr. Ding Benxi, from 17 November 2017 to 16 November 2020 for Mr.
Zhang Lin, and from 14 March 2019 to 13 March 2022 for Mr. Han Xu.
The terms of appointment for all Non-executive Directors are renewable
automatically for successive terms of one year each commencing from
the date next after the expiry of the then current term, unless terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the Non-
executive Director or the Company.

According to the service contracts, terms of appointment of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are three years, from 3 July 2013
to 2 July 2016 for Mr. Liu Jipeng and Dr. Xue Yunkui and from 29 March
2018 to 28 March 2021 for Mr. He Zhiping. The terms of appointment for
all Independent Non-executive Directors Mr. He Zhiping, Mr. Liu Jipeng
and Dr. Xue Yunkui are renewable automatically for successive terms of
one year each commencing from the date next after the expiry of the
then current term, unless terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either the Independent Non-executive Director
or the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board has established and adopted a written nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) specifying the process and criteria for the selection
and recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company.

Selection criteria

The Nomination Committee shall, based on those criteria as set out in
the Nomination Policy (such as reputation for integrity, qualifications and
experience, time commitment and contribution to diversity of the Board
according to the Board Diversity Policy, etc.), identify and recommend
the proposed candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment. In
the case of re-appointment of Director, the Nomination Committee would
take into account factors such as contribution, attendance in meetings
and level of participation from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate
is appointed for the position of independent non-executive Director,
the Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence with
reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules.
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Nomination procedures

In appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first call a meeting of the Nomination Committee and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members for its consideration
prior to the meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall then make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval. The information, including biography,
independence (for nomination of non-executive or independent non-
executive directors only), proposed remuneration and other information
as required under the applicable laws and regulations will be included in
the circular to shareholders. A shareholder may also serve to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong a notice in writing
for its intention to propose a resolution to elect a certain candidate as
Director and a notice by the nominated person of his/her willingness to
be elected according to the Articles of Association, without the Board’s
recommendation or nomination of the Nomination Committee other than
those candidates as set out in the circular. The Board shall then consider
and have the final decision on all matters relating to whether to have the
recommended candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.
The Nomination Committee shall ensure the transparency and fairness
of the selection procedure.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the new
Directors more detailed information on the Group’s operations, business
and activities.
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According to Clause 99 of the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director. The Directors to retire in every year shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became Directors on the same day shall (unless
they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at any
general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the vacated offices.
Further, any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board should hold office only until the next general meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.

According to code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules,
all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to
election by shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

During the year, no amount was paid or payable by the Company to
the Directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agree to
waive any remuneration during the year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including a
Remuneration Committee, an Audit Committee and a Nomination
Committee, each of which has its specific written terms of reference,
which are available on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company. Copies of minutes of all meetings and resolutions
of the committees, which are kept by the Company Secretary, are
circulated to all Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and recommendations where
appropriate. The procedures and arrangements for a Board meeting, as
mentioned on pages 50 to 52 in the section headed “Board Practice”
above, have been adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2018 to, among other things, assess the
performance of Executive Director, review and discuss the existing policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors, and the remuneration
packages of the Directors. The members of the Remuneration
Committee and the attendance of each member at the committee
meeting are set out as follows:

EEEZEE

EEECRUZELRES  BEFHEES
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i3
A

Number of

Committee meetings

attended/held

EEEERRE

Committee member ZEEBNE BT

Mr. Liu Jipeng (Chairman) Rk E () 11

Mr. He Zhiping (appointed AEFEE(EBZE—N\F 0/0
with effect from 29 March 2018) ZRZTNBREEZRE)

Mr. Zhang Huagjiao (retired with effect RIEBAE(BZE—N\F 11

from 30 May 2018) HA=+HEREMT)
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris (resigned HBERE(EZZE—NEF 11

with effect from 13 February 2019)

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the
financial statements.

56  Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2018

ZAT=HEE)

EEHM RN Y B HRERMFE10



Corporate Governance Report

The Remuneration Committee of the Company has been established
since June 2005 to comply with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of two members, all of them
are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice in accordance with the
Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
package of individual executive directors and senior management;

(iv)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;

(vy  to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere
in the group of which the Company is a member company;

(vi)  to review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

(vi) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

(viii) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management who are not Directors are within the
following bands:

FNREREE (8T)

Total remuneration bands (HK$)

BE-T—/\E+-AS+—RILEE A3
EE Y BREREREZHIN T THE -

Number of individuals

AR

HK$2 million or below 2,000,000 Lk A T~

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meet at least twice each year. In 2018, the Audit
Committee met two times to, among other things, consider the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 June
2018, discuss with the auditors of the Company on internal control,
risk management, compliance with rules and regulations, auditors’
independence, auditors’ remuneration and the scope of work in relation
to the annual audit. The members of the Audit Committee and the
attendance records of each member at the committee meetings in 2018
are set out as follows:
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BERLZEQBFELOHAMAEH - BKEE8
ER_FT-\FOETMAEH  N(HEPE
BEZEASEEEZE _T—tF+_A=1—
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Fgn

Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held
EEEERRE
Committee member ZE88KE ) h)
Dr. Xue Yunkui (Chairman) HEERL (FE) 2/2
Mr. He Zhiping (appointed AEFEE(BZE-N\F 1/1
with effect from 29 March 2018) =Rt NARREZRE)
Mr. Zhang Huagjao (retired with effect REBEE(BZE—N\E 1/1
from 30 May 2018) HA=+HEREMT)
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris (resigned HEEE(BZZ-—NEF 2/2

with effect from 13 February 2019)

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference, which was amended and re-adopted by the Board with effect
from 1 January 2019, in accordance with the requirements of the CG
Code for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee is comprised of two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Xue Yunkui and Mr. He Zhiping.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(i)

()

to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors;

to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards;

to approve the engagement of the external auditors to perform
non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication quarterly reports and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them;

to liaise with the Board and senior management and must meet
with the Company’s auditors;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control system with
management to ensure that management has performed its duty
to have effective internal control and risk management systems;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management’s response to these findings;

to ensure coordination between the internal and external auditors;

to review the external auditors’ management letter;

to ensure the Board will provide a timely response to the issues
raised in the external auditors’ management letter; and

to review reports on the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosures in this report.
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The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate into any matter
under the scope of its duties and the authority to obtain independent
professional advice. It is given full access to and assistance from
management and reasonable resources to discharge its duties properly.
The Audit Committee meets with the external auditors at least twice
every year.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. One
committee meeting was held in 2018 to, among other things, review
the composition of the Board, consider the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the retirement and re-election
of directors. The members of the Nomination Committee and the
attendance of each member at the committee meeting are set out as
follows:
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Number of
Committee meetings

attended/held
EEEERRE
Committee member ZEERE HE BT
Mr. Ding Benxi (Chairman) TARBILE(FE) 1/1
Mr. Liu Jipeng 24 e A& 1/1
Dr. Xue Yunkui EEEELT 11

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in June 2005, which was amended and re-adopted by the
Board with effect from 1 January 2019. It currently consists of three
members, including a Non-executive Director and two Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice in accordance with the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

M

(i)

(i)

to review the performance of the Board and ensure that the Board
and its committees consist of directors with the appropriate
balance of skills, diversity and knowledge of the Company to
enable it to discharge its duties effectively;

to assist the Board in succession planning for the Board and
senior management;

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy. When reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall take into consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience in accordance with the
Board diversity policy adopted by the Company from time to time
to achieve Board diversity;

to draw up, review and update, as appropriate, the diversity policy
for the Board's approval having due regard to the requirements
of the Listing Rules in place from time to time, review and update
the objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy,
and disclose the policy on diversity or a summary of the policy in
the Company's corporate governance report;

to develop, review and implement, as appropriate, the policy for the
nomination of Board members, which includes the criteria, process
and procedures for the identification, selection and nomination
of candidates for Directors for the Board's approval. Such
criteria include but are not limited to the potential contributions a
candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills,
experience, independence and gender diversity in accordance
with the Company's diversity policy. The Nomination Committee
should disclose in the Company's corporate governance report
the nomination policy and the progress made towards achieving
the objectives set in the policy;
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i

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

()

62

EEAWSE

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors having regard to relevant guidelines or requirements of
the Listing Rules in place from time to time and, if a proposed
director will be holding their seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, his/her ability to devote sufficient time to Board
matters;

to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors
and senior management, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive, taking into account all factors which the Nomination
Committee considers appropriate including objective criteria and
potential contributions a candidate can bring with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board, the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and skills and expertise required
in the future and ensure that senior management succession
planning is discussed at the Board at least once annually;

to keep under review the leadership needs and leadership training
and development programmes of the Group, with a view to
ensuring the continued ability of the Group to function effectively
and compete in the market;

to evaluate the needs for, and monitor the training and
development of, directors;

to develop the procedures for the performance evaluation of the
Board committees:

(@) review and assess the skills, knowledge and experience
required to serve on various Board committees, and make
recommendations on the appointment of members of the
Board committees and the chairman of each committee;
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(b) recommend candidates to the Board to fill vacancies or
new positions on the Board committees as necessary or
desirable;

(c) review the feedback in respect of the role and effectiveness
of the Board committees arising from the evaluation
of the Board and/or any Board committees and make
recommendations for any changes;

(xii) to do any such things to enable the Nomination Committee to
discharge its powers and functions conferred on it by the Board;
and

(xiii) to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board.

Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length service.
All Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. According to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the above
Board diversity policy of the Company has been approved by the Board
and adopted by the Nomination Committee on 23 August 2013 and
amended with effect from 1 January 2019 in compliance with the Listing
Rules.
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The Nomination Committee holds meeting at least once a year to
review the diversity of the Board and discuss the measurable objectives,
including knowledge, appropriate professional qualifications, relevant
business background and experience, skills, relevant management
expertise and independence of Directors, and give recommendation
to the Board. During the year, the Nomination Committee takes the
view that the measurable objectives were achieved to a large extent. It
paid particular attention on the cultural and educational background,
professional and technical experience, and skills of the members of
Board and also reviewed the composition between Executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors so as to ensure appropriate
independence within the Board.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing, with the
support from the Group’s finance department, the financial statements
of the Group and ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements
of the Group. The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as going concern.

The report of the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, and their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report from pages 92 to 99.
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External Auditors' Independence and Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to monitor the independence of the
external auditors to ensure the objectivity in the financial statements.
Members of the Committee are of the view that the Company’s external
auditors are independent. During the year, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors are set out as follows:

TEERRE

SN BET 2 B M R

B EGRREERINEREEN 2B -
NERM SRR 2 F8M - TEEXERA/AR
RAVZINEZBENEB LM - RER - BT
FEN AR BISNEZEED 2 B2 EFIa T -

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered for the Group EAEERSZ BRE e EAER

HK$’000

FAET

Annual audit services FEZHRE 1,110
Non-audit services: HAZERRTS

Review of interim report FEPHmRE 380

Special projects FERIE B 2,840

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Group’s system of risk management and internal control includes
a defined management structure with limited authority, and is designed
to achieve business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provisions of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations. The system is put in place to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives. The Board has conducted review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems during the
year ended 31 December 2018 including financial, operational controls
and risk management functions and ensured the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget for
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions at least annually
. The Board has also reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and considered them to be effective and
adequate.
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In relation to the Board’s risk management and internal control
functions, the Board fulfils its duties by determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company by reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, developing and monitoring the codes of
conduct applicable to employees and the Directors of the Company,
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report, and receiving and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management of the Company. Where any significant risks are
identified, the Board will evaluate and manage such risks by considering
the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial results,
the probability that the risk will occur and the imminence of the risk.

The Group does not have an internal audit function, but instead shares
and benefits from the internal audit function of its parent, DWCM,
which operates an internal audit function for all of its subsidiaries,
including the Group. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an internal
audit function within the Group in light of the efficiency and effectiveness
of the current internal audit arrangement. The situation will be reviewed
from time to time.

The Group has adopted procedures for the handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner and in compliance with the SFO.
The procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review on a regular
basis. Unless the inside information falls within any of the safe harbors
as permitted under the SFO, the Group is required to disseminate such
information through the electronic publication system operated by the
Stock Exchange to the public in a timely manner. All Directors, officers
and relevant employees are required to take reasonable precautions
for preserving the confidentiality of inside information and the relevant
announcement (if applicable) before publication. If the Group believes
that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained, the
Group will immediately disclose the information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable.

Directors' Training

Pursuant to CG Code Provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
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materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest changes in
the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by
a director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board.

The Company also continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
also issued to Directors where appropriate to ensure their awareness of
best corporate governance practices.

The Directors are continually updated on the statutory and regulatory
regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for
Directors will be arranged where necessary. Individual Directors also
participated in the courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of
a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or
reading relevant materials.

All the Directors (namely, Mr. Ding Benxi, Mr. Zhang Lin, Mr. Han Xu, Mr.
Ning Qifeng, Mr. Liu Jipeng, Dr. Xue Yunkui and Mr. He Zhiping have
participated in relevant trainings and have provided the relevant records
to the Company. The Directors developed and updated their knowledge
and skills through participation in the training programmes, which in turn
ensures that they could make suitable contribution to the Board.

Company Secretary's Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary
must take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided her training records to
the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house briefings, attending
seminars and reading relevant guideline materials for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good and effective
communication with its shareholders. Information in relation to the Group
is disseminated to shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim reports, annual reports,
announcements, notices and circulars, which are published to the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s own website.

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a valuable forum
for the Board to communicate directly with the Company’s shareholders.
The Chairman actively seeks to participate at the AGM and personally
chair the AGM to answer any questions from the Company’s
shareholders. A separate resolution is proposed by the Chairman in
respect of each issue to be considered at the AGM. An AGM circular is
distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the AGM, setting
out details of each propose resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. The Chairman explains the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll again at the beginning of the AGM, and (except where
a poll is demanded) reveals how many proxies for and against have been
received in respect of each resolution.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Company’s
shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and Procedures
for Putting Forward Proposals by Shareholders at General
Meeting

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Companies Act of Bermuda. A copy of the Company’s Bye-Laws is
available on the Company’s website.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting
rights of the Company, or not less than 100 shareholders, can put
forward a proposal at a general meeting of the Company pursuant to
and in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda. The requisition
specifying the proposal, duly signed by the requisitionists, together with
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a statement with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal, must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's relevant expenses.

The procedure for Shareholders to nominate a person for election as a
Director is also available on the Company’s website. Subject to the Bye-
Laws of the Company, any shareholder wishing to nominate an individual
for election as a Director of the Company at the AGM shall, no later
than 7 days prior to the relevant general meeting, submit a completed
form of nomination to the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong, and in default the form of nomination submitted shall be
treated as invalid. Any such form of nomination shall be accompanied
by a biographical profile of each proposed nominee and a written
statement from the proposed nominee consenting to be nominated
and, if nominated and elected, consenting to serve as a Director of the
Company. The biographical profile of each proposed nominee shall
include at least the following information: () full name, age and address
of the proposed nomineg; (ii) past and present directorships (if any) and
employment of the proposed nominee; (i) the information as required to
be include in the announcement of the Company under Rule 13.51(2) of
the Listing Rules.

Enquiries from shareholders to the Board

In order to ensure effective communication between the Company’s
shareholders and the Board, the Company adopted the shareholders
communication procedures on 28 February 2012. According to the
shareholders communication procedures, the Board is responsible for
maintaining an on-going dialogue with the Company’s shareholders
and in particular, use AGMs or other general meetings to communicate
with them and encourage their participation. The chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite
the Independent Non-executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration, Nomination and any other Committees (as appropriate)
to attend. In their absence, the chairman should invite another member
of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend.
These persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.

The chairman of the independent board committee (if any) should also
be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing, whose contact details are as follows:

The Board of Directors

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Unit 3007, 30th Floor

Two Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

The Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company will
consider the enquiries and concerns raised by the shareholders and
reply as appropriate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ENHANCEMENT

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of applying and
complying with the CG Code but about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review and,
where appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis of our
experience, regulatory changes and developments. Any views and
suggestions from our shareholders are also welcome.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”)
highlights the Group’s environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
strategy, measures and achievements covering the period from 1
January to 31 December 2018, which is consistent with our financial
year. We strive to implement the established principle of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency and are dedicated to maximising
the interests of our stakeholders by upholding the sustainability
approaches.

The Report was prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules issued by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. An independent consulting firm was
appointed to provide professional advice with regards to the preparation
of the Report.

The policy documents, statements and data published in the Report
cover the ESG performances of the Group’s business in Hong Kong,
the PRC and the USA. As a result of the Disposal of the London Project
and the Australian Projects in 2018, this Report does not include these
projects for the year. Wanda Hotel Management HK was acquired by
the Company on 31 December 2018 and it is also not included in this
Report.

The Report has been approved by the Board before publication.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Actively managing ESG matters is vital to the sustainable growth of the
Group. We do our utmost to construct a harmonious society by paying
due care and respect to the environment, our staff, business partners
and the community.
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Sustainability Governance

The Group has established a sound and solid governance practice over
ESG matters. The Board takes full responsibility for developing ESG
approaches, evaluating and monitoring ESG-related risks, assessing
the effectiveness of the ESG measures launched within the Group.
Management of regional operations handles the daily ESG matters by
following the guidance provided by the Board and report in due course,
to ensure the Group strictly complies with the local ESG regulations
and ordinances. ESG performance is reviewed and evaluated on a
regular basis, and the results are disclosed to stakeholders in our annual
ESG report to manifest the effort we have made towards a sustainable
environment and society.

The Group stresses the full implication of integrity in the workplace to
maintain a fair and efficient working environment. We uphold the highest
ethical and governance standards in our business operations, and the
Group has zero tolerance for corrupt activities. We reinforce our anti-
corruption commitment through the implementation of a set of anti-
corruption policies and procedures and require all Group members and
staff to comply. For instance, employees are prohibited for a request,
and to receive or obtain any advantage from any persons, companies or
organizations that have business dealings with the Group. There is no
legal cases associated with corrupt practice were brought against the
Group and its employees during the reporting year.

Stakeholders Engagement

The Group a broad spectrum of stakeholders, including employees,
shareholders and investors, suppliers, customers, tenants and
community partners span in places where we operate. We endeavour to
create long-term value for our stakeholders, as such, we anticipate their
needs and expectations by listening to their opinions and feedbacks
and has been in a close liaison with different stakeholders continuously
through daily communications, general meetings and periodic ESG-
targeted engagements.
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Materiality Analysis

A detailed survey on ESG issues is conducted every two to three years
to ensure comments, advices and expectations from stakeholders are
communicated effectively to our senior management, helping us to
understand and evaluate the Group’s ESG strategies and performance
by identifying ESG issues that are material to the Group’s operations and
our stakeholders. Also, stakeholders’ responses are reviewed annually
by our senior management to reevaluate the focuses of the Group’s ESG
strategies. The results are then confirmed by the Board to ensure our
ESG policies are in line with the needs of our stakeholders, significant to
the business and adhere to relevant laws and regulations.

Upon the annual review of ESG issues, a total of nine ESG issues
identified from last year remain material to the Group:

RIB - B RERRE
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Key Areas Material ESG Issues Identified
FESR 2B EINE KESGEE
Environmental protection ° Waste management
RERE EEYETRE
Employment and labour practices ° No child labour/forced labour
ERRBIER TFEEET MoRiBL
° Equal opportunities
FERS
° Diversity and non-discrimination
Z A RARAR
° Safe working environment
ZEH TR
Operating practices ° Anti-corruption
EEEN R&S
° Health and safety of products and services
EmMRBHERERELZ S
o Customer satisfaction
BEWEE
° Customer data privacy
P EHEL
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group spares no effort in supporting sustainable development and
reducing our environmental footprint by introducing green elements
into our property development, leasing and management businesses.
Over the years, we have placed strenuous efforts in promoting green
building to support water and energy conservation measures to reduce
carbon dioxide emissions. We have also been practising proper waste
management and effective use of resources with the aim to minimise
the potential impact of our business on the ecological environment.
Above all, the Group is committed to ensuring that each business unit
and operation complies with relevant local environmental regulations,
including but not limited to the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China. In 2018, the management
did not note any regulatory violations related to the environment, as well
as the complaints, fines or sanctions caused by breach of environmental
regulations.

Promoting Sustainable Buildings

The Group actively seeks opportunities to apply green building designs
and strategies during the design and construction of projects to minimise
the use of energy, water and materials and the generation of waste in the
life cycle of the buildings. The Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza is one of the
examples of the Group’s best practices in promoting green building.

Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza is equipped with green features that reduce
the negative impact on the environment and has attained the “1-star”
level criteria of the China Green Building Label as a recognition. It
adopts the “Huiyun Smart Management System”, an innovative system
developed by its parent company DWCM, which promotes safe, green
and smart operation. It integrates five management systems of fire-
fighting, security, equipment, operation and energy conservation into
one standardised platform for operation. This system not only ensures
high-quality services with lowered operating costs but also improves
the energy efficiency of the building through the improvement of the
electric and mechanic system. Along with the adoption of the particular
measures, including but not limited to energy conservation device, water
saving system, and natural lighting design, the Guilin Gaoxin Wanda
Plaza demonstrates the concept of green building.
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Green Building Features

BREEERE

RIB - B RERRE

Functions

Thee

Huiyun Smart Management System
EEEEB(EERER

Rainwater catchment system

ﬁﬁ7}<”y/§/ \/\VL

Dome skylights

EERNE

Electric sunshade

Standardise operation to ensure service quality, and at the same time,
increase energy efficiency.

Fg 2 B DARER RIS B KA R IE S AL IR M &

o

E)I\

Collect and reuse rainwater for landscaping to reduce water consumption.
The system collects about 1,500 cubic meter of rainwater on average
every year'.

Wk R ERRKERBRMRSEARDAKE -

REREFFHWEKRL 1,500 2 77 KFKT

Provide natural daylight for indoor areas to reduce energy consumption
for lightings.
REAM T REB AN LR D R EK R EEIRIEFRE o

Lower the indoor temperature in the daytime to reduce energy consumption

SR for air-conditioning.

7 B ERKE AR E PR A

Using Resources Wisely

The Group recognises that the exploitation of resources poses an impact
on the environment. To minimise adverse environmental effects brought
by our business operations, the Group adopts effective management
measures in our day-to-day operations to improve the efficiency of
resources use. These initiatives are also useful in reducing greenhouse
gas emissions.

In terms of energy conservation and greenhouse gas emissions
reduction, the newly acquired electrical appliances in Hong Kong offices
will consider the most energy efficient device in the market. Those
certified with Grade 1 energy labels will be considered at a higher priority.
The air-conditioners are automatically turned off during non-office hours
and be cleaned and inspected regularly to maintain their high efficiency.
For most of our leased offices, we require the lighting to be controlled
by the smart building management system to reduce energy wastage.
When travel is inevitable, the Group strongly recommends our staff to
use public transportation whenever possible.

! The system was not operating at its optimal range in 2018. Maintenance
work is currently being carried out.
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In terms of materials conservation, the Group highly encourages our HEEINEIRAE » AEBERESEE TiBKE
staff to adopt a paperless culture. We recommend our employees to file Fb - MMEZRBEIRELR « S - 6405
drawings, reports, contracts and other documents in electronic versions NURBERAEFRA - WENEZTEH

and choose double-sided printing in case printing is unavoidable. BATHEEREEERM -
Unit 20182
B —E-N\F?2

Total greenhouse gas emissions and intensity®
BERBAFHERTES

Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes (carbon dioxide equivalent) 5,627
mERBAENE N (ZR LR E =

Greenhouse gas emissions intensity Tonnes (carbon dioxide equivalent)/ 0.1
AEREHREE square meter

R (—ELRER) S FIK

Total energy consumption and intensity

BEREEERERE

Total energy consumption — electricity kWh 8,726,018
BELRERERE — 8N Rl

Total energy consumption intensity kWh/square meter 210
B ERERE TR, FHAK

Total water consumption and intensity*

BIEKEREBE

Total water consumption Cubic meter 150,806
BFEKE SR

Total water consumption intensity Cubic meter/square meter 4
BRKERE SRR

2 As a result of the disposal of overseas projects, London Project and 2 HREEEINEE BEATERIERBIEE

Australia Projects are excluded from the data. The comparative figures of NMSENIER - it 0 2017 FR LB BUE KA
2017 are therefore not provided here. UL -

8 The figure includes only indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions as 8 MR AFENER (BE—) RAERBERE
the emission of direct (Scope 1) greenhouse gas is insignificant during the WHAEE BRSPS LEE(BEZ)RER
reporting year. BEPERR ©

‘ The data excludes water consumption from the Hong Kong office. ‘ HIETEERERAZTHFKE
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Managing Waste Responsibly

Waste management was rated as one of the nine most material ESG
issues to the Group in our past stakeholder engagement exercises. To
this end, the Group has been committed to adopting effective waste
management measures to reduce the environmental impact of waste
generated from our business. We adopted a three-tiered approach
that prioritises waste avoidance along with reduction and recovery over
disposals in all of our operations to achieve sustainable solid waste
management. Waste management companies are appointed to ensure
waste is handled properly and legally.

For instance, wastes is sorted before disposal to identify recyclables.
Materials with recycling values, such as paper, are recycled to extend
their life cycle and reduce the wastage of resources. During the year,
approximately 2,184 tonnes of non-hazardous waste is generated while
a total of 156 kg of waste paper is recycled.

WALK ALONG WITH EMPLOYEES

Our employees are the key to the corporate development of the Group.
Our staffs do not only contribute to maintaining a good business
operation, but also play a crucial role in providing quality services and
products to our customers. The Group continued to deploy resources
for the staff welfare enhancement to raise staff morale and to attract and
retain talents. This includes providing diversified training to equip our staff
with the necessary skills to perform their roles and creating a friendly
and safe working environment. A series of fair, open and comprehensive
employment policies have been established and implemented across
our offices to support our management and to ensure our compliance
against employment-related regulations and laws. In particular, we
comply to the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) in Hong Kong, as well as the Labour Law and Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China. In 2018, no confirmed major
violations associated with labour and dismissal rule and legislation were
brought against to the Company and its employees.
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Talents Acquisition and Retention

The Group’s recruitment process adheres to the principle of openness
and transparency, and we are committed to providing fair career
development opportunities to all employees. According to our
employment policy, it clearly states the prohibition of child labour
employment and forced labours as to ensure compliance with the
Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter 57B of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour under
respective legislations. As such, we run background check for all job
applicants and review our employment policy where necessary. The
management will take reasonable actions in respect to the interests of
the child or forced labour if any potential contravention is observed.

The Group offered competitive pay subject to staff performance,
experience and market salary level, while the distribution of discretionary
bonus is subject to the profitability of the company and employees’
performances. Other employee benefits include provident funds, social
insurance, personal accident insurance, annual health check, medical
welfare, housing subsidy, free working meals, education subsidy and
training programs.

The Group has provided staff with a clear promotion ladder and
promotion opportunities to retain talents as well as to appreciate their
contributions. Employee performance appraisal is carried out annually,
with appeal channels available to ensure the review process is fair and
just. Besides from external recruitment, the staff is nominated for internal
promotion where there are vacancies to increase employee’s career
mobility.

The Group promotes a diversified working environment and stands
against any form of discrimination. We strive to develop a friendly
workplace by encouraging uninhibited dialogues and cooperation
among employees and upholding a harmonious working relationship. We
support employees to organise different forms of teambuilding activities
to foster team spirits, such as birthday parties, gatherings, outings, and
festive celebrations.
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During the reporting year, the Group has 229 employees in Hong Kong, RMEFE SERES - PEIREREEA
the PRC and the USA. 2007/ BT °

Employee Distribution®

BI s
As of 31 December 2018
HE-T— \F+=-A=1+—H

Distribution by gender Distribution by age Distribution by geographical location
gzl bakiin RERDM Rt &5
Number of employees Number of employees Number of employees
BT AH ST AR BT AH
2 15
125 104 60 44 212

RN

70 N 55
B Male B4 B Aged 30 or below 30BRIIAT B HongKong &
Female — Zf Aged 31-40 31-405% The PRC Gl
B Aged 41-50 41-505% B The USA ESei
Aged above 50 5055 A £
Training and Development Zal R ER

Talent development is at the forefront of our planning. By facilitating our AT BEREZRMHAENEF 2 E - BBRES
employees to participate in various on-the-job training and continuous T2ESBETRENIRFESLETE - &M
learning initiatives, we hope to foster their career development in the PRAEEEEMMNBERZE - RZZ—N
workplace. In 2018, the Group provided comprehensive training to our & ANEEAE TREZERI - EFNET
employees that focused on improving work-related skills and knowledge. EMEER e R AH - RZT—\F - 8157
The total training delivered in 2018 has reached 3,697 hours with the R BIE 3,697 /N - B8 B TR Il
average of 16 hours per employee. BIJZE 16/ \BF ©

5 As a result of the disposal of overseas projects, London Project and 5 MREEEINEE  BEITBIEHHIER
Australia Projects are excluded from the data. MOBMNIER »
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During the year, the Group continues to arrange training for all employees
from basic induction training and pension insurance awareness training
to targeted training covering team building skills, workplace health and
safety, the latest information technologies, knowledge on corporate
governance and corporate social responsibility awareness. Regular anti-
corruption refresher training are also delivered with resources provided
by the Hong Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC)
to ensure all employees comply with and uphold the behaviours set out
in relevant policies, laws, and regulations, in particular the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-
money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China. Additionally,
we offer professional development training to employees under the “Talent
Scheme” and “Quality Talent Scheme” as a platform to prepare staff and
managers for senior roles.

In order to enhance our property management and the quality of
customer service, a series of the training programme is tailored
specifically to our frontline staff at Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza for at
least ten times a month. Training courses are designed against seven
pillars, namely operations, investment, marketing, finance, human
resources and administration, and property engineering. Over 70
sessions are organised during the reporting year to enhance business
competitiveness and performance.

We nurture employees to receive more professional training with
sufficient resources. Employees are eligible to reimburse expenses
related to maintaining their professional qualifications, such as course
fees, transportation fees, accommodation fees and wages during in-
service training courses.
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Taking Care of Employees’ Health and Safety

We treat our employees as our most important asset of all. Therefore,
we invest in resources to create a safe, healthy and comfortable working
environment and encouraging a work-life balance culture among our
employees. We are in compliance with the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the legal
requirement on occupational health and safety outlined in Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China.

It is of utmost importance that our staff can handle emergencies
and prevent accidents in the long term, so we have arranged safety
education and training during induction to raise their safety awareness
and equip them with relevant skills. On top of those, we provide
adequate personal protection equipment for staff that needs to perform
high potential hazard activities especially when entering project sites and
performing maintenance work at our operations, reducing the chance
to occupational accidents. During the reporting year, there is no fatal
incidents recorded.

Besides, we champion work-life balance in our workplace, advocating
the importance for our staff to maintain a close relationship with families
and friends and embrace challenges and lives. Under a five-day-work-
week and an eight-hour working hour culture, we facilitate employees
to stay close to their personal and family lives and not allow mental or
physical health to be affected by work. With a membership card for the
gym and free fruits distributed to every staff in some operating offices,
we wish to see a behavioural change from employees in achieving
better physical health for themselves.
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RESPONSIBLE OPERATION

Acting responsibly and with integrity is the Group’s commitment to
securing long-term success and bringing positive outcomes. We pay
attention to how we approach our suppliers, customers and the wider
community to ensure that we always act lawfully and ethically. For
instance, the Group maintains close communication with suppliers
and aims to achieve an open, honest and responsible supply chain.
Our zero-tolerance policy on anti-corruption is practiced thoroughly
along our supply chain, and employees are encouraged to raise any
concerns about suspected misconduct, malpractice, impropriety, or
unethical treatment through our established whistle-blowing channels.
All reported cases are handled promptly by department managers and
will be escalated to the Group’s management where necessary. We
hold a high standard of quality when delivering products and services
by respecting the needs and rights of our customers. To the boarder
community, we hope to support people in need with the resources and
workforce we have. Together with our employees and supported by
policies and initiatives introduced by the Group, we continue to work
towards becoming a responsible business. During the reporting year,
there is no breach of laws and regulations relating to health and safety,
advertisement and privacy matters.

Managing Our Supply Chain

We strive to achieve comprehensive and effective supply chain
management during the process of selecting suppliers and contractors,
from establishing a standardised tendering procedure, performance
monitoring to maintaining the diversity of suppliers.
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For instance, suppliers are subject to internal primary selection, audit
and pubic tendering process in order to be included in our suppliers
list. Extra attention is given where the total procurement amount worth
over a preset standard, where multiple suppliers will be engaged in the
selection process in order to phase out unsatisfactory suppliers that
do not meet our pricing and quality requirements. In achieving effective
risk management, tendering procedures are standardised to avoid any
corruption, bribery, blackmail, fraud and money laundering. At the same
time, employees are required to stay alert on the possible conflicts of
interest caused or led by the tendering procedures. Multiple personnel
across departments are involved in the process to ensure fairness and
rationality of the results.

The Company endeavour to provide quality products and services, while
receiving support from suppliers is fundamental to the success of the
company. In 2018, the Group worked closely with 649 suppliers and
contractors to ensure the stability of the operation of supply chains.
Meanwhile, we paid attention to avoid over-reliance of specific suppliers
and to uphold the diversity of suppliers.

The Group’s business locates in multiple regions. During our supplier
selection process, priorities will be given to local suppliers to promote
local economic development and reduce the carbon footprint caused by
transportation.

Improving Quality of Product and Services

The Group advocates a high-level of integrity and professional ethics.
Employees are required to respect and protect the intellectual property
during the daily operation. Apart from regular evaluation on internal
policies and measures, the Group continued to monitor the intellectual
property activities including the use of authentic computer system, to
avoid any infringement occurs in the operation process. We respect
and protect customer privacy; and employees are required to abide by
the local regulations, in particular the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests of the People’s Republic of China, related
to the collection, holding and use, disclosure and transfer of personal
data. The data collection process in operation is kept confidential and
strictly follow the privacy and confidentiality regulations stated in the
internal policies.
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R - S RERRE

‘Customer First” is the key to quality service as we strive to enhance
customer satisfaction and promote customer-based services. For
instance, a dedicated team is formed to provide customer support
service at Guilin Gaoxin Wanda Plaza. Customers are welcomed to
provide feedback through our established channels where inquiries
and complaints are handled properly, including formal customer
satisfaction surveys that are conducted twice a year and a customer
complaint phone that is set up all the time at the concierge of the mall.
All complaints received are directed to our Operations Department for
review. Once the claim is accepted, it will immediately be directed to
respective departments for follow up. All follow up actions have to be
discussed with the Operations Department to ensure compliance with
our internal procedures. It is our policy that all complaints have to be
followed up within a time frame of 24 hours. During the reporting period,
we did not receive any complaint regarding the products and services of
the Group from external parties or regulatory authorities

Caring for the Community

The Group proactively engaged with the local communities in places
where it operates and support their needs through direct donations
and volunteering in community activities. We target specifically at the
underprivileged as they are the most vulnerable group in society. This
year, we continue to donate a part of our profits to the community and
encourage our staff to be volunteers. In May, a group of volunteers
visited an elderly centre in the PRC, hoping to show some love and
support.
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CONTENT INDEX OF THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE
OF HONG KONG EXCHANGES AND CLEARING

LIMITED

General Disclosures and KPIs

—REERBERERIEE

BEXGREEMARLA
(R - tERERESDR

REL

Disclosure

REAR

Reference
2%

Environmental

BI%

Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : B
General Disclosure

—fR IR

KPI A1.1
BRI IR AL

KPIA1.2
FRRERIEIRAL.2

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas

emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste.

BRERIORERBEN - MKkt
WwHEES AENEEREVMNES
FH)

(@ Rk

(o) BTFTHETABERTZERIER

ERLIROIEVERS

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

B TR AR R ARRE D IR -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity.

BERBAENE (UMEFE) k(4
BWA)EE -

Environmental Protection
RIBIRE

Not Applicable — The operations of
the Group do not cause any significant
air emissions, and no relevant data is
disclosed accordingly

NER — AEENEESBBEENR
BBEEN - Rt AR B REREEIE
Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Wisely

RIGRE — ZAER
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General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Reference
—REERERENEZR BEAR 2Z
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced Not applicable — The Group did

RASRIEBUIEIZA1.8

KPI A1.4
FABHARUEIRALL4

KPIA1.5
FARAERIEIR AL

KPI A1.6
RS IEIZA1.6

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
[EmEA2 : BER{EA
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A2.1
RSB IEIR A2.1

KPI A2.2
RS EIEIZ A2.2

(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity.
FREXAEREEYEE (LAETE) &
(WER)BE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity.
ESBEEENESE (UEFE) &
(@A) TE -

Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.

B EPE B MR KT SRR -

Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
MEEIBEENBEREDN X
BIRE S+ BN RATEKR -

Policies on the efficient use of
resources.

BRERERBUEE -

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total (kWh in
’000s) and intensity.
RERESNEE R SHEEERE
#E (ATETEEHE) RBE -
Water consumption in total and
intensity.

BREKEREE -
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not produce significant amount of
hazardous waste during the reporting
year

TNER — AEERHREFEALEAS
EXEBEEEY

Environmental Protection — Managing

Waste Responsibly
RIGRE — BREENEEYER

Environmental Protection —
Promoting Sustainable Buildings,
Using Resources Wisely
RIBRE — P AIFER
REIR

Environmental Protection — Managing

RS- B

Waste Responsibly

RIBIRE — A SEEEDER

The Group did not produce significant
amount of hazardous waste during the
reporting year
AEBRBEFENRRAEEFEFTE
REEY)

Environmental Protection
BERE

Environmental Protection — Using

Resources Wisely
RIERE — SRER

Environmental Protection — Using
Resources Wisely
RERE —ERER
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General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Reference

—REERERENEZR BEAR 2Z

KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Environmental Protection —

RREIERA2.3

KPI A2.4
RABEEIEIZ A2 .4

KPI A2.5
RARAERUIEIRA2.5

initiatives and results achieved.
i 8 R B Ak g T B R TS AR ©

Description of whether there is any
issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

i SKEUE R KR L A R RE
A RRF KRt 8 R PTIS AR ©

Total packaging material used for

finished products (in tonnes) and, if

applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.

i&ﬁﬁ%uﬂuﬁﬁ% LR a8 (LANERT
H) R (nEmR) §EESBLLE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

[EMEA3 : IRIERARAER
General Disclosure

—fRINER

KPI A3.1
RS IEIR AS.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
WIREITAHRRERRANEREKE
REBHBR

Description of the significant impacts
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

MR EHHRBERRAEIRNE
AFENCDENEEEBRTENTE -

Promoting Sustainable Buildings,
Using Resources Wisely

RERE —HPIRETREE =
REIR

Environment — Promoting Sustainable
Buildings

RIERE — B RHEEREE

The Group did not encounter any
issue in sourcing water for daily
operations during the reporting year
AEENBEEENMEFEIESE
_ESRERGE A KRR R RE

Not Applicable — The Group’s
products do not require the use of
packaging material

TNER — SENERBACABEM
4

Environmental Protection
IRIRRE

Environment — Promoting Sustainable
Buildings

RERE — BT HERREE

BEBERRERARA 87
—E-N\FEH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HERE

IS -

General Disclosures and KPIs

—REERBREVIER

/I:l #& =

Disclosure

REAR

Reference

2%

Social — Employment and Labour Practices

HE —EEREIESR
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1 : EE
General Disclosure

—RIKE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[BEB2 : EREZS
General Disclosure

—RIREE

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and

dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

BRAF Bk RE  BERES  TE

e R FERE 2R

IS AR LA K H 455 38 R AR R Y

@ BXx: Kk

o) BFHBETABERFEMNES
ERLIROINERL

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

FERH 22 TIEFRRLRERES#

RBELEER

@ mXx:k

(o) BEBTFTHBEITABERZENIEH
ERLIROINERL
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Walking Along with Employees
B8 TRITT

Walking Along with Employees —
Taking Care of Employees’ Health and
Safety

HETRT —ERETRER
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General Disclosures and KPIs

—REERBREVIER

on =

RIE - 2 RESRE
Disclosure Reference
EEAR 8%

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[BHE B3 - #&E&IE
General Disclosure

—fRIN R

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BEB4 - BT R
General Disclosure

—fRINER

Social — Operating Practices

HE — EEEH

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS : fEHEE R

General Disclosure

—RIRE

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
EHRAEERITLIEBENAH R
KRBEHIBUER - fultiFgaE) o

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

labour.
BB IEE T okoadlss THY
(@ BE: K

(b) EFHEITAEEAT LI
EA RIS -

Policies on managing environmental
and social risks of the supply chain.

BIEHERNRE I ERERBR

Walking Along with Employees —
Training and Development
BB TRT — Bk ERE

Walking along with Employees —
Talent Acquisition and Retention
B8 TRITT — AT AR AR

Responsible Operation

BEENEE
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General Disclosures and KPIs

—REERBREVIER

HERE

/I:l #& =

Disclosure

REAR

Reference

2%

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[BHEB6 : EmEL
General Disclosure

—fRIN R

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[BEB7 : R&)5
General Disclosure

—RRIN R

920

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety,

advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of

redress.

BRFRME R MR EERL

2 EBE BEIKLBEEUREK

TR

(@ BE: K

(o) ETHBEITABERZENEHA
ERLIROIEVERS

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

BN ILFRES - 1R - MEFROERE

Y

(@ BeR: &

b) EFHBETABEAZENIEH
EREIROINERL
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Responsible Operation — Improving
Quality of Product and Services
BEANZE —RBAERKRBEEER

Qur Approach to Sustainable
Development; Responsible Operation
BRI FEERES BEIMNE
iE
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RIE - ENERBRE
General Disclosures and KPIs Disclosure Reference
—REERBREMIEE EEAR 8%
Social — Community
HEg —HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : (tEiRE
General Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on community engagement
to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’
interests.
BN RBERTREEMELR
FENEREEK LD SZEBLEN
AR ©

Responsible Operation — Caring for
the Community

BEANEE — BNBELR
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR R S TES S

EY:

To the shareholders of
Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanda Hotel
Development Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 100 to 295, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor's Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR R S TES S

Key audit matter

RREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFNEFNAEERRETSE

Fair value of investment properties

REYRZ A 1EE

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
investment properties, which were stated at fair value,
was approximately HK$3,345.2 million. Management
engages an external valuer to support its determination of
the fair value of the investment properties. The valuation
of the investment properties is highly dependent on
estimates and assumptions, such as prevailing monthly
market rents, prevailing market prices, the reversionary
yield, capitalisation rates, occupancy rates and market
knowledge. The use of different estimates and assumptions
could result in significantly different fair values.

The disclosures about investment properties are included
in note 3.4 “Summary of significant accounting policies”,
note 4 “Significant accounting judgements and estimates”
and note 18 “Investment properties” to the consolidated
financial statements”.

RZZB-)N\F+_A=1T—0 BRAAEBEIIKZKEY
KEREEA) /4 3,345,200,0008 7 - EIEEZ I — RN
HEMEDETREMEZAABE REMWEZMHET
BRURN S BMEF RRER - RTFEAMSHES - RiTH
BER - ERKEE BN E  HREEMSME -
RAETRNG RBERATEHAABEIREAER

BRREMENRBEINRAMEHRRMEATESS
BERIEE |~ MEE 4 EARFHE RG] ARMEE 181 &%
EmE] -

Our audit procedures included, among others, assessing
the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the external
valuer; reviewing the valuation report and holding discussion
with management and the valuer to understand and assess
the relevance and appropriateness of the valuation basis,
methodology used and underlying assumptions applied;
and obtaining and verifying the underlying data including
comparable market transactions used by the valuer. We
also involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used and
assessing the reasonableness of data used in the valuation
report, by comparing the prevailing monthly market rents,
prevailing market prices, reversionary yield, capitalisation
rates, occupancy rates with comparative cases in active
markets.

Moreover, we assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

BB EFRE (HHRE) IS HEm 2 EE -
BN REFBMN  EHGEERSLEERE R EEMT® -
AT BN ERE - A2 AR Z 8RR
RZBBEREE N MBI ZERBEER(B2REGE
BFTERAZAIBLEMIERS) - RPN ZREAMGEESR
KB RMIFHEAERA 2 RE LT A WEBKRTEAR
mHEHEE - MITHHER - EHEKER - ENMEELREE
AREERMIS 2 L BREPEITHE - FHABEREMER
REE AR -
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Independent Auditor's Report
B 2 B Eh RS

Key audit matter

RREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFNETFNAEERRETSE

Net realisable values of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

ERYFERFEC R T Y E ] BB FE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’ s properties under
development and completed properties held for sale
were stated at HK$3,113.7 million and HK$137.9 million
respectively, and they were carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. The determination of the net realisable
value is highly dependent on management’ s judgement
and estimates, such as assumptions of the expected sales
price and costs to be incurred until completion and sale.
The assumptions adopted in the valuation are affected
by expectations of future market or economic conditions.
To assist management with the determination of the net
realisable value, the Group has engaged an external valuer
to perform valuation of certain selected properties.

The disclosures about the net realisable values of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale
are included in note 3.4 “Summary of significant accounting
policies”, note 4 “Significant accounting judgements and
estimates”, note 22 “Properties under development”
and note 23 “Completed properties held for sale” to the
consolidated financial statements.

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—8 ESEEEVELGE
BT Y5 kA 3,113,700,000 % 7T & 137,900,000 7% 7T
PIBR - REFIMNA R BB FHEMERNKEZFIIR
BEEA2EFETEIURNEEEMHE R A5 - B
HIEERR T REEMELENERAIELRR o (AESHN
MBRREHARKT SR LBERRERNTE - BiBoHERE
BEErAER%E BESBECZBIEEMETET
EEYENMGE -

BRERYMERFECRTY R AR FENRBEIHINER
EMBHREAMESAI T ZSTBRME] - MF4[EXS
AHHIEN R hET ] MR 2[R R 23[FED K
s/

Our audit procedures included, among others, evaluating
the appropriateness of the estimated sales price by
comparing it with the recent sales price and recently
available public sales information of neighbouring
properties; and reviewing the reasonableness of the
construction costs to be incurred and estimated selling
expenses by reference to information such as project
construction budgets, development costs or budgets
of similar properties of the Group and the historical
selling expenses information. Additionally, we assessed
the objectivity, independence and competence of the
external valuer, and compared the net realisable values of
properties under development and completed properties
held for sale with the valuation made by the external
valuer to verify if there is any significant difference and to
assess the appropriateness of the conclusion made by the
management.

Moreover, we assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

BRI ETRFRE (P EE) Eefht EERIINE
BLREEMELMARABOHEEEFETLE -
ATEBZEEN  MEB2EHARREE - EXER
PME 2 HRAAKTFAESBEHERIENFTEN
A TEEZBZRRARMGHIHERX 2 AEME < 1o
HPRHESNEERMN B  BUMREE - YER
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR R S TES S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor's Report
AR R S TES S

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor's Report

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yee Chung Man.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE —F

—N\E+ZA=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —t 5
Notes $°000 $°000
BiteE T T
(Restated)
(g &%)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RS R
Revenue &= 6 1,019,791 656,380
Cost of sales SHEKAR (302,028) (191,610)
Gross profit EX 717,763 464,770
Other revenue H e as 7 10,406 8,845
Other net loss HAbBBF5E 7 (10,664) (99,092)
Net valuation loss on investment properties &% & ¥ (H{E & 18558 18 (423,327) (9,310)
Selling expenses SHERM Y (79,639) (98,688)
Administrative expenses TERX (168,662) (143,553)
Profit from continuing operations R R 2R T 45,877 122,972
Finance costs B KA 9 (130,268) (211,216)
Loss before tax from continuing BESEEK ZBRBIA
operations EB 8 (84,391) (88,244)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiisEiEe, (FAX) 12 17,853 (186,326)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM BEREXEB2ARFE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS EE (66,538) (274,570)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS mi@“%ﬁ
Profit/(loss) for the year IS TG 2 R FE
from discontinued operations /ﬁnﬁ“l |/ (E#8) 13 898,880 (379,669)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR REERF, (EHE) 832,342 (654,239)
Attributable to: L‘KF%I,EE’%TE :
Owners of the parent NEERA 766,716 (285,438)
Non-controlling interests 9H MR 65,626 (368,801)
832,342 (654,239)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable &2 5% EKRFHE AEE
to ordinary equity holders BRER, (EE)GBWL)
of the parent (HK cents) 15
Basic and diluted ERREE
— For profit/(loss) for the year — AEEmF (ER) 16.3 6.1)
— For profit/(loss) from
continuing operations — BB EER R (EE) 0.5 (1.2)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

28 .
,%/T (== é E LI& A

Year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+=-A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —EF—+tF
Notes $°000 $°000
BisE Fr T
(Restated)
(#e&E5)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF,(FHE) 832,342 (654,239)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HM2ME (&E) kA
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that H & HARI Al E# H BT ABRER
may be reclassified to profit or loss in ZEAMRE (EE) WA -
subsequent periods
Exchange differences on translation of & /BINERS 2 [E 5 =58
foreign operations (241,902) 492,552
Reclassification adjustments for REEHEBINETS
a foreign operation 2B EAE
disposed of during the year 38 5,130 540,235
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ZAEEEMEME (FE)
for the year, net of tax L ONE] ) (236,772) 1,032,787
Total comprehensive income AEEZHEINALEE
for the year 595,570 378,548
Attributable to: AT B IE e
Owners of the parent S RRIEA A 612,187 333,069
Non-controlling interests eI s (16,617) 45,479
595,570 378,548

BEBERRARLA 101
“E-N\FER



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

an =) jﬁ%ﬁﬁ/\ﬂl%‘%

—N\E+=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

At 31 December 2018 A==

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —EF—tF
Notes $’000 $'000
BT Fx Tt
(Restated)
(#&£&E7))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B MR 16 640,214 377,427
Freehold land KA FERE L 17 159,119 168,794
Investment properties B 18 3,345,150 3,934,631
Prepaid land lease payments T+ AR & FRIE 19 16,737 18,036
Goodwill EES 20 3,079 4,636
Deferred tax assets FEFR B E E 21 16,459 42,726
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 4,180,758 4,536,250
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties under development EEYE 22 3,113,666 1,878,000
Completed properties held for sale HEEBRIYE 23 137,898 239,665
Trade receivables =) GO 24 319,721 150,017
Prepayments, other receivables FARRIA B EIGRIA
and other assets &,ﬁ\ﬁﬂ?? 25 1,775,316 34,984
Contract incremental costs BAIEE KA 26 54,067 =
Other current assets %ﬁﬁm@) BE 5,707 8,374
Restricted bank deposits ZRREIRITIER 27 5,002 202,833
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EY 27 2,741,296 2,398,099
8,152,673 4,911,972
Assets classified as held for sale DBABELEZEE 13/28 — 10,277,000
Total current assets mENEELE 8,152,673 15,188,972
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables E%&E@F&iﬁ%ﬁ@ 29 4,575,797 5,953,445
Contract liabilities waE 30 118,218 —
Receipts in advance ?EHSZ/TA 63,974 67,945
Loans from financial institutions %%Em 31 46,088 183,849
Loans from an intermediate —F'ﬁ AR A BB
holding company 32 1,445,489 3,608,449
Other borrowings H A AR 33 12,821 213,518
Current taxation BIHARR 18 34 185,135 278,400
6,447,522 10,305,606
Liabilities directly associated with HAEARHERE 2
the assets classified as held for sale EEEZEBAZEE 13 - 3,007,294
Total current liabilities nREEERE 6,447,522 13,312,900
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,705,151 1,876,072
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERRBAE
LIABILITIES 5,885,909 6,412,322
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ra AR R 3R
,%/T (= E\ /R
At 31 December 2018 R=F—\F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\F T+
Notes $°000 $'000
B 5T F T+
(Restated)
(#e&E5)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Loans from financial institutions & R E R 31 1,146,769 1,631,087
Loans from an intermediate —fEPEIER AR ER
holding company 32 678,321 757,929
Other borrowings HAb{E R 33 372,771 73,565
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIEAE 21 480,657 594,018
Total non-current liabilities E S EDN=REF U] 2,678,518 3,056,599
Net assets BETAE 3,207,391 3,355,723
EQUITY S
Equity attributable to owners BARBEEAELER
of the parent
Share capital N 35 469,735 469,735
Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) {R&E % F, (25HE18) 290,498 (528,591)
Other reserves HAb{# 36 1,459,857 2,479,360
2,220,090 2,420,504
Non-controlling interests IS 987,301 935,219
Total equity e 3,207,391 3,355,723
Ding Benxi Ning Qifeng
T 85 EHE
Chairman Executive Director
E HITESE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GARBEDE

Year ended 31 December 2018 HEZ—F— \F+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (B 3 7A #ERASN

BABTTHIR)

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRTEE AR
Non-
Share Share Specid  Exchange Statutory Merger  Accumulated controling Total
Note capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
i3 Br ROEE  BAIEE  EXER  AERR  AUEER  ZiEE & FakEs fiEn
$000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $1000 $000 $000 $000 $1000
i Fr S T n S S n n T
(note 35) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36)
(Mitse)  (Witsp)  (Mitse)  (Wfse)  (Mitse) (M)
As at 1 January 2017 RoE-tE-f-A 469735 1,935,266 53544 (308,765) 101,194 - (267,965) 1,983,009 933811 2916820
Effect of business combination  ZXF#EH T
under common control LA 2 = = = (4,667) 3,103 = 27937 26373 = 26,373
As at 1 January 2017 R-E-tE-A-A
(restated) (fE5) 469736 1,935,266 53,044 (313432) 104,297 - (240,028 2,009,382 933811 2,943,193
Loss for the year rEEER = - - - - - (285438) (285438  (368801) (654239
Other comprehensive income  AEE £t 2E
for the year: WA
Exchange differences on BEENE
tranglation of foreign ZERER
operations — — — 294,366 — — — 294,366 198,186 492,552
Reclassfication adjustments ~ AFEHESIERZ
for a foreign operation Eiipap ik
disposed of during the year = = = 324141 = = = 324141 216,004 540,285
Total comprehensive EERARALE
income for the year - - - 618,507 - - (285,438) 333,069 45479 378,548
Contribution to an acquires of  ARELEL RIS T A
the business combination  EHAGRKKERR
under common control {ELEEE
by shareholders - - - - - 78,053 - 78,053 - 78,053
Diviclends paid to BERFERRRRE
non-controling shareholders — — — — — — — — (44,07) (44.07)
Appropriation to statutory HETEERES
reserve fund - - - - 3125 - (3,125) - - -
Asat31December2017 R=B-t%
(restated) T=A=t-H
(fE5]) 469,736 1,935,266" 53,544* 305,075 107,422 78,053" (628591) 2,420,504 935,219 3,355,723
" The amount is rounded to the nearest thousand and presented to zero. " SREEARESEBEIZ T TEE2Y AT -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE T — \F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATEEARLE
(Accumulated
losses)/
Retained Non-
Share Share Special  Exchange  Statutory Merger  earnings controlling Total
Note  capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve (ZitEiR)/ Total interests equity

i Ba  RBEE  KHBE  EXBRE  iERE  AERE  REEN & FERES fEs
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T P T T T i T T

(note 35) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36) (note 36)

(Wids)  (Wide)  (WiE36)  (MEE36) (W) (W)

As at 1 January 2018 R=E-N5-A-A 469,785 1,935,266 53,544 297,228 104,319 - (741,425) 2,118,667 935,219 3,053,886
Effect of business combination  E£E#2H T %5
under common control =i 2 - - - 7,847 3,103 78,053 212,834 301,837 - 301,837
Effect of adoption BB BRS
of HKFRS 15 ERZ15% 08 32 - - - (269) - - 53,852 53,583 39,906 93,489
As at 1 January 2018 R=F-NE-A-A
(restated) (&51) 469,735 1,935,266 53544 304806 107,422 78053 (474739 2474087 975125 3449212
Loss for the year rEERR - - - - - - 766,716 766,716 65,626 832,342
Other comprehensive (oss)/ ~ AEEEA2E
income for the year: (B#8) /A :
Exchange differences on BEBIET
translation of ZERER
foreign operations - - - (157,606) - - - (157,606) (84,296)  (241,902)
Reclassification adjustments ~ REEHEEINER
for a foreign operation ZENHERE
disposed of during the year - - - 3,077 - - - 3,077 2,053 5,130

Total comprehensive REERE(FR) WALE
(loss)/income for the year - - - (154,529) - - 766,716 612,187 (16,617) 595,570

Consideration for the business SR 5 T

combination under B ZRE

common control 2 - - - - - (878,000) - (878,000) - (878,000)
Capital contributions from ~ FEERRR 2 HE

non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - - 10,078 10,078
Acquisition of non-controlling B EFERR RS

intrests - 11,816 - - - - - 1816 (1951) (7,701)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR - - - - - - - - 53,961 53,961
Dividends paid to

non-controling shareholders 2 FZERRRRRS - - - - - - - - (15,729) (15,729)
Appropriation to statutory

reserve fund ERTITRES - - - - 1,479 - (1,479) - - -
Asat31December 2018  R=F-N%

+=-A=1-H 469,735 1,947,082 53,544* 150,277* 108,901* (799947 290498 2,220,090 987,301 3,207,391

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of i ZEREREEOEES MEIRARETYIRE
$1,459,857,000 (2017: $2,479,360,000) in the consolidated statement of RE E MR 1,459,857,000 0 (=B —+H4F :
financial position. 2,479,360,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AN Aol —1

,%/T (== Iﬁﬁ/ﬁi %‘:Z

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =T — \F+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

2018 2017
e L
Notes $°000 $°000
BiteE Fr T
(Restated)
(g &%)
Cash flows from operating activities K& ITHELCRERE
(Loss)/profit before tax BRFEAT (E518) R F)
From continuing operations R EFFEEE R (84,391) (88,244)
From discontinued operations RERIEEEFER 930,837 (384,084)
Adjustments for: BT SIBFE
Finance costs BB 9 130,268 211,216
Interest income from financial assets BRARBEF ABRER
at fair value through profit or loss ZEEEE 2N EWA 7 (14,207) (15,073)
Interest income MEUA 7 (10,406) (8,845)
Depreciation e 16 13,575 16,069
Amortisation of land lease payments + 5 A & FRIE 19 481 476
Impairment of trade receivables and B Z EWGRIA R
other receivables H At e FRIRR(E 339 442
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of subsidiary HEMBARZ (W) B8 38 (915,696) 329,707
Loss/(gain) on disposal of investment HEREME BB (W)
properties 7 3,820 (20,496)
Net valuation loss of investment AN EREFE
properties 18 423,327 9,310
Loss on disposal of items of HEMZE - KERZEEE
property, plant and equipment o iti=| 8 250 13
Impairment of goodwill EEEAED 7 1,377 11,719
479,574 62,210
Increase in properties under development — FEZEYDZELE N (1,290,850) (2,128,426)
Decrease in completed properties held — #{EHE 2 B 3% TR
for sale 105,090 18,415
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FE kI I AN (148,695) (492,917)
Decrease in prepayments and TR FRIE & A R YGRIE R
other receivables 516,629 77,284
Increase in contract incremental cost A HIE S RGN (11,506) —
Decrease in receipts in advance TEWRIE R A (2,429) (21,178)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B ENFIER
and other payables H h A 5RIB Ol A) /180 (170,403) 1,064,464
Increase in contract liabilities SRIEEIEM 123,654 —
Cash used in operations RETEFAZES (398,936) (1,420,148)
Taxes paid BEEHIE (104,869) (88,379)
Net cash flows used in RETEFAZ
operating activities REREFHE (503,805) (1,508,527)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/_ﬁ/\Iﬁlﬁ/)le%

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE T — \F+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bk 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
Notes $°000 $°000
B sE Fr T
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Net cash flows used in REEEFTA
operating activities ZHERETHE (503,805) (1,508,527)
Cash flows from investing activites REZHELECZEHLSRE
Purchase of items of property, plant BEME  BEX
and equipment Bl (347,235) (513,743)
Expenditure on investment properties WEWES T (20,263) —
Interest received EUFE 10,406 8,845
Interest income from financial assets at &2 A BE AR
fair value through profit or loss ZEREE 2 M EWA 7 14,207 15,073
Advance of a loan to a joint venture m—EEERERMIER - (1,658,392)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE  BEKLEEE
property, plant and equipment ZF5E0R 5 52
Decrease in restricted bank deposits SZPR HIER T 7f_ R 197,686 6,683
Increase in other assets Hoh & EEE N - (8,374)
Acquisition of a subsidiary under W — R HRRESIT 2
common control B)EERNG] (5,000) =
Overseas taxes paid on investing activities & /&8) 2 B /8N 1E (31,957) —
Proceeds received on debt from HEMBAREEZER
disposal of subsidiaries ZEH&ZF)’T?%?K 4,761,988 =
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBA 38 1,387,444 2,324,969
Net cash flows from investing activities IREFE iS22 RERE R 5,967,281 175,113
Cash flows from financing activities REEFHELEZESRE
Proceeds from new loans from BRSERE ERAEHKIE
financial institutions - 1,578,504
Repayment of loans to an intermediate A — R B A GEEERK
holding company (4,460,251) (1,107,941)
Increase in amounts due to an FEAS — AR AR A B SR IEE AN
intermediate holding company 633,431 2,465,773
Proceeds from other borrowings MRS 5B 167,494 73,565
Repayment of loans from financial EESREEER
institutions (609,992) (1,720,492)
Repayment of other borrowings EREMER (70,174) (74,958)
Interest paid ERFE (623,000) (170,703)
Capital injection from non-controlling FEdz Hxﬂxi&ﬁ
shareholder 10,078 —
Net cash flows (used in)/from BEEE (FTR) iz
financing activities REeREEHE (4,952,414) 1,043,748
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERFESEEY
and cash equivalents B, (i) B8 511,062 (289,666)
Cash and cash equivalents FUzBHE MRS EEY
at beginning of year 2,398,099 2,808,771
Cash and cash equivalents included STARBEREEE
in assets held for sale 2R KRR EED 13 - (344,686)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [EXR & &) 2 & (167,865) 223,680
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBERBESEEY
at end of year 27 2,741,296 2,398,099
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at The Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) is principally engaged in property development,
property investment, property management, development
and operation of hotel management, hotel design and hotel
construction management in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and overseas during the year.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”),
the immediate holding company of the Company is Wanda
Commercial Properties Overseas Limited (“Wanda Overseas”), a
company established in the British Virgin Islands and the ultimate

1.

NEAREEER

BEBEERBRAGTARA]D AR
BREAMKZZBRAR - XREZ
= it 3% == B 12 7 The Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street Hamilton HM12, Bermuda °

FR - ARAREMBAR (A TR
[REE D ETERPEARKME(TH
B RBIMEEMEER WERE
WMEERE BERR 2ERAEER
RS SR RBEEREERT -

ARREE(EFDRE - ARBZH
R AR RBEAREBESIFRA
A(&E8 ) —HAREBRLES
X2 AR)  RRBZREER AR A

holding company of the Company is Dalian Wanda Group Co., RNEBEEBRHERRAF - —HRF
Ltd., a company established in the PRC. BIR A2 AF]
Information about subsidiaries NG =
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: AAREEMBARZFREWT ¢
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered AD T REAE
and business share capital EZBEI Principal
Name MR ERITZER Direct Indirect activities
£ BRREEM R &N HiE A FTEEK
Amazing Wise Limited British Virgin 1,000 ordinary 53% = Investment
Islands shares of holding
United States Dollar
(“US$”) 1 each
EEBRLHS 1,000 I &A% TEZER
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIR&EEE&ER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows ARAREBWBAR ZFBUOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered RN T A
and business share capital EREI Principal

Name Rl oAV DRITLER Direct Indirect activities

=t B RE I = i AR AR EiE S FEEWR

Dalong Industrial Group Hong Kong $10,000,000 = 53% Investment
Limited holding

AREEZXEEEGR AR BB 10,000,000 7T REAR

Fujian Henglicheng Real Hong Kong $1,000 = 53% Inactive
Estate Development
(HK) Co., Limited

BREBNHEFEE(BH) BB 1,000 7T R
BRAF]

Fujian Henglicheng Real PRC Renminbi (‘RMB?”) — 53% Property
Estate Development 128,329,000 development
Co., Limited
(notes i and iii)

BREENMEFERE H Y AR MEER
BRAR] 123,329,000 7T
(B &Eii Riii)

Fujian Hengli & Savills PRC RMB500,000 — 29.15% Property
Property Management management
Co., Limited (note i)

BMTENE —KF H Y AR¥ 500,000 7T MEER
HgEHTYEER
BRAE (PN

Wanda Europe Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co. Ltd. (“Wanda
Europe”)

BEERMME BB 17T KA
KEBR AR

(BB )
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

NAREEER @)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) BARIER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows REEENB AR ZFIBWT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered RN T A
and business share capital EREI Principal

Name Rl oAV ERTEER Direct Indirect activities

=t B RE I = i AR AR EiE S FEEWR

Wanda Properties British Virgin 100 ordinary shares 51% = Investment
Investment Limited Islands of US$0.01 each holding

BEBXKREBRAR EERLES 100 R B AR E(E REAR

0.01 T2 EiBAR

Wanda Commercial Hong Kong $1 — 51% Investment
Properties Investment holding
Limited

BERFME BB 17T KA
KEBRAA

Guilin Gaoxin Wanda PRC US$180,000,000 — 51% Property
Plaza Co., Ltd. (note ii) development

EMNEEERES a3 180,000,000 37T MEER
BRAE (KL

Wanda Americas Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Wanda
Americas RE”)

BERINME B 17T HEER
KERR QA
(T&EEEME])

Wanda Americas United States 1,000 ordinary = 60% Investment
Commercial Properties of America shares of holding
Co., Ltd. (“Wanda ("USA™) US$0.1 each
Americas CP”)

(TWanda Americas CP ) ENBER 1,000 Fx &R EE TEZR
(F3EE 1) 0.1 &7T.2 &k

Wanda Chicago Real USA US$10 = 60% Investment

Estate LLC holding
ES 103E7T KA
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIR&EEE&ER @
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MBARER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows ARAREBWBAR ZFBUOT (&)
(Continued):
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered RN T A
and business share capital EREI Principal

Name Rl oAV DRITLER Direct Indirect activities

=t B RE I = i AR AR EiE S FEEWR

Parcel C LLC USA US$300,000,000 — 54% Property

development
e 300,000,000 37T MERR

Wanda Australia Real Hong Kong $1 60% — Investment
Estate Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (“Wanda
Australia RE”)

BERMNHEREBR AR BB 17T REAR
(I&EERNE])

Wanda Hotel Management Hong Kong US$H 100% = Investment
(Hong Kong) holding
Co. Limited (“Wanda
Hotel Management HK”)

BEAEEE (%) BRAF BB v TEZER
(IB=BEeE (FE)])

Wanda Hotel Management PRC US$10,000,000 — 100% Hotel
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (note ii) management
(“Wanda Hotel
Management SH”)

BEBAEEE (8 ARATA H Y 10,000,000 27T BIEE R
(B &Eii)

(IB2aE(H8)))

Horgos Wanda Engineering PRC RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Construction
Construction Management consulting
Consulting Company Limited
(“Horgos Company”) H AR #10,000,000 7T R

ERREETIREERERE
ZRERA AR ([EREAR])
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 sERE) +

1.
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

BABTTIIR)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

These entities are equity joint ventures established in the PRC.

i These entities are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in

the PRC.

ii Pursuant to a share transfer agreement (the “Agreement”) dated
22 May 2005 between Dalong Industrial Group Limited (“Dalong”),
a subsidiary of the Group, and Fujian Zhonglu Group Co., Limited
(“Zhonglu Group”), Zhonglu Group agreed to transfer 95% of the
equity of Fujian Henglicheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(“Fujian Henglicheng”) to Dalong, after which Fujian Henglicheng
became a subsidiary of Dalong. Zhonglu Group has since then
become the non-controlling equity holder of Fujian Henglicheng.
According to the Agreement, certain assets and liabilities related
to an old project commenced before the transfer were retained
by Zhonglu Group, the relevant risks and benefits of the aforesaid
projects were also retained by Zhonglu Group. Fujian Henglicheng
maintains separate books and records for this old project. On 25
January 2018, Zhonglu Group withdrawn its investment in Fujian
Henglicheng, but as at 31 December 2018, the relevant assets
and liabilities amounting to $51,023,000 (2017: $53,467,000) and
$10,772,000 (2017: $11,291,000) respectively still have not been
legally transferred. However, as the risks and benefits of these assets
and liabilities were retained by Zhonglu Group, these assets and
liabilities were excluded from the consolidated financial statements.

\Y% Except for the statutory financial statements of Wanda Europe,
Wanda Commercial Properties Investment Limited, Wanda Americas
Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd., Wanda Australia RE and Wanda
Hotel Management HK for the year ended 31 December 2018, the
statutory financial statements of the other subsidiaries of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018, or since their respective
dates of establishment or acquisitions by the Group, were not
audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of

the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists of the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND BUSINESS
COMBINATION UNDER COMMON CONTROL

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between the Company
and Wanda Commercial Properties (Hong Kong) Co. Ltd. (“Wanda
HK”) on 26 September 2017, the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Wanda Hotel
Management HK, an investment holding company of a group of
companies (the “Wanda Hotel Management Group”) at a cash
consideration of $878 million (the “Business Combination”). The
Business Combination was completed on 31 December 2018.

The Company and Wanda Hotel Management HK are both under
the common control of Wanda HK before and after the date of
acquisition, and that control is not transitory, hence the acquisition
has been accounted for as combination of entities under
common control by applying the principles of merger accounting
in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting
for Common Control Combinations” issued by the HKICPA.
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of Wanda Hotel Management
Group have been accounted for at historical amounts and the
consolidated financial statements of the Group prior to the
acquisition of Wanda Hotel Management HK have been restated to
include the results of operations and assets and liabilities of Wanda
Hotel Management Group as if the business acquired had always
been part of the Group.

2.

SHNEER HEEST 2
EBast

BIBEARREBEREME(BE) AR
AREl([BEFEBDR_ZE—+tFNA
ZHRBEIN 2 - AR RAIRGR
ENEEERE (B8 (—HAR (8=
BEERER]) 2IREERAR) 225
BT - 3£ {8 /878,000,000
T(EBEH]D EBEHERZZT
—N\E+-A=t+—H=/K -

Apmk&EEE (FER)RKERB A
BOEXBERBARES - BZEHIE
WIERE Bt - ZREFRCER
FRGEAGRMZ G IESIF 5K
[HEZHE AR HETE] A
Bt R ERKFZEHIER 2 A0
ARt BEEEEEEBEZEE
REEHRELSBRARK  MRKES
FEE (BR) A2 ARELEAMBRE
ELBEIINMATEEEERER 2 &
EERENANBERBE  BOAEER
B—ERAEEZ—8D -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND BUSINESS 2. EHEERHAEEHTZ
COMBINATION UNDER COMMON CONTROL ¥
(Continued)
The operating results previously reported by the Group for the AEBERER2BE_T—+tF+=
year ended 31 December 2017 have been restated to include the A=t HALEFE s KEFEECLET
operating results of the Wanda Hotel Management Group as set WA BZREEEEE 2 SEFEE -
out below: SR
The
The Group Wanda Hotel
(as previously Management The Group
reported) Group (Restated)
rEH BERE rEH
(AT 2%R) EEEE (f=E7)
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T T
Revenue ek 213,440 442,940 656,380
(Loss)/profit before tax FIECE TS 2
from continuing operations BRELAT (B51) i F (320,434) 232,190 (88,244)
(Loss)/profit for the year FECEHETS 2
from continuing operations FA(EE), & (459,467) 184,897 (274,570)
The financial positions previously reported by the Group at 31 AEEERERIRN_FT—tFET+=H
December 2017 and 1 January 2017 have been restated to =+—HER=ZZ—+tF—A—B2H
include the assets and liabilities of the Wanda Hotel Management BRAEKEIIAMABEREEES
Group as set out below: BeEERBE  FFEEAT :
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

2. EHEERHARIZEGT 2
3 SN Ee))

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND BUSINESS
COMBINATION UNDER COMMON CONTROL

(Continued)

31 December 2017 —ZEZ—tF+=-A=+—H

The
The Group Wanda Hotel
(as previously Management The Group
reported) Group (Restated)
rEH BERE rEH
(IAT23R) EHEE (f=E7)
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tt
Non-current assets B EE 4,520,263 15,987 4,536,250
Current assets MENE B 14,730,511 458,461 15,188,972
Current liabilities nRBEE 13,140,289 172,611 13,312,900
Non-current liabilities BB E 3,056,599 — 3,056,599
Equity s 3,053,886 301,837 3,355,723
1 January 2017 —Z2—+tH—HF—H
The
The Group Wanda Hotel
(as previously Management The Group
reported) Group (Restated)
rEH BERE rEH
(TnAT23R) EHEE (f=E7)
$'000 $'000 $'000
F7 T T
Non-current assets B EE 6,771,415 5,736 6,777,151
Current assets MENE B 9,868,786 225,864 10,094,650
Current liabilities MENEE 6,970,266 202,953 7,173,219
Non-current liabilities FEmEBEE 6,753,115 2,274 6,755,389
Equity T xx 2,916,820 26,373 2,943,193
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties which have
been measured at fair value. Disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell as further explained in note 3.4.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

3. REHERSTTHER @)

3.1

MR ELYE (12)
meEE

BE_T-N\F+_HA=t—HI
FE  HRUBHRRBEARFR
HB AR ZMHBHRE - B AT
RANRAFTE RS FEREGNER
(BEERILER) - EAKER2
BRI O A FTEE A5 B (3] Sk
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WX BRI E A BIERA B MR A
N M 2RISR - RIARE
B BRI E R F]
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o ARESELEMAEREERER
I NRHEER B HRIRE AR
HEESE - 85
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B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 35 sERR) +

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

For the business combination under common control,
the financial information of the Group and the acquired
businesses have been combined, as if the Group acquired
such businesses from the beginning of the earliest financial
period presented. The net assets of the Group and the
acquired business are combined using the existing book
values from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquired
business’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition at the time of
common control combination. The difference between the
consolidation and book value of the acquired business at the
time of common control combination is deducted into the
reserves of the Group.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

3. RREERS

3.1

3.2
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 2, amendments to
HKFRS 4 and Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle,
which are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements, the nature and the impact of the new
and revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments: classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.
The Group adopted HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018.
The Group has performed a detailed assessment
of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9, and
concluded HKFRS 9 does not have material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
therefore, no transition adjustment against the opening
balance in equity provided at 1 January 2018, and no
comparative information was restated accordingly.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position, including the effect of replacing HKAS 39’s
incurred credit loss calculations with HKFRS 9’s
expected credit losses (‘ECLS”).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3 X &L
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. HmEEERESTBER @)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 3.2 BIfBERRREZEEH (©)
(Continued)
(a) (continued) (@) (#&)
Classification and measurement (continued) DHERETE (B
A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under RZZE—N\E—HA—H8 &
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 BEBSFTERE 95 2K
as at 1 January 2018 (restated) is as follows: HEEBEREE BT B RE%E
BIZE 95k 2 FTE Rt sk (K E
H)) 2 EERAAT ¢
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
ERETEA BB
FEI9EE WEERFEIFFTE
Category Amount Amount Category
k=] &8 - k]|
$°000 $°000
T T
Financial assets EREE
Trade receivables B 5 EEIA L&R! 150,017 150,017 AC?
Financial assets included in T ATER FRIE K
prepayments and H fth FEUGRIA
other receivables L ERNEE L&R 32,026 32,026 AC
Pledged deposits BEEFER L&R 202,833 202,833 AC
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED L&R 2,398,099 2,398,099 AC
Financial liabilities SRS E
Financial liabilities included in 5+ AZ 5 & E b fEf+
trade and other payables HEZSBEE AC 5,953,445 5,953,445 AC
Loans from financial institutions & Bl & X AC 1,814,936 1,814,936 AC
Loans from an intermediate —fE AP AR
holding company NGII= &N AC 4,366,378 4,366,378 AC
Other borrowings HAb SR AC 287,083 287,083 AC
L L&R: Loans and receivables 1 L&R: B K JE Uk SR8
2 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised 2 AC: IRk AT EE 2

cost
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(a) (continued)

Changes to the impairment model

U)

Trade receivables

The Company applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected losses for all trade receivables.
To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. Future cash flows for
each group of receivables are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience, adjusted to
reflect the effects of current conditions as well
as forward looking information. Management
has closely monitored the credit qualities and
the collectability of the trade receivables. Trade
receivables in dispute are assessed individually
for impairment to determine whether specific loss
allowance provisions are required. The adoption
of the simplified expected credit loss approach
under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in any additional
impairment loss for trade receivables as at 1
January 2018.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(a) (continued)

Changes to the impairment model (continued)

(i)

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

For other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, including pledged deposits and financial
assets included in prepayments and other
receivables, the expected credit loss is based
on the 12-month expected credit loss. This
represents the portion of lifetime expected credit
loss that results from default events on the
financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime expected credit loss. Management
has closely monitored the credit qualities and the
collectability of other financial assets at amortised
cost and considers that the expected credit loss
is immaterial.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 9, the
Company has changed its accounting policies
with respect to financial instruments, as further
explained in note 3.4 to the financial statements.
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(@) (#&)

BHORERE (&)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and
key judgements and estimates. The disclosures are
included in notes 4 and 6 to the financial statements.
As a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group
has changed the accounting policy with respect
to revenue recognition in note 3.4 to the financial
statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method,
the standard can be applied either to all contracts
at the date of initial application or only to contracts
that are not completed at this date. The Group has
elected to apply the standard to contracts that are not
completed as at 1 January 2018.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

(b)

The cumulative effect of the initial application of

HKFRS 15 was recognised as an adjustment to the

opening balance of retained profits as at 1 January

2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 11,
HKAS 18 and related interpretations.

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial

statement line item was affected as at 1 January 2018
as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15:

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

MEEERSTTEBER @)

32 EFtBERRKE2SE (#E)

(%)

BHXER BB @RS 28
F1R L R EE AR
H-_T—\F—HA—HRZB
w2 A - Al
WESILRER - WEE
BIBBASELERIFE 115 -
BEASTAERIE 1858 K ABRE

BEE2W -

LA BIR N E BB 15 S 2
AIE 15 R =T — \F—
A—BEUBHREREEEL
LB

Increase/
(decrease)
i,
(m2)
Notes $°000
BaE Fix
Assets BE
Contract incremental cost BHPILERAR () 41,839
Assets held for sale HIELEEE () 51,650
Total assets BEE 93,489
Liabilities aE
Contract liabilities BHBE (i) 25,516
Other payables HAb T FRIR (iii 1,448
Receipts in advance TEUWRIR (i) (26,964)
Total liabilities RAafE i
Equity R
Retained earnings R BB E A () 53,852
Other reserves Hib A (iv) (269)
Non-controlling interests IR 2 (iv) 39,906
93,489
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b)

(continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 31 December
2018 and for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15. The adoption
of HKFRS 15 has had no impact on the Group’s
operating, investing and financing cash flows. The first
column shows the amounts recorded under HKFRS
15 and the second column shows what the amounts
would have been had HKFRS 15 not been adopted:

Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year

ended 31 December 2018:

3.

MEEERSTTEBER @)

32 EFtBERRKEZSE @)

(b)

(%)

LA BIR N E S 15 RS £
A5 = — \F+=
A=+—BEREE=ZZT—N
F+—A=+—HLEFES
MBHRREBEEACVES
B o MMBE B B iRE AR
FEISRWTEHAER 2K
g RERBERERES
R - aMBTRBERS
iSRS ERIE 15 mE Y
SR ME_WBRILEK
MBE B IS HRELERIE 155
-l

HE_ZT—/N\F+=A
=t+t—BItEEzHAER

x:
Amounts prepared under
BREATEAFER 2 £E
HKFRS 15 Previous
BRI HKFRS
WEER  AERME Changes
E15%% HEER 28
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
BizE T T T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  HHER® %K%
Revenue Yogs 1,019,791 1,019,791 —
Cost of sales SHERAR ) (302,028) (299,161) (2,867)
Gross profit E7 717,763 720,630 (2,867)
Selling expenses HERI X 0) (79,639) (95,318) 15,679
Finance costs BhE KA (il (130,268) (129,601) (667)
Loss before tax FELEEL 2
from continuing operations BrEi ARS8 (84,391) (96,536) 12,145
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM RBECEER L
CONTINUING OPERATIONS REFEE (66,538) (78,683) 12,145
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS #& IF 48 3%
Profit for the year BRI 2
from discontinued operations REEmA 898,880 930,140 (31,260)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEEEF 832,342 851,457 (19,115)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) (continued)

Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (continued):

MEEERSTTEBER @)

(b) (#&)

HE_ZT—/N\F+=A
=t+t—BItEEzHAER
xR(E) -

Amounts prepared under
BEATERR 5
HKFRS 15 Previous
BERUE HKFRS
HREER  BIEBHE Changes

$15% HiE%ER 2E
$°000 $°000 $°000
Tr Fr FTr
Profit/(loss) attributable to: AR B IEES
wmhl, (E8)
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZSPN 766,716 791,437 (24,721)
Non-controlling interests LS 65,626 60,020 5,606
832,342 851,457 (19,115)
Earnings per share BAREBREEA
attributable to ordinary EiESREFR
equity holders
of the parent
Basic and diluted BERREE
— For profit for the year — AFERF 16.3 16.8 (0.5)
— For profit from continuing — BB SRR
operations 0.5 0.6 0.1)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 3.2 BItBERBEEZEE (2
(Continued)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for HE_Z2— N+ = A
the year ended 31 December 2018: =+ —HIEFEZHFEEE
WA :

Amounts prepared under
BEATERRR 5
HKFRS 15 Previous
BERUE HKFRS
HREER  BIEBHE Changes

$15% HiE%ER -
$°000 $°000 $°000
Tr Fr FTr
Profit for the year AEREH 832,342 851,457 (19,115)
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EEE
Other comprehensive HIZHRRATREEH D BT A
loss that may Briks K2 HES
be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on BEBINEBZERER
translation of
foreign operations (241,902 (241,945) 43
Reclassification adjustments REEHEFINER
for a foreign operation LENDERAE
disposed of during the year 5,130 4,882 248
Other comprehensive loss rEEHMEEER
for the year, net of tax (HRRBIE) (236,772) (237,083) 291
Total comprehensive FEERHBRALE
income for the year 595,570 614,394 (18,824)
Profit attributable to: LT & BRI
Owners of the parent RAEHEA 612,187 636,600 (24,413)
Non-controlling interests IR (16,617) (22,206) 5,589
595,570 614,394 (18,824)

128 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2018



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 3.2 B BRREEZEE (&)
(Continued)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)
Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 RZE—NF+—A=1+—
December 2018: H 2R &SRR -

Amounts prepared under
BEATEARR 2 EHE
HKFRS 15 Previous
R HKFRS
HRELER  AEBREK Changes

#E15% A BE

Notes $°000 $°000 $°000

B aE Fr Fr Fr

Contract incremental cost BHIEER A 0) 54,067 = 54,067
Total assets BEE 12,333,431 12,279,364 54,067
Contract liabilities BHEE i) 118,218 = 118,218
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAM R HRIE (i) 4,575,797 4,569,636 6,161
Receipts in advance TEWGRIE (i) 63,974 188,353 (124,379
Total liabilities BafE 9,126,040 9,126,040 =
Net assets BEZE 3,207,391 3,153,324 54,067
Retained earnings REHF (i), i) 290,498 261,367 29,131
Other reserves H A (iv) 1,459,857 1,459,818 39
Non-controlling interests It S (iv) 987,301 962,404 24,897
Total equity KRS 3,207,391 3,153,324 54,067
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) (continued)

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 January 2018
and the reasons for the significant changes in the
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018 and the statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are described below:

(i) Accounting for costs incurred to obtain a
contract

HKFRS 15 specifies the accounting treatment
for costs an entity incurs to obtain a contract to
provide goods and services to customers. The
Group concluded that, following the adoption
of HKFRS 15, sales commissions and other
costs directly attributable to obtaining a contract,
if recoverable, are capitalized as contract
incremental cost. Prior to the adoption of HKFRS
15, those costs were expensed to profit or loss
when incurred. Therefore, upon adoption of
HKFRS 15, contract incremental costs were
increased by $93,489,000 as at 1 January
2018, $51,650,000 of which was classified
under assets held for sales, which resulted in
an increase in retained profits of $53,852,000,
a decrease in exchange difference of $269,000
and an increase in non-controlling interests of
$39,906,000.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(b) (continued)

U)

Accounting for costs incurred to obtain a
contract (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of
HKFRS 15 resulted in an increase in contract
incremental costs of $54,067,000, which resulted
in an increase in retained profits of $29,131,000,
an increase in exchange difference of $39,000
and an increase in non-controlling interests of
$24,897,000. Selling expense decreased by
$15,679,000 and cost of sales increased by
$2,867,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018.

Accounting for significant financing component
within transaction price

Generally, the Group receives long-term
advances from customers. However, from
time to time, the Group also receives short-
term advances from its customers. Prior to the
adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group presented
these advances as receipts in advance in the
consolidated statement of financial position. No
interest was accrued on the long-term advances
received under the previous accounting policy.

3. RREERS

TR (&)

SRTBRR B2 EE (&)

(b) &)

(i)

ERENMEERAZ
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 sERE) +

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)

(continued)

(i)

Accounting for significant financing component
within transaction price (continued)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, for short-
term advances, the Group used the practical
expedient. As such, the Group will not adjust the
promised amount of the consideration for the
effects of a financing component in contracts,
where the Group expects, at contract inception,
that the period between the time the customer
pays for the goods or service and when the
Group transfers that promised goods or service
to the customer will be one year or less.

Meanwhile, the Group concluded that there
is a significant financing component for those
properties selling contracts where the customer
elects to pay in advance considering the length
of time between the customer’s payment and
the transfer of properties to the customer and
the prevailing interest rates in the market. The
transaction price for such contracts is discounted
to take into consideration the significant financing
component. Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group would recognize contract liabilities for
the interest on the advances received from
customers with a significant financing component
and charged this to retained earnings. However,
based on the evaluation of the Group, there
was no such contract identified on the date of
adoption.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(b) (continued)

(i)

(i)

Accounting for significant financing component
within transaction price (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the adoption of
HKFRS 15 resulted in an increase in finance
costs of $667,000.

Consideration received from customers in
advance

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
recognised consideration received from
customers in advance as receipts in advance.
Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as
contract liabilities.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group reclassified $25,516,000 and $1,448,000
from receipts in advance to contract liabilities and
other payables as at 1 January 2018 in relation
to the consideration received from customers
in advance and value added tax for the sale of
properties, respectively.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(b) (continued)

(i)  Consideration received from customers in
advance (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, under HKFRS 15,
$118,218,000 and $6,161,000 were reclassified
from receipts in advance to contract liabilities and
other payables in relation to the consideration
received from customers in advance and valued
added tax for the sale of properties, development
and operation of hotels, hotel management
services, property leasing and management
services, hotel design and hotel construction
management services.

(iv)  Other adjustments

In addition to the adjustments described above,
other items of the primary financial statements
such as exchange differences and non-
controlling interests were adjusted as necessary.
Retained earnings were adjusted accordingly.

() Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity should
transfer property, including property under construction
or development, into or out of investment property.
The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definition of investment property and there is evidence
of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide
evidence of a change in use. The amendments have
had no impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives
or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency
and recognises a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as a
prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance of recognising the related item,
the entity must determine the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
The interpretation has had no impact on the Group’s
financial statements as the Group’s accounting policy
for the determination of the exchange rate applied
for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or non-
monetary liabilities is consistent with the guidance
provided in the interpretation.
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B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERESN + LB TIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 16 Leases!

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlemen’

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3,
2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

o No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. HmEEBEREFTBER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 3.3 EBEMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and continue to produce outputs.
Instead, the focus is on whether acquired inputs and
acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2020.
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B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 3.3 EBEMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets
and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use
asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-
of-use asset meets the definition of investment property
in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and
lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January
2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate the
comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability
at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at
the date of initial application. The right-of-use asset will be
measured at the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before the date of initial application. The Group
plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard on
lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as
of the date of initial application. During 2018, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment on the impact of adoption
of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated that right-of-use
assets of $4,681,000 and lease liabilities of $4,681,000 will
be recognised at 1 January 2019.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 lIssued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 3.3 EBEMEERERZE B

Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The amendments
clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied to
the net investment, which includes the long-term interests,
only in the context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments on 1 January 2019 and will assess its
business model for such long-term interests based on
the facts and circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019
using the transitional requirements in the amendments.
The Group also intends to apply the relief from restating
comparative information for prior periods upon adoption of
the amendments.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of
HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (jii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv)
how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without
the restatement of comparative information. The Group
expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FESHERHE

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FESTHBEREME®)

(Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets, completed
properties held for sale, properties under development,
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal
group classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

148 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2018

3.

MEEERSTTEBER @)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

FERMEERE

HWEERETR  XBASFHE
E(FE BEHRAEE RE
B ERTFIELEDE - FET
ME  REMERFRBDEE D
BRFEHENHEARIRRIN 1F
RERRE  EEMNAIKRESES
TUAfhE - BEMAKRESELE
EXReELBMUNERERE X
REARBERHEXRARSE
WL ERIBEETERE @ FRIFEE
WAELRAKEE EBINEME
ENEEMRINBRESRA - LB
T - AR E SRR E EFTERIIR
SEEBMTIUETE -

BEEEENEENRECHEER
H kel & sEEF R o A A
BER - fFrBRRSRERER
ERTISHEERERZEEE
R TE BB 2 T A A BR B AT B ER 47
BRRRE - RESIBT ARELR
MM EmRANEE BEEENRE—
Bz RASEERIF - BRIEZEETIA
BHEBEINR  EEEERLT @ R
BEEERREERNEHREESS
RERIE ©



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 3.4 FTEETTBEHE®)
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FEMEERMEE)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting REMERR - HHEEEETR
period as to whether there is any indication that previously BTN AR R EREEIE T
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may GFHERAIgEE R o WIFEZET
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable R A EIEEE T LAMGE o A
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment LATETE B E R AT Bl @ BB R (A FT
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there B - LRIERNEE (BB
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the BRON)BEBES A EE - HEZH
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount ENMSHRBEEEENBTFEL
higher than the carrying amount that would have been RBEHERBERSEM T AEENR
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no FeR8 (FBREMIITE ) - %
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. BB 18 RO B B A B A BRI AT AR
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the mk - RIEREETIAEREET
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, T~ EEEERAT  REBESNKD
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which B BREAENEREESSTBUR
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for BREE o

in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Related parties BEATL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: — I AR A BN E A B - {5
%A
(@ the party is a person or a close member of that @ ZARFE—ATHZALR
person’s family and that person BMZAL
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () Pl ek R T A S
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HEAEBEHEEEAFE
75
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) AAEEIAEETA
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; RIZEEBIEAR
or 279

BEBERRERAA 149
“E-N\FER



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 sERE) +

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

U)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity) ; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when
it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for
“Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (Continued)

RREERS

TR (&)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
residual values and useful lives for this purpose are as

3.4 TEEHBERME @)

ME- - BERKBUARIFTE

(&

FEDREMFT A ERFHNER
EMEHEYE - BEMREEE Z
RAZHRERE - RUtMEMBZ
EETRERAERFRMOT

follows:
Useful lives Residual values
A {52 F S 5 BE
Freehold land KAZEREL Not depreciated Not depreciated
WiETE AT E
Buildings BF 30 years 5%
304
Leasehold improvements HEMFERE Over the shorter of the Nil
lease terms and 5 years Fiia
RS FZBEE
Furniture, fixtures and equipment BRifh - BE KRB 3-5 years 0-10%
3-5%F
Motor vehicles RE 5 years 0-10%
5%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents renovation works in
progress and is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost mainly comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Properties under construction or development for future
use as investment properties are classified as investment
properties under construction. Such properties under
construction are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs, and stated at fair value, subsequent to
initial recognition, at each reporting date when fair value can
be determined reliably. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under construction
will be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
reliably determined or construction is completed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit

or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit

or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property
for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between
the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its
sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a
subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified as
held for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets classified as held for sale
are not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included
in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the
operating leases are credited to the statement of profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings

as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FESTHBEREME®)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
from 1 January 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

° The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under

HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributed to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value

through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way

purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
finance costs for loans and in other net loss for receivables.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 sERE) +

BABTTIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the assets.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. HmEEERESTBER @)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 TESTTBERBIE (&)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under HKAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 sERE) +

BABTTIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures

for which there has not been a significant increase in credit

risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit

losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase

in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is

required for credit losses expected over the remaining life

of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a

lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the

credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly

since initial recognition. When making the assessment,

the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the

financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a

default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of

initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable

information that is available without undue cost or effort,

including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when

contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,

in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial

asset to be in default when internal or external information

indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding

contractual amounts in full before taking into account any

credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset

is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of

recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the

effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under HKAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other net loss in
the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 sERE) +

BABTTIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1

January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as

hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus,

in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, directly

attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other

payables and interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends

on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings

are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting

would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or

loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the effective interest rate amortisation process.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Loans and borrowings (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the

statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of:
(i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the
policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)”; and (i)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the

cumulative amount of income recognised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERESN + LB TIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of (i) the amount
of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred
during the development period. The net realisable value of
properties under development is determined by establishing
the market values of the properties on an “as-if” completed
basis with appropriate deduction on construction costs,
professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable profit
margin.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total land and building costs
attributable to unsold properties. The net realisable value is
determined by reference to the sales proceeds of properties
sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management’s estimates
based on the prevailing market conditions, on an individual

property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination
is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be
recognised in accordance with the general guidance for
provisions above; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the guidance for revenue recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REEERSITER 2
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until
it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(@  Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised
at the point in time when control of the property
is transferred to the purchasers, generally on the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal
title of the completed property and the Group has
present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

(b)  Hotel management services

Revenue from hotel management is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.

(c) Investment property leasing and management services

Revenue arising from investment property leasing and
management is recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered.

(d) Hotel design and hotel construction management
services

Revenue arising from hotel design and hotel
construction management is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
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B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(e)  Provision of management services

Revenue from the provision of management services is
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 34 FESTHBEREME®)
(Continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018) WaRER (R - NF—A—
BAIER)

Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of REFREBBRPLENMEEEY

business is recognised when all the following criteria are met: WS DA T 2 BRI P AR,

(@)  the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the @ YEEBEIENRRKE
properties have been transferred to the buyers; WHOEERERT

(b) neither continuing managerial involvement to the () AKEWERE —REMSE
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective BEBEFEE R
control over the properties is retained; ERR IR

(c) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; (0 WEeTasLHn] FEHFI=

(d) it is probable that the economic benefits associated 0 HXRXFHIEEZLEN=RR
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and BERARER : &

(e) the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the € RHBELERGESEZKAR
transaction can be measured reliably. RESAME A SEHBET = ©

The above criteria are met when construction of the EREMENEZLREELTT

relevant properties has been completed and the Group has AEE B RS HABEBATSEEE 2

obtained the project completion report issued by the relevant HEZTIRE BEMEERNTE

government authorities, the properties have been delivered Fﬁﬂé\ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁuﬁlﬂlﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ

to the purchasers, and the collectability of related receivables THRF - R AE EER o Eﬁ@ﬂ

is reasonably assured. Payments received on properties sold a5 B AT & W FTIE 2 5k

prior to the date of revenue recognition are included in the RERE ﬁﬂ%‘ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ‘ﬁ’ﬁm@ﬁﬁ °

consolidated statement of financial position under current

liabilities.

Rental income derived from the lease of the Group’s AEEMFEHEEE 2 HEWAR

properties is recognised on a time proportion basis over the FRF P EE BIAFE B O TERR ©

lease terms.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Property management fee income derived from the provision
of property maintenance and management services is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received
a consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays the consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment
is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.
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B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Contract incremental costs (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@ The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract incremental costs are amortised and
charged to the statement of profit or loss on a systematic
basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to
which the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs
are expensed as incurred.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. HmEEERESTBER @)
POLICIES (Continued)
3.4 TESTTBERBIE (&)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for
all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Certain subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
pension schemes operated by the respective governments.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the pension
schemes is to pay the required ongoing contributions.
Contributions under the schemes are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the pension schemes.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, that is, assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING 3. REHERSTTHER @)
POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 FEETHRBE B

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with
the exception of monetary items that are designated as
part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and a joint venture are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas companies which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers under sale of

properties

The Group applied the judgements that significantly affect
the determination of the timing of satisfaction of sale of
properties. The Group concluded that revenue for sale of
properties is to be recognised at the point in time because
the Group does not have an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date in case of pre-completion
sales, and accordingly, the criteria for recognising revenue
over time are not met. The Group expects to recognise the
sale of properties until the point in time at which the Group
delivers the properties to the purchasers.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are leased
out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-

occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual
property basis to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an investment
property.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

(iv) Classification between investment properties and

properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Judgement is made by management on determining
whether a property is designated as an investment property
or a property held for sale. The Group considers its intention
for holding the properties at the early development stage of
the related properties. During the course of construction,
the related properties under construction are accounted for
as properties under development included in current assets
if the properties are intended for sale after completion,
whereas the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current
assets if the properties are intended to be held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of
the properties, the properties held for sale are transferred
to completed properties held for sale and are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value, while the properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are
transferred to completed investment properties and are
subject to revaluation at the end of each reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below:

(i) Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are measured at
fair value, which were revalued based on the appraised
market value by an independent professional valuer. The
fair value for completed investment properties was arrived
at by considering the capitalised income to be derived from
the existing tenancies and the reversionary potential of the
properties or, where appropriate, by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the
surrounding areas. The fair value of investment properties
under development was determined by establishing the
market values of the properties on an “as-if” completed
basis with appropriate deduction on construction costs,
professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable margin.
The determination of the fair value for completed investment
properties requires the Group to estimate reversionary
potential of the properties while for investment properties
under development, estimates on costs to be incurred and
future margin are required in the valuation.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2018 was $3,345,150,000 (2017: $3,934,631,000).
Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, are stated in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2018 was $3,079,000 (2017: $4,636,000). Further details
are given in note 20.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to CIT in Mainland China. As a result
of the fact that certain matters relating to CIT have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations
and other related policies are required in determining the CIT
provision to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will have an impact on the CIT expense and CIT
provisions in the period in which the differences are realised.

4. ERGRTHER MA@

T THEEN (9

(ii)

(iii)

R E

AEBELEFRAGRBERSEE
WE - EERKESE T HENSE
CELBMNFEREEE TR -
HFERERETHERN  AXEEE
EhERSEEBNEENTERE
RIS HE - RFREREOIE
EEETHRERENRE - R=-F
—N\FE+-A=1+—BHBENER
8 &3,079,000 (= F — 4 :
4,636,0007T) ° #E—HFFIFE KT
F£20°

REIEEREB (T RERS
i)

AEBAETBEAHNEERS
B o HRETEXEMSHARER
HARGEE IR HER - BRI
BIRITRUE - AR M EMABRBCR
MR B ERT M ETROR E R B R
PSR S © HxSFEN
R ERPIASK B R Ia R &
BFEZR  AERZEESTEE
RERZHNEEAEHA ki
EFSTERE -

BEBERREERAA 193
“E-N\FER



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4, BEREFTHE R G

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv) PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

(v)

LAT in Mainland China is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and other
property development expenditures.

When calculating the LAT, the Group needs to estimate
the deductible expenditures and makes judgement on the
relevant tax rate on an individual property basis under the
relevant applicable tax laws and regulations. Given the
uncertainties of the calculative basis of LAT to be interpreted
by the local tax bureau, the actual outcomes may be higher
or lower than that estimated at the end of the reporting
period. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the LAT expense and LAT provision in
the period in which the differences are realised.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vi) Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in
note 24 to the financial statements.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vii)

(viii)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its items of
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of items
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitors’ actions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying value of an item of property, plant and
equipment is reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting
policy as disclosed in note 3.4. The recoverable amount of
an item of property, plant and equipment is calculated as the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use, the
calculation of which involves the use of estimates.

Net realisable value for properties under development and

completed properties held for sale

The net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sales proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management’s estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions, on an individual property basis. The net realisable
value of properties under development is determined by
establishing the market values of the properties on an “as-if’
completed basis with appropriate deduction on construction
costs, professional fees and interests to be incurred from the
valuation date to completion as well as a reasonable profit
margin.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, over 73.9% of the
Group’s overseas assets was classified as discontinued operation
and the disposal had been completed in 2018. Since then, the
Chicago project in America is the only remaining overseas property.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company acquired
the entire issued share capital of Wanda Hotel Management
HK, which was considered to be a business combination under
common control.

As a result of the disposal of these overseas properties and the
Business Combination mentioned above, the Group changed
the structure of its internal organization in a manner that caused
the composition of its reportable segments to change. For
management purpose, based on the incorporation of the new
business, the Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their operations
and the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and returns
different from those of the other operating segments. The Group
has four reportable operating segments and the corresponding
items of segment information for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been restated. Particulars of the Group’s reportable
operating segments are summarised as follows:

(@) development and sale of properties, including primarily
commercial and residential properties;

(o) leasing and management of commercial properties held by
the Group for long-term investment;

(c) development and operation of hotels, hotel management
services and

(d) hotel design and hotel construction management services.

5.

HE_T—+F+-_A=1+—BHLEFE
N AEEEBIRT73.9% 2 BINEEDHE
REIEREEBIENR T N\FxX
HE o Wi - XBZ AR R — R
NZBINDE -

HE_T-N\FT+-A=1+—BHLFE
A ARFCBRBEEBRE(FE) 22
MEBRTRA - ZERERAR B LRE
BN XA -

EETZEBINELER EREBE
HHg - ARBREAEABABRE &
BARGDI 2 EAKHE - LEEM
5 REBEFMANES  AEELZEH
EBTRBEEEALRENERR
ARAG B AN A B4 Ko B B IR o AN [E
EEZE D F DRI R — R Em &
AR# 2 REG RIS EEAL - AT b 0 L &%
Bl EEME LD EEE TR - AEH
RAMERSKLEDH AEBIEE
ZE+tHF+ZA=+—RHLFEZH
MEMZEREERR - ARERELED
B FHEHR T

S

(@) MEREBERLEE FZEEBER
EEME

b) AEEFHERMREZBRVELZ
HERERE

(€ JEEER- - 2ENEEERRE
&

(0 DEERRBEEZRERRY -
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is measured by adjusted profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations is measured consistently with the
Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations except that
finance costs, other net loss, other revenue as well as unallocated
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, deferred tax assets, restricted
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated
head office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on
a group basis.

5.

KBETEER @)

BEEIHAERASESEENBHE
B OREMA D EEREFERA -
DBREDERBRESBEF,(BE)
EITAE - MRS DR, (R Ts
R BIRE B KR BRBANER,
(BR)FE - HELLEBZEPER
BanE A, () 2F 8 NEALE
BB EEE 2B BNEN Z 5 &7
A—B R EST AL TN BEREK
R HEEFERE - Al AR
[N ONCIa

DHEETBREEE ETRBEEE -
XREIBITER  REMRSFEYNA
REMADERELRABEE - JhAR
AEEERMEEEETER -

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, loans from DEEBBEIRFELEHIEEE &R
financial institutions, loans from an intermediate holding company, BER  —HTPRERZERAFRER - Hi

other borrowings, tax payable and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis.
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(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2018

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

5. BEDEER @)

BE-_Z-\F+-A=+t—HLFE

Development
and
operation  Hotel design
Investment of hotels, and hotel
properties hotel construction
Salesof leasingand management management
properties management services services Total
BERRE - BEERHK
RENE  HEREE BIEER
HEME  HEREE EERE ERRE @t
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000
T T T Tr T
Segment revenue: 2 E U
Revenue from SRS B
continuing operations 187,522 188,685 429,181 214,403 1,019,791
Segment (loss)/profit 2 (FR) RA (3,250) (284,670) 236,310 116,680 65,570
Reconciliation: #k -
Other net loss HiEE 58 (10,664)
Finance costs BEMKA (130,268)
Other revenue Hinlizs 10,406
Corporate and other unallocated A R EMA D EFI S
expense (19,435)
Loss before tax from FEEEER
continuing operations BT ATEE (84,391)
Segment assets THEE 3,361,148 3,363,487 829,078 267,522 7,821,235
Reconciliation: H
Corporate and other unallocated ~ AFI R EMADTLEE
assets 4,512,196
Total assets BEE 12,333,431
Segment liabilities AHEE 1,238,634 66,044 264,819 82,470 1,651,967
Reconciliation: #Hik -
Corporate and other unallocated A AR EMANEAE
liabilities 7,474,073
Total liabilties Baf 9,126,040
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)
Other segment information
Year ended 31 December 2018
Investment
properties

Salesof  leasing and

properties management

KBETEER @)

N,

Ht

okt

BE R
BE-F-\F+-A=t—BLEE

Development
and
operation  Hotel design
of hotels, and hotel
hotel construction
management management
services services Total

BERR - BERR

REWE EEREE BEER
HEWE  HEREE B EERF @t
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Tr Fr Fr
Impairment loss recognised ERBRRER
in the statement of profitorloss 2 REEE - 146 199 99 444
Impairment loss reversed BB
in the statement of profitorloss 2 JfESE - - (37) (68) (105)
Depreciation and amortisation EREHE 10,744 1,074 1,055 1,183 14,056
Capital expenditure* BARX 444 20,291 275,152 919 296,806

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, prepaid land lease payments,
construction in progress, freehold land and leasehold improvement.
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KRR by | D22~ IN .
5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KEDBER @)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—t&+-A=+—HLEE
Development
and
operation  Hotel design
Investment of hotels, and hotel
properties hotel  construction
Sales of leasingand  management  management
properties  management services services Total

BEEER - BERTR
REWE  2EREE BERR

HEWE  HEREE B R BRI @5t
$:000 $:000 $000 $:000 $000
T T T T T
Segment revenue: DEER -
Revenue from continuing SRS
operations 33,748 179,692 368,546 74,394 656,380
Segment (loss)/profit A8 (8B8) /BF (130,852) 130,724 186,921 44,453 231,246
Reconciliation: H
Other net loss HiBEFE (99,092)
Finance costs BERA (211,216)
Other revenue Hvlas 8,845
Corporate and other unallocated ARl R EMADEHS
expense (18,027)
Loss before tax from SRICE R
continuing operations BT RIEE (88,244)
Segment assets PHEE 2,188,957 3,950,567 572,428 82,186 6,794,138
Reconciliation: #Hig
Corporate and other unallocated A AR EMA DB EE
assets 2,654,084
Assets related to a discontinued 4 | HE & E
operation IEE 10,277,000
Total assets BEE 19,725,222
Segment liabilities THEE 603,384 18,779 94,588 45,756 762,507
Reconciliation: H
Corporate and other unallocated ~ ARl REMANE AR
liabilities 12,599,698
Liabilities related to a discontinued #& I & %55 7 FBIAE
operation 3,007,294
Total liabilties BaE 16,369,499
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KEDBER @)
(Continued)
Other segment information Hith oy FER
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZF-—t5T-R=T-RLEE
Development
and
operation  Hotel design
Investment of hotels, and hotel
properties hotel  construction
Sales of leasingand  management  management
properties  management services services Total
BERRE . EERGR
REME  EERBE BIEER
HEME - HERER B R BERH st
$000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
T T Tt T T
Impairment loss recognised ERBRRER
in the statement of profitorloss 2 REEE - = 1,147 — 1,147
Impairment loss reversed BB
in the statement of profitorloss  ZREEE - - (705) - (705)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREE 9,450 1,147 160 5,788 16,545
Capital expenditure* BAT — 67 243,307 = 243,374

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment, investment properties, prepaid land lease payments,
construction in progress, freehold land and leasehold improvement.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(Continued)
Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
locations of (i) the Group’s revenue of continuing operations from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s non-current assets of
continuing operations (excluding deferred tax assets) (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of revenue
from external customers is based on the locations at which the
services were provided or the properties were sold or leased. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based
on the physical locations of the assets, in the case of fixed assets,
and the locations of the operations to which they are allocated, in
the case of goodwill.

KBETEER @)

tEER

TREJNEBOAKRERBINSELZ
HBREXBRER (W AEEFERE
EBZERDEE(TBRERELENAER
ZE) ([BEFRBEE]) ZHEUEER
ko RBINBEP 2 WS 2 IR E TS
REBFIRHRG XA EXHENELZ
PREH T IE © $EEFFMBNE B 2 IR {L
ENREEZERUE(HEEEEM
SIRESRzEEME(REEMS)
MiE °

Reportable segment

revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RENMBEFZ
W& Db R EBEFRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+F ZB-N\F —TLF
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000
Fr T Fr T
(Restated) (Restated)
(r&:751) (FeE:751)
The PRC H
(including Hong Kong) (BEEH) 1,017,272 655,626 3,382,696 3,978,073
Overseas N 2,519 754 781,603 515,451
1,019,791 656,380 4,164,299 4,493,524
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W LR hva | D2 IN L
5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REpHER =
(Continued)
Information about major customers EREFERFZEHR
During the year, the Group made sales to certain groups of major FA-AEERETEERFARN(E
customers, which are known to be under common control, the MZHEIEH)ETHE  REZER
revenue from which individually contributed to more than 10% of P U R (B RGN 5 [ 7% R S AR e e
the Group’s total revenue for that year. The analysis for 2018 and 10%° ZE—N\FRZE—LF 2N
2017 is as follows: R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
(Restated)
(g£=5)
Customer A EFEA 192,079 77,929
Customer B =FB 317,528 49,382
Customer C EFC 89,949 319,166
Others E At 420,235 209,903
1,019,791 656,380
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6. REVENUE 6. Wz
Revenue from continuing operations consists of the following for HE_Z-—N\GFE=-_ZF—+tF+=A8
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017: =+ RHIEFE  REBELEXEB 2

W BRETIISA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
(Restated)
(F&E3)
Revenue from contracts with K EEFE# 2Kz
customers
Sale of properties SHEME 187,522 33,748
Property management services Y5 B 1 R TS 20,886 25,249
Hotel management services BB IR RS 429,181 368,546
Hotel design and B JERET &
hotel construction B Rk TR AR TS
management services 214,403 74,394
Revenue from other sources KEBEMFRZ Wz
Rental income HE WA 167,799 154,443
1,019,791 656,380

BEEERRARAT 205
—E-NEFR



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

6. REVENUE (continued) 6. Wz @)
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHNZWE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () oHFBEZER
2018 2017
—E-\FE —E—+F
$°000 $'000
F Tt
(Restated)
(#e&E5)
Revenue from contracts REFEFEHNZ WS
with customers
Recognised at a point REERFEERER
in time
Sale of properties SHEWZ 187,522 33,748
Recognised over time R—BERBAER
Property management Y2 E IR AR TS
services 20,886 25,249
Hotel management services  BEJEEIRR 429,181 368,546
Hotel design and hotel B G R T RO 5 2R R B TR AR TS
construction management
services 214,403 74,394
851,992 501,937
Revenue from other R B H A RIF Z W=
sources
Rental income HBWA 167,799 154,443
1,019,791 656,380
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

0]

(if)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

6. W)
REBEFEHN W= (2)

() DFBREzERE)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue TRINRARE BB AR 2 W
recognised in the current reporting period that were included S8 BESEEFTAREHT 2
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting ERAE - WA BTBRRER 2
period and recognised from performance obligations satisfied BHEFEFER &

in previous periods:

2018
—
$°000
Fr
Revenue recognised that was included in contract Bt AmERzEHEE
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: Z BRI
Sale of properties HEMZE 13,747
Property management services MEETE RS 8,643
Hotel design and hotel construction B TE St BB JE a5 B AR S
management services 780
23,170
Performance obligations (i) BHEME
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is EEAREBRBAE T 2 BRI
summarised below: T
Sale of properties HEYZE
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the ERE(—RBEBRENF)E -
properties and payment in advance is normally required. BB 408 T ERK -
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(if)

Performance obligations (Continued)

Hotel management services, hotel design and hotel
construction management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days
from the date of billing.

Property management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and short-term advances are normally required
before rendering the services.

Except the performance obligation in relation with hotel
design services, all of other remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised within one year.

The transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
of hotel design services as at 31 December 2018 are as
follows:

6. W)

REBEFEHN 2Nz (&)

(if)

BHEEE)

B E BRI E AR AT R L E
RETBIRF

BRIEEREE SR RIS N — RS
MR R — RN %R B HIER 30
B AZIEIR K

YR EEEIRE

[BRIEEREE SR RIS N — R A
PR K — ARZA R R AR AT ER AR
FEEAEAGK o

bR BB R RAT RIS A 2 BOEE
S 2EPEARER T 2 BB (LT
R—FRER

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—H ' »
REEBERAIRE B TERNORE
(REZER LD REENX) 2R 5
BRRT

2018
—8-N\%F
$°000

Fr

—FR
Bl

Within one year
More than one year

145,200
339,407

484,607
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7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET LOSS 7. Efttam Kk A E R
An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and other net loss from NEBFEL S 2 H b e RHEA
continuing operations is as follows: EERFELTWT -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —EF—+tF
$°000 $000
Fr T+
(Restated)
(F&E3)
Other revenue Hit gz
Bank interest income ERITH B HA 10,406 8,845
Other net loss HAih &8 55
Exchange loss M 18 (29,559) (120,380)
Impairment of goodwill EER(E (1,377) (11,719
Forfeiture of deposits from RWERL®
purchasers 3,019 1,020
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEREME > (Bi8) WS
investment properties (3,820) 20,496
Other interest income from financial XA BETABDRZ SMEE
assets at fair value through 2 E At A WA
profit or loss 14,207 15,073
Others Hit 6,866 (3,582
(10,664) (99,092)
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== Ay L LRI 1 P2 AY N AL -
8. LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 8. HEKEXB ZRIANE
OPERATIONS =]
The Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived REEFEREEG 2 BRTAIER K
at after charging/(crediting): kR (BEA) TFIEB &ESK -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Notes $°000 $°000
Bt e Fr T
(Restated)
(#eE:5)
Cost of properties sold BEYERAR 117,835 29,541
Cost of services provided PRt AR 7S 2 A AN 184,193 162,069
Depreciation e 16 13,575 16,069
Amortisation of land lease payments 370 & 7k I8 & 54 19 481 476
Impairment of goodwill EEYERED 20 1,377 11,719
Minimum lease payments under S FERT Z £ &
operating leases EFLEHERe
for land and buildings 6,076 16,113
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE <
— Annual audit services — FEZE RS 1,110 1,074
— Non-audit services — IERZERPRTS 3,220 1,846
Employee benefit expense EERFIRX
(excluding directors’ (TRIEZEEHM (FIEE10))
remuneration (note 10))
— Salaries, wages and other — e TEREMER
benefits 112,538 99,659
— Contributions to defined — [FIERBHFURARETEIEL
contribution retirement plans 2R 4,548 3,074
117,086 102,733
Foreign exchange differences, net  [& &, = 58/5%8 29,559 120,380
Impairment of financial assets SRIEERE
Impairment of trade receivables H 5 rEWEIE K
and other receivables H At R IBRIE 24, 25 339 442
Direct operating expenses BRe 2 IREYEESE
(including repairs and LB ERY
maintenance) arising on (BREFERERE)
rental-earning investment
properties 18,840 17,152
Change in fair value of investment & MZE Q1 EEES
properties 18 423,327 9,310
Bank interest income RITHLEHA 7 (10,406) (8,845)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEREME 2 BB (W)
investment properties 7 3,820 (20,496)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - BERERHEE
property, plant and equipment B8 250 13
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BB
An analysis of the Group’s finance costs from continuing REBFELEEB 2 BERADITIA
operations is as follows: N
2018 2017
—E-N\E —EF—+tF
$°000 $000
F T+
(Rastated)
(ES)
Interest on loans from financial SRIBEE A S
institutions 75,448 82,849
Interest on loans from an AEANEE 2 —HREZERAR
intermediate holding BERFE
company repayable within
five years 78,892 125,192
Interest on other borrowings HABE TR 30,433 34,364
184,773 242,405
Interest expense arising from WA KIEEZFERY
revenue contracts 667 —
Less: Interest expenses capitalised & : EE AL EERZYENFERE TR
into properties under PNz
development and
construction in progress * (55,172) (31,189)
130,268 211,216
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at rates ranging from * BREABIRSTFENT3.8% E5.0% 2
3.8% to 5.0% per annum. ML RERE o

BEEEERRERAF 211
—2—\FEH



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Chapter 622G of the Laws of
Hong Kong), is as follows:

10. EEE N

FARE LR REBREUES (A
=l 6228 ) 5383(1)a@) * (b) ~ (0 &
MIERAR (REZEEMZER) R0 (F
HEEBIE62GE) oM BERECESH

[

2018 2017
—E-N\EF T —tF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
(Restated)
(&&E7))
Fees we 526 463
Other emoluments: HibH g
Salaries, allowances and e EMREYREF
benefits in kind 9,818 1,017
Pension scheme contributions BRIREGET IR 222 35
Discretionary bonuses BB AL 3,764 603
13,804 1,655
14,330 2,118
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10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) 10. EE% ™M )
Directors’ remuneration is as follows: EEHMMT
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
Ea R 11913 Bire
ok ENEA MERA REGEEN st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T Tr Tr Tr T
2018 —E-)\F
Chairman and FRFIENTES
non-executive director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TARGEE - - - - -
Executive director: HIES:
Mr. Ning Qifeng BEHIESE - 9,818 3,764 222 13,804

Independent non-executive  BMIFHITEE :

directors:
Mr. Liu Jipeng E)) e 139 - - - 139
Dr. Xue Yunkui HESET 139 - - - 139
Mr. He Zhiping (appointed on A& FLE(R=ZE—N\F

28 March 2018) =Rt N\BEZME) 248 - - - 248

Non-executive directors: FHTEE

Mr. Zhang Lin SRR AE - - - - -
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris TEEE

(resigned on (RZZ—N&E

13 February 2019) ZBT=HE) - - - - -

526 9,818 3,764 222 14,330
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10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

10. ESHM @

Directors’ remuneration is as follows (continued): BEEFBT (&) -
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e ERR Y
e EWER HIETEAL SRR Fr st
$000 $:000 $:000 $:000 $000
T T T T T
2017 (Restated) T F(8E75)
Chairman and FRFFHTES -
non-executive director:
Mr. Ding Benxi TAHEE - = = = =
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Ning Qifeng EFEEE
(appointed on (R=E—tF
17 November 2017) +—A++tBEZMA) - 1,017 603 35 1,655
Mr. Liu Chaohui Bl L
(resigned on (RZT—+F
17 November 2017) +—A+tAEH) = = = - -
Independent non-executive BV IFHITES :
directors:
Mr. Liu Jipeng e Fl ey e 100 - - - 100
Dr. Xue Yunkui HEEEL 100 - - = 100
Mr. Zhang Huagjao FIBRE 263 - - - 263
Non-executive directors: FHTES :
Mr. Zhang Lin RARLE
(appointed on (RZE—tF
17 November 2017) +—Bt+tBEZRT) - = = = =
Mr. Hui Yung, Chris TREAE
(appointed on (R=Z2—tF
17 November 2017) +—B+tBEZA) - = = = -
Mr. Qi Jie BEREE
(resigned on (RZZ—tF
17 November 2017) T—AttREE) - = - - -
Mr. Qu Dejun HEE A
(resigned on (RZT—tF
17 November 2017) T— AT+ HEE) - = - = -
463 1,017 603 35 2,118

TR MBEEEREXFBRETAF
Mz 2 (ZF—LF &) -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2017: Nil).

AR A E E A H M E SRS 00
AREB AR KB H) RE S AE A
BER(E o

No remuneration were paid by the Group to the Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one of them is
a director (2017: one director) whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 10, representing the amounts paid/payable since his
appointment as director. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining four non-director highest paid employees (2017: four
highest paid non-director employees) are as follows:

11.

hEB=#HES

hEREHERT  Eh—2AE=(Z
T—LF: —BEF)  HFMFEHE
RIEE10 RREBZE/EFUKD
N/ ERNZEE - TR EROERS
FHEREE (ZT—LF - UERSFH
FEZRE) 2FHHFBWT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
$°000 $000
Frx T
(Restated)
(geE=5)

Salaries, allowances and benefits ~ #& * EZBE N EYEH
in kind 20,547 17,589
Performance related bonus RIFEMRTEAT 5,904 3,626
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B 754 508
27,205 21,723

The number of ex-director, non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

MES FESNFIBTBRAEERR
¥RE ZHNN FATEE

Number of employees

EBEAE

2018 2017

—E-NE —E—+F
(Restated)

€cE=))

$4,500,001 to $5,000,000 4,500,001 JT £ 5,000,000 7T - 2
$5,000,001 to $5,500,000 5,000,001 JT £ 5,500,000 JT 2 1
$6,500,001 to $7,000,000 6,500,001 yt2 7,000,000 7T 1 —
$7,000,001 to $7,500,000 7,000,001yt £ 7,500,000 7T - 1
$10,000,001 to $10,500,000 10,000,001 JtZ 10,500,000 7T 1 —
4 4
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERESN + LB TIIR)

12. INCOME TAX

12. Fri5%i

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
$°000 $000
F T+
(Restated)
(F&E3)
Current tax BIEABE 18
Corporate Income Tax (note (i) TSRS (B3 (i)
— Charge for the year — NEERY 106,383 98,076
— Overprovision in prior years — BEFEBREEE (565) (1,193)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax R B+ 3B EF (R (v)
(note (iv)) (47,678) 46,081
58,140 142,964
Deferred tax ELEBIR
Origination and reversal of ERMERE 2 EERER -
temporary differences:
— Revaluation of properties — YIHEERH (101,028) 35,386
— Deductibility of PRC Land — B IRE T AT HRAZ R
Appreciation Tax 26,510 6,749
— Others — EAfth (1,475) 1,227
(75,993) 43,362
Total tax (credit)/expense for the ~ AREEIFELEER 2 FHE
year from continuing operations (Ee) FXe%E (17,853) 186,326
Total tax expense/(credit) for the  ZARFEER |FEE RS 2 FHTE
year from discontinued Fs (%) B
operations 31,957 (4,415)
Total tax expense for the year REERIAR T B5E 14,104 181,911
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Notes to Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

12. FT58 (&)

Notes: Bt e -

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British () BEERERABEZBES(RBRE
Virgin Islands (‘BVI”), the Group is not subject to any income tax in ZEEDHRAURER  AEBRBER
Bermuda and the BVI. ERRBREAHSDAMMNEMRRE

(i) Except withholding tax in relation to the capital gains on the disposal (i) EBERAEERANFEANLELESIE

of the entire equity interest in Wanda Australia Commercial Properties
Pty. Ltd. (“Wanda Australia CP”), no provision for Hong Kong profits
tax or overseas corporate tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group did not have assessable profits in
Hong Kong or overseas for the year (2017: Nil).

(iii) Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The provision for the PRC CIT has been made at the applicable
income tax rate of 25% on the assessable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China (2017: 25%). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rate of tax
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

(iv)  PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on

SPEEERBUAM - E W ERNES
MR RBEBNEHIBIMEE
(=T —+F: &) FHALE
Wanda Australia Commercial Properties
Pty. Ltd. ([ EZ 38 1) 2 2 AR
1SE AR a2 TBIFIBRIN ©

(i) REPEH (TREMSH]D

PR EMST 2 BEDREASER
R B i 2 (B A B 2 FERR B E Rl
R ERHE5%(=ZF —+4F : 25%)
{EH o EAfbib[R 7 FEERF & AT IR TR
RNEBLAEBAERR 2 BITH R

st
= o
=Ar

(v) B ED ([ LtEER )

B ER IR L IR E (NS ER

the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale 15 FIER AT HURL S (B 48 £ A

of properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT
liabilities, the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by

the tax authorities.

AR A R MY EERE)) LR
TR 30% E60% £ - REBER
BB BB AR SRR R
8- R ERETTAE - SHERUBILA
AR - ERBeEE T EETEE
Al IR EN B ERERSHE N &
KER LA -

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before BEARANRIREETEMB AT MK
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company BEEREEMEGTHBRARBKRIA R
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense A (E1E) 2 %8 A EIR ER B R
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable B BBER 2 HRREATE (BVEE
rates (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rates, is as i) MBI R 2 HWRAT

follows:
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12. INCOME TAX (Continued) 12. FT58 (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+F
$°000 $000
Fr Tt
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Loss before tax from continuing FECEZETS 2 BRE AR 18
operations (84,391) (88,244)
Profit/(loss) before tax from RIS E R 2 BRI ATE R, (E518)
discontinued operations 930,837 (384,084)
846,446 (472,328)
National tax calculated at rates REANBHANBEER 2
applicable to profit in the tax w2 HEETE
jurisdictions concerned i 11,988 (200,592)
Adjustments in respect of current  @1EEARIBNERFL 18 2 A2
tax of previous periods (565) (1,193)
Income not subject to tax AT 2 WA (167,778) (29,792)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 X 151,253 276,517
Tax losses not recognised RERZ BIBEBE 16,470 84,039
Deductible temporary differences  ARFER Z A HIB E i 14 = &
not recognised 12,776 8,725
Effect of withholding tax at 30% ¥ H & & &E p 2R A deas
on the gains of disposal 12 30% UL TE FFR A 7 22
of Wanda Australia CP 31,957 —
Effect of withholding tax at 10%  ¥[ANSEE 2 —EF BB A 7H
on the distributable profit of a Al 79K A% 10% B
PRC subsidiary of the Group FENRANEEREAREE
and effect of tax at 10% on the < —EBBWEBARIEIN
interest income from offshore ERHF EWAIZ10%
loans of a Hong Kong subsidiary — #fiH 572
of the Group 6,577 27,561
Tax losses utilised from previous @ HAEIE BN A FiIEEE
periods (6,257) (12,527)
Utilisation of deductible temporary  BIFERN IBAEFE R HERH
differences not recognised AT SRR
in prior years (6,558) (5,388)
LAT 30 IR(ET (47,678) 46,081
CIT effect of LAT THIBET 2 (P EMETH TS 11,919 (11,520)
Tax expense at the Group’s EAREEERHERGTE 2 BIERS
effective rate 14,104 181,911
Tax (credit)/expense from RERH R E 2 B E TS
continuing operations at ZHE(Ee) X
the effective rate (17,853) 186,326
Tax expense/(credit) from RERREGTE 2RI LA ETE
discontinued operations at ZRIERY S (ER)
the effective rate 31,957 (4,415)
Tax expense at the Group’s RAEEERREGTE 2 HIERE
effective rate 14,104 181,911
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 3 November 2016, Wanda Europe, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with Baraka
Global Invest, S.L.U. (“Baraka”), pursuant to which Wanda Europe
has conditionally agreed to sell, and Baraka has conditionally
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital of Wanda Madrid
Development, S.L.U. (“Wanda Madrid”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Wanda Europe) at a consideration of EUR272 million, subject
to adjustments to be made to the consideration by taking into
account the amount of cash, cash equivalents and amount of
indebtedness of Wanda Madrid as at the date of completion. The
disposal of Wanda Madrid was completed on 1 June 2017.

On 16 January 2018, the Company and R&F Properties (HK)
Company Limited (“R&F”) as purchaser entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in respect of the disposal of 60% of the
entire issued share capital of Wanda International Real Estate
Investment Co. Ltd. (“Wanda International”), at a consideration
of GBP35,609,277.96 and the Company, R&F and Wanda
International entered into the relevant shareholder loan repayment
agreement, pursuant to which R&F has agreed to repay the debt
for and on behalf of Wanda International to the Company. The
disposal of Wanda International was completed on 6 July 2018.

On 18 January 2018, Wanda Australia RE, AWH Investment Group
Pty Ltd (“AWH?”), and Wanda Australia CP entered into a master
agreement in respect of the proposed disposal of the entire equity
interest in Wanda Australia CP subject to the terms contained
therein, at the consideration of AUD315,044,422 and repayment
of the debt in the amount of AUD815,107,691 in instalments. The
disposal of Wanda Australia CP was completed on 18 May 2018.

Wanda International and its subsidiaries (“Wanda International
Group”) and Wanda Australia CP and its subsidiaries (“Wanda
Australia CP Group”) were classified as disposal groups held for
sale as at 31 December 2017, and Wanda International Group,
Wanda Australia CP Group and Wanda Madrid were classified as
discontinued operations for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2018.

13.

RIS

R-Z—AR"F+—HA=8  ARElZ3*k
2 M E A Fl& ZEEUM & Baraka Global
Invest, S.L.U. ([Barakal) & 3 1# & °
Bl BERMNEERGRELEM
Baraka B A {44 [E & Y8 Wanda Madrid
Development, SLU. ([BEZHEE] &
ERMN . 2EWBAR) 222 BITR
K {8 A272,000,0008 7T © MK (E
ARG REESEENTHNABACRS
kB eEEM B RBESTEE TN
AR - BESEREZHEER-T—+
FRA—BZEK °

RZZE—NFE—A+H  AQFHE
NEEB)BRAR(EA] FA
B 7 ) 5 A K (E35,609,277.96 # &5
EEEFEBRMERERFRAR ([ BER
B 2HEBITRAZ60% L EER
# - MARA BARBEBRKREEIN
HEAR R EREE R Bt S 08
AEREBERRAARREERRS -
HEBEREER - \FLANE
SERK ©

RZZE—NF—A+NB:  BEBRNM
1 2~ AWH Investment Group Pty Ltd
(TAWH)) BB ZErm RN AR E
315,044,422 R T EEERERMN 2
2EARE (BT E R AR R kD
HA{E 38 (575 815,107,691 R ITF] M 421
o HEBEFERMNER-T—N\F
FA+NBZEK °

RZZE—tH+-R=+—1H 8&EH
BREAENBAR(BEEEREE ] &
BERERMNRENBAR([BERE
BMNEE) DEDBEARELREZLE
AR MRBE_ZT—EFR_F N
F+-_A=+t—-BLFE BEERE
CBERERMNREREBESRED
DRI ERT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

777 4 Iy\l Sz L
13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Gontinued) 13. RIEREEK @)
(i) Wanda International Group () BEBEREE
(@)  The results for the period up to the date of disposal are @ EEHEBHZHHEELZR
presented below: FIEAT -
2018 2017
—E-N\E S
Note $’000 $'000
BieE Fr Tt
Other revenue Habdas - 7
Other net (loss)/gain Hih (F518) e $ 88 (4,256) 18,633
Selling expenses HERS (2,425) (15,811)
Gain on disposal of HERBARZ K
subsidiaries 38 442,419 _
Administrative expenses 17 52 (14,314) (27,512)
Finance costs B E R AR (8,532) (12,191)
Profit/(loss) before BRI RTE
tax from the ZBRERER],(EE)
discontinued operation 412,892 (36,874)
Income tax expense FriSHim> - (13,281)
Profit/(loss) for BRI TS
the year from ZAEE R, (Ei8)
the discontinued
operation 412,892 (50,155)
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

Wanda International Group (Continued)

RIPEEHETRE )
() BEEREE®

(o) The major classes of assets and liabilities of Wanda b) RZEBE—tF+-_A=+—
International Group classified as held for sale as at 31 HEEREEES B RFE
December 2017 are as follows: HEZEEEERAEER

LU
2017
—E—+F
$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment ¥12 « BiE &% 288
Construction in progress EEIR 632,011
Freehold land KA FERE LI 249,182
Long-term prepayment RERTETFRIE 315,078
Properties under development FEiZ47 % 2,792,561
Trade and other receivables & 5 & Efth FEUGIE 18,746
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR FED 303,793
Assets classified as SEARIELHE ZEE
held for sale 4,311,659
Trade and other payables B 5 M EA IR (522,040)
Loans from an intermediate —fEREER AT ER
holding company (862,670)
Loans from financial institution & Bi#HE & (1,575,390)
Liabilities directly associated ~ EDMEAFENECEEER BB 8E
with the assets classified as
held for sale (2,960,100)
Net assets directly associated E2 3 B & B HE/ERE 2 B EFE
with Wanda International
Group 1,351,559
Exchange reserve on MEBINETS 2 A
translation of foreign
operations 23,473
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Py
13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Gontinued) 13. RUIEREZEB @)
(i) Wanda International Group (Continued) () BEEKEE@®@)
(©)  The net cash flows incurred by Wanda International c BERNBREEREELEHH
Group up to the date of disposal are as follows: EAZReREFENT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —EF—+tF
$°000 $000
Fr +t
Operating activities LS (348,704) (814,527)
Investing activities HEEE (68,409) (280,580)
Financing activities REEH 127,761 480,370
Effect of foreign exchange ~ JMNEFER&8) 7 7/
rate changes 34,302 59,021
Net cash flow REeEmEFH (255,050) (555,716)
(d) Certain assets of Wanda International Group were () ERREEETIERSR
pledged to secure the loans from financial institutions *&* ERRBITRE 2 IR
and bank facilities as follows: ZEHETEEWNT
2017
—E—+F
$000
T
Construction in progress T2 632,011
Freehold land IKAFRKELH 249,182
Properties under development fEZ#3E 2,792,561
3,673,754
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— ly\l Ay 1 P2 o
13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 13. RIEREEK @)
(i) Wanda Australia CP Group (i) BERERMNEE
(@)  The results for the period up to the date of disposal are @ EEHEBHZHHEELZR
presented below: FIEAT -
2018 2017
—E-N\E T —tF
Note $’000 $'000
FiEE Fr T
Revenue Was - 871
Cost of sales SHER AR - (1,176)
Other revenue E bz 59,435 53,372
Other net loss H b E518)F 58 - (126)
Selling expenses SHERS (5,335) (42,550)
Administrative expenses 17 52 (3,106) (16,836)
Finance cost B E R AR (6,326) -
Gain on disposal of HEWBQ Rz Hzs
subsidiaries 38 473,277 —
Profit/(loss) before BRI TS 2 BRTEAD
tax from the swH, (E51E)
discontinued operation 517,945 (6,445)
Income tax FTS® (Fx) /%
(expense)/credit (31,957) 17,696

Profit for the year from the ISR 2
discontinued operation NEE w7 485,988 11,251
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(ii) Wanda Australia CP Group (Continued)

RIPEEHETRE )
(i) BEEERMNER 2

(o) The major classes of assets and liabilities of Wanda (o) EA:E +tF+=—A=1+—
Australia CP Group classified as held for sale as at 31 BENERMNEBDER
December 2017 are as follows: %r{”EHj%ZExﬁE&EE

RN
2017
—E—+fF
$000
T
Property, plant and equipment #1Z - = N5 28,868
Construction in progress ERETRE 123,052
Freehold land KA 975,649
Investment in a joint venture ~ R—E&AEREZHE 2,208,807
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE B 109,442
Properties under development FEiZ47 % 2,336,038
Trade and other receivables & 5 & Efth FEUGIE 56,699
Pledged deposits BEHEFER 48,852
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRESEEY 40,893
Assets classified as DERFEHECEE
held for sale 5,928,300
Trade and other payables B 5 M EAMENRIA (47,194)
Liabilities directly associated — BEAMEAFIELEC EEERHBZBE
with the assets classified as
held for sale (47,194)
Net assets directly associated EiEE R BN EB HEARE 2 EEFE
with Wanda Australia CP
Group 5,881,106
Exchange reserve on MEBINETS 2 B R
translation of foreign
operations 34,456
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
(ii) Wanda Australia CP Group (Continued)

(b)  The net cash flows incurred by Wanda Australia CP
Group up to the date of disposal are as follows:

n\\ %gé JJ\%%% (%)
(i) BERERENEE®)

b)) BERERMNEBEEZLHE
AEEA RS MEFREN

T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$’000 $'000
Fr Tt
Operating activities KRR ED (434,740) (182,134)
Investing activities "EEH (9,252) (1,754,639)
Financing activities BhEESD 401,702 1,961,524
Effect of foreign BN RS k=7
exchange rate changes 1,656 2,231
Net cash flow BHEeREFE (40,634) 26,982
(ii)) Wanda Madrid (i) BEHE

(@  The results for the period up to the date of disposal are
presented below:

@ BHEHERMBRZIEEZR
FIET -

2017
—T—tF
$000
T
Loss on disposal of Tt E—RHBARZEE
a subsidiary (329,707)
Administrative expenses THAX (11,058)
Loss before tax from IS ETS 2 R A 1E
the discontinued operation (340,765)
Income tax expense FRiSHi X =:
Loss for the year from IR EERS 2 N FE R
the discontinued operation (840,765)
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 13. 2RI EHEK @)
(iii) Wanda Madrid (Continued) (i) BEFEE#®)
(b)  The net cash flows incurred by Wanda Madrid up to b)) BESEEEZREHHE
the date of disposal are as follows: EZREREFEAT ¢
2017
—ET—tF
$000
Fir
Operating activities KETEE) 6,038
Financing activities BEES) (384,090)
Effect of foreign SNGEE [ 3R B ) RO
exchange rate changes 25,173
Net cash flow R MEFEE (352,879)
(iv) Earnings/(loss) per share of Wanda International (iv) BEERER  BEHER
Group, Wanda Australia CP Group and Wanda NEERBEFEE2SR
Madrid (HK cents) BRI (E5E) GBI
2018 2017
—g-N\F  —Ttf
Basic and diluted, BEARREE - REKLIEEEFETS
from discontinued operations 15.8 4.9)
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(iv) Earnings/(loss) per share of Wanda International
Group, Wanda Australia CP Group and Wanda
Madrid (HK cents) (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share from discontinued operations are based on:

13. #&

I EEHETE )
(iv) BEBREER  BEHER

NEBREEFREZER

&R,/ (&E)

(BAL) ()

RIEREXRG c BREAREER
A,/ (BE) VRE TS IBHE

2018 2017
=F B C e S
$°000 $'000
Fr T
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary — #% |F4&E & 275 2 fF A R E @K
equity holders of the parent BB AR /(EE_ETE!
from the discontinued operation 743,548 (227,801)
Number of Shares
BRAEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F =5
’000 ‘000
Fr TR
Weighted average number of REENARFTESRERR
ordinary shares in issue BEAF, (EE)
during the year used in the basic 2 B 317X @I HnHE
and diluted earnings/(loss) per S E(HIFE15)
share calculation (note 15) 4,697,347 4,697,347

14. DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

14. BB

RAEETERLRBEEZE_FT—\F
ToA=+—HUEFEZREBE (=F
—tF )
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15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 4,697,347,000 (2017: 4,697,347,000) in
issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share are based on:

15. R Al EBEREE ABG
BREF, (EE)

(a) BREAZRF(&E)

FREAZRR(FER) RFNE
NAEBRIFE ABRERF, (&
1B) RERB BT AR Z NEF
5 #4,697,347,000 I (=T —+
4 1 4,697,347,000 B&) 5HE o

SREARBERF (FER) iR
BT Y& B

2018 2017
—g-N\F  —Ttf
$°000 $'000
Fr T
(Restated)
(& &)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ordinary A &) & BAIE A A&
equity holders of the parent, wmAL (E518) - BRETE
used in the basic and diluted SREANREERF(BE)
earnings/(loss) per share
calculation:
From continuing operations REFELEET 23,168 (57,637)
From discontinued operations RERIEEEER 743,548 (227,801)
766,716 (285,438)
Number of shares
RHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
’000 ‘000
TR FB%
Weighted average number of RERZANARFETRERK
ordinary shares in issue BEBE B BT
during the year used in the basic & @AXANAEF 15 %L
and diluted loss per share
calculations 4,697,347 4,697,347

(b) Diluted loss per share

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

228 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2018

(b) EREEESR

BE_T-N\F+_HA=t—HI
FE AKEVEBEHTICE
TEBRR(ZZ—tF: &)



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BEN&RE
Buildings Furniture,
heldfor fixtures, and Motor Leasehold  Construction
own use equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
KEER il %8 BE
ZBF e haf:d EL ERIR Eh
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T
31 December 2018 Z2-N\f+ZB=1-H
At 31 December 2017 and RZE-tEr-A=1-BR
at 1 January 2018: RZT-\§-A-B:
Cost: WA :
As previously reported JUETEE 8,237 6,958 3,935 45,465 336,183 400,778
Effect of business combination 7RI~ 124 T 2 £HAH
under common control Vb7 - 17,028 - - - 17,028
As restated 53] 8,287 23,986 3,935 45,465 336,183 417,806

Accumulated depreciation ZETTERAE -
and impairment;

s previously reported T (2,084 (4923 (2,708) (25,001) - (34,716)
Effect of business combination ~ IEI—124| T2 £ 8546
under common control LE2 - (5,663) - - - (5,663)
As restated FEE] (2,084) (10,586) (2,708) (25,001) - (40,379)
Net carrying amount, as restated ~ BREFE » &7 6,153 13,400 1,227 20,464 336,183 377407
Net carying amount: REFE
At 1 January 2018, net of R-E-\E-P-H

accumulated depreciation (kZarERkAE) -

and imparment as previously IR

reported 6,153 2,035 1,221 20,464 336,183 366,062
Effect of business combination ~ IFI—1E# T2 A

under common control LF2 - 11,365 - - - 11,365
Net carying amount, as restated  SRE(E + &3 6,153 13,400 1,227 20,464 336,183 377421
Additions AE - 1,380 - 3,939 211,224 276,543
Disposals e - (56) - - - (56)
Depreciation provided during ~~~ EWEHEZHTE

the year (395) (2,929) (665) (9,586) - (13,575)
Exchange realignment ERRE (295) (545) U} K] 688 (125)

At31 December 2018, netof ~ R=E—-\E+=A=1+-H
accumulated depreciation (MB2HERAE)

and impairment 5,463 11,250 555 14,851 608,095 640,214
At 31 December 2018; RZE-N\ETZA=t-B:
Cost B 7,839 24029 3819 32,983 608,095 676,825
Accumulated depreciation ZEERAE
and impalrment (2,376) (12,779) (3,324) (18,132) - (36,611)
Net carrying amount A 5,463 11,250 555 14,851 608,095 640,214
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continueq)

16. Y13  BMENKRE @)

Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures, and Motor Leasehold Construction
own use equipment vehicles ~ improvements in progress Total
=l ffil - %2 fig
BT &L Bt e fRIE @t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T r Tr T
31 December 2017 Z8-tE+ZA=t-H
At 1 January 2017: RZE—tE-A-F:
Cost: A
As previously reported R 7,6% 10,688 3,35 52,008 937,939 1,012,205
Effect of business combination ~ IAEI— 125 T2 £ 1545
under common control pd7 - 8,392 - - - 8,392
As restated mEF| 7,69 19,080 3,865 52,028 937,939 1,020,597
Accumulated depreciation ZETERAE -
and impairment;
As previously reported IS (1,57) (5,180) (1972) (17,844) - (26,567)
Effect of business combination I —125| T2 £ 545
under common control pd7 - (303) - - - (303)
As restated ]| (1,571) (5,483) (1,972) (17,844) - (26,870)
Net carying amount, as restated  BRELFE * £SE 6,124 13597 1883 34,184 937,939 993,727
Net carying amount: BESE:
At 1 January 2017, net of RZZ-tE-A-H
accumulated depreciation (kZarERkAE) -
and impairment as previously IHZH
reported 6,124 5,508 1,883 34,184 987,939 985,638
Effect of business combination ~ AFI—H5| T 2 £ /A5
under common control ph 7 - 8,089 - - - 8,089
Net camying amount, as restated  BRELF(E + &7 6,124 13,097 1,888 34,184 937,939 993,727
Addttions AE - 10,836 - 22,458 581,469 614,763
Disposals & = (65) - = = (65)
Transfer o properties under BEERENZ
development - - - - (478,945) (478,945)
Transfer to assets dlassffiedas ~ EEHEARENLE
held for sale LEE = (3,933) - (25,223) (755,063) (784,219)
Depreciation provided during MRz TE
the year (390) (7,386) (675) (7,618) - (16,069)
Exchange realignment Ei A 419 351 19 (3,337) 50,783 48,235
At31 December 2017, netof ~ WZE—tE+ZA=1-H
acoumulated depreciation (kZarirekineE) -
and impairment, as restated O] 6,153 13,400 1,221 20,464 336,183 371,421
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continueq)

16. Y13 - BMENRE @

Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures, and Motor Leasehold Construction
own use equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
et ieli ffil - %28 fig
LEF kit e e fEIE 5t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T S T T Tr S
At 31 December 2017: RZZ—tE+-A=+-R:
Cost: A
As previously reported IHIZH 8,287 6,958 3,935 45,465 336,183 400,778
Effect of business combination ~ IFI—HI T 2 £HAH
under common control 7 = 17,008 = = - 17,028
As restated ] 8,237 23,986 3,935 45,465 336,183 417,806
Accumulated depreciation ZEERAE:
and impairment:
As previously reported ULTES (2,084) (4,923) (2,708) (25,001) - (34,716)
Effect of business combination I —12#I T 2 £ 6
under common control k7 - (5,663) - - = (5,663)
s estated 5| 2,084 (10586) 0708 (25,001) - w0379
Net carmying amount, REFE 555
as restated 6,153 13,400 1,221 20,464 336,183 377427

As at 31 December 2018, certain items of the Group’s buildings
held for own use and construction in progress with net carrying
amounts of approximately $5,463,000 (2017: $6,153,000) and
$608,095,000 (2017: $336,183,000) respectively were pledged to
secure interest-bearing bank borrowings granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 31.

RZEBE—N\F+ZA=+—H ~&EH
BREFE D 54 £55,463,000L( =&
— £ 4 : 6,153,000 7T ) K% 608,095,000
(== —+ 4 : 336,183,0007T ) Z #
EERAZEFRAERTIRZETHER
TEEA - (ERRBAEEER 25t ER
B Z R (MIRE 31 FTiER) -
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17. FREEHOLD LAND 17. KA KL
Freehold land represents the land acquisition cost, stamp duty, KA SERE T b IE A B AN 5 B U g 2 B 1R
legal fee and other acquisition costs in relation to the Group’s B2 T EER AR ~ ENFERL - SEEE
acquired projects which are situated in the USA. R E MR o
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—RBZRAE 158,794 1,310,682
Transfer to properties under development & ZEEEYE - (31,044)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale EENEAEEHEEE - (1,224,831)
Exchange realignment i R 325 103,987
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZKAE 159,119 158,794
As at 31 December 2018, certain items of the Group’s freehold RZZE—N\F+A=+—8 ' ~&HE
land with a net carrying amount of approximately $159,119,000 B ) B 49159,119,000 L ( =& —
(2017: $158,794,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing F 1 158,794,00070) Z KA ¥R L 2
bank borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 31. ETHEEEER  EFREEASEE
B2t BRITER 2 R (31 AT
WEE) o
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REYI=

Completed

investment

properties

) an

REWME

$°000

Fr

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 3,795,711
Net loss from a fair value adjustment AR EBEAREERFE (9,310)
Reversal of over-accrued development costs BREFEAT B R AN 2 #E[El (17,808)
Disposal of investment properties HEREYHE (60,139)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (note 28) EESBARFELE 2 EE (Miz28) (37,041)
Exchange realignment M 3 8 B 263,218

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZFE—+F+=-A=+—H

E=ZT—-N\F—HA—H 3,934,631

Addition NE 20,263
Net loss from a fair value adjustment DR EBEAREERFRE (423,327)
Reversal of over-accrued development costs EREAE AT B R A AN 2 #E Bl (189)
Disposal of investment properties HEREME (50,586)
Exchange realignment HE 4 38 B (135,642)
At 31 December 2018 R-_ZE—-—\F+_A=+—H 3,345,150
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. REWIZ )

All the completed investment properties, including both land and
building elements held by the Group, were revalued at the end
of the year based on valuations performed by an independent
qualified valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ”) (2017:
DT2). DTZ is an industry specialist in investment property valuation,
who has the appropriate qualifications and recent experience in
the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation for completed investment properties was arrived at by
considering the capitalised income to be derived from the existing
tenancies and the reversionary potential of the properties, where
appropriate, by reference to market evidence of transaction prices
for the similar properties in the same locations and conditions.
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

Certain items of the completed investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 42 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, certain items of the Group’s investment
properties with a carrying amount of $850,451,000 (2017:
$1,179,998,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
borrowings and undrawn bank facilities granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 31.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 299.
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. REW = &)
Fair value hierarchy NAREBEEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy TREIAEEREDEZ AR EEGT
of the Group’s investment properties: EER -

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2018 using
R=E-NE+=A=+—-H
ZAREEFERER

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
WERME EATBEE EBEAFATHER
ZiRE BWAZH BWASHY

(E—8) (B=8) (B=H) #@sr
$°000 $°000 $000 $000
Tr T T r
Recurring fair value measurement for: &E AR EETE
Commercial properties ik IES - - 3,345,150 3,345,150

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2017 using
RZF—LF+ZA=1—H

ZRAEBEFERR
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

WEEMYE  EAUER EATIEER
ZH(E BAZH BAZE

(B—%) (B=#) (E=#) @5t
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T

Recurring fair value measurement for: &EHEARLEETE :

Commercial properties PERE - - 3,934,631 3,934,631
During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level FRN - B-REF_H o EWEELR -
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil). The Group’s policy MEEF=MEANEL (22— F
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at 1) o REBZBUR AN EEER 2 HRE
the end of the reporting period in which they occur. HRERARBEERRECER -
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18. REWIZ )

ﬁiﬁﬁtﬁﬁ@ﬁ’$ﬁlﬁﬁ
BfhERMF iR ERR LA ERS

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s management has discussion with the valuer on the EA

mE} B}%r

valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at each reporting date.

UTRREMEBEMERZGEET R
PEXT PN Pl

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
ERFABE
EEDR BAZH &E
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZT—+F
Shopping mall Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB34- RMB50-
market rent RMB283 RMB209
per square metre
B% REE FHETYAK AR¥3IATTE ARES0TTE
RiTmHHEE AR 283 T AR 2097T
Reversionary yield Mall: 6.0%-7.0% Mall: 6.0%-7.0%
Store: 5.0%-6.0% Store: 5.0%-6.0%
6 % 6.0%Z7.0% % 6.0%Z7.0%
JEE 5.0%%Z6.0% J5E  5.0%%£6.0%
Market approach Prevailing RMB24,700 RMB31,262
market price per sqm per sgm
per square metre
B2 FYHARBRTHE BY¥AIXK (SR DIPN
AR24,700 T AR#31,262 7T
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

18. REWIZ )

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
BAFAEE
EERR BWAZH gE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF
Office Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB171 RMB179
market rent
per square metre
WRE KREX BRABFIK AR®ATI T AREAT9T
RiTmsAE
Reversionary yield 6.5% 6.5%
EEkEE 6.5% 6.5%
Market approach Prevailing RMB32,400 RMB37,600
market price
per square metre
misA BYABRITHE AR32,400 T AR# 37,600 7T
Car parks Investment approach Prevailing monthly RMB389 RMB400
market rent -RMB1,450 -RMB1,500
per lot
FE5 REE FAEEER AR 389 T E AR 4007TZ
BimBiHE AR™1,450 T AR#1,5007C
Reversionary yield 4.5%-5.0% 4.5%-5.0%
BHEkEE 4.5% Z£5.0% 4.5% % 5.0%
Market approach Prevailing RMB390,000 RMB390,000
market price
per lot
mizA FESEMIRITHE A K% 390,000 T AR 390,000 7T

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on the independent
valuer’s view of recent letting transactions within the subject
properties and other comparable properties. The higher the rent,
the higher the fair value is. The reversionary yield is estimated by
the independent valuer based on the risk profile of the properties
being valued. The higher the yield, the lower the fair value is.

RiTmin A S YRR L4 ERD ST 8
BOMELEMAELEERNCEE
R BRG - HEHE  AAEE
HME - EEREXRTRB A EMRE
WA EWE 2 RO AET - W Tl

= AREE-E -
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19. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

19. FEf L HERTE

2018 2017

—E-N\F Tt

$°000 $000

Ft Tt

Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—RBZRAE 18,036 17,313
Amortisation provided during the year FREH e (481) (476)
Exchange realignment M 5 8 B (818) 1,199
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZKAE 16,737 18,036

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments with a net carrying amount of approximately $16,737,000
(2017: $18,036,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 31.

R-ZE—N\E+_A=1+—8 ' K&H
BREFEL A16,737,0000 (=T —+
£ :18,086,0007T ) 2 T L # 7H & 7K
HEEER - ERISBASEER 25
BIRITRE R R (R0fT5E 31 FTH%ER) ©

20. GOODWILL 20. BE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
$°000 $000
Fr T
At 1 January: R—H—8:
Cost DEN 372,324 372,324
Accumulated impairment 2EPRE (380,726) (369,007)
Exchange realignment TE 5 A2 13,038 12,337
Net carrying amount BRHEDFE 4,636 15,654
Impairment during the year FRRE (1,377) (11,719
Exchange realignment M 5 38 B (180) 701
Carrying amount ARMEME 3,079 4,636
At 31 December: R+=-—A=+—8:
Cost DEN 372,324 372,324
Accumulated impairment 2EHRE (382,103) (380,726)
Exchange realignment M 5, B 12,858 13,038
Net carrying amount BRMEFE 3,079 4,636
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20. GOODWILL (continueq)

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Amazing Wise Limited in 2008. The cost of the goodwiill
represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of Amazing Wise Limited as at
the acquisition date.

The Group carries out impairment testing of goodwill at the
end of each reporting period. In assessing the impairment of
goodwill, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(“CGU”) is determined. The CGU related to the goodwill includes
all subsidiaries located in Fuzhou. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the recoverable amount of the CGU was re-
determined and accordingly, an additional impairment loss of
$1,377,000 was provided (2017: $11,719,000).

20. BZE )

mEELE S - T )\ FUWE Amazing
Wise Limited 2 2 #BE TR © &2
B 7S 5 5 B i 7S R 780 7S &= B 7 Amazing
Wise Limited 2 Rl s B B E - BEKRA
BERKERIAZ A FEZ -

REBERSHRERRETHE ZRENR
e NIEEEBRENETRSELS
M(TIREESXEMN]) 2 KBS -
HEEABARSELBEMAEMNRE
MZzE2HMBAR - HE-_T—/\F
TZA=+—HLFE BeELSEN
ZAESEESHETE - WEFHERE
AN E B 181,377,000 7T ( — T —H 4 ¢
11,719,000 7T) °
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 21 EERIBBEERERE

REBRERE BRI R 2 B
HEE/ (AR RERESHMT

The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position and

the movements during the year are as follows:

Revaluation
of properties LAT Tax losses Others Total
MEER T ED BIEEE Hits st
$000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2017, as RZZ—+F—H—H
previously reported (MR 2%R) (437,709) 39,760 35,601 (18,969) (381,317)
Effect of business RE—ZHIT 2 #5466
combination under 22
common control — — — 4,353 4,353
As restated S (437,709) 39,760 35,601 (14,616) (376,964)
Deferred tax (charged)/ AEE(NBRAE) /A
credited to the statement BaRR ZELERIE
of loss or profit during the (& &7l))
year, as restated (35,386) (6,749) 4,415 (1,227) (38,947)
Exchange differences b N =R (30,443) 2,278 3,666 (1,440) (25,939)
Transfer to assets classified  EEHIEARHELE
as held for sale ZEE (90,480 = (43,682) 24,720 (109,442)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+4F
and 1 January 2018, +Z—RA=+—8k
as restated —T-\&—H—H
(= E5) (594,018) 35,289 — 7,437 (551,292)
Deferred tax credited/ AEZFA/ (MK E)
(charged) to the statement 1Bz %k < IEIEFIA
of profit or loss during
the year 101,028 (26,510 — 1,475 75,993
Exchange differences R 12,333 (998) - (234) 11,101
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+—RA=+—H (480,657) 7,781 — 8,678 (464,198)
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AY N ; E L
21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 21. BEREEEREE@®
(Continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position: RAE ISR 2 $ER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
(Restated)
(F&E3)
Deferred tax assets FEEFIBEE 16,459 42,726
Deferred tax liabilities REFIREE (480,657) (594,018)
(464,198) (651,292)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the RNARWARFATIEE ERIELEFIEE
following items: E:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
$°000 $000
Frx FIT
Unused tax credits REBHIAR R 36,321 127,455
Deductible temporary differences AT TR R 17,514 11,296
53,835 138,751
The above tax losses mainly arose in PRC, Hong Kong, and the FARIBEBEEETERTRH BERER
USA. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect EA o HRRABT KA LR BT R T
of the above items as it is not considered probable that taxable A EYA EaliIE B 8 - s Rt _EaliIg
profits will be available against which the above items can be BRREERIEEE °
utilised.
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21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,10% withholding

tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from

the foreign investment enterprises established in PRC. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. As
at 31 December 2018, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s

subsidiaries established in PRC. In the opinion of the Directors,
it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such
earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of such

earnings associated with investments in subsidiaries in PRC is
approximately $1,665,445,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017:

$1,167,162,000 as restated).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment

of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development are expected to be completed

within the normal operating cycle and recovered:

21.

22.

EEHIEEEREE @

BIEFRCEMERE  RRMNERE
BEETRRERF RN ZINEDE
B AR B UK 10% TE 0L o fi R B 2 4
BRI EEMBrRLER M ERHBEE
B B RREBHRR AT - K=
T-N\F+ZA=1+—R8 AEELX
EEPBEKZHB AR AZRIEN
FiHy A [E 2B A FER A AT TR A9
BRI - EERA  ZSHBRARR
RERDEEBEAFNEE T K - B
—E-NFE+-A=+—8 BERH
BB ARMEEHENEBRTR
EE#9751,665,445,000 L ( — T — L& :
1,167,162,000 7T (&£ &%) °

AN B EL AR SRR AT B2 3 R 75 48

METS
B2 o

ERELYES

EEMERERERSEEHATT
W T HE AR

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

$’000 $'000

Ft Tt

Within one year —FR - —
After one year — 1% 3,113,666 1,878,000
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—BZEHE 3,113,666 1,878,000
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22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continueq)

An analysis of the carrying amounts of freehold land included in

22. Y% #)

HEHBE D AFTEMR ZKAFEL

properties for sale by lease terms is as follows: 2 BREES T :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
$°000 $'000
Fx Tt
Freehold land in the USA RER 2 KA SR 603,714 602,481

Properties under development represent the project cost, land
acquisition cost, compensation cost and other preliminary
infrastructure costs in relation to the Group’s property development
projects situated in the USA. The Group carries out impairment
testing at the end of each reporting period. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the recoverable amount was
re-assessed and no impairment was provided (2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2018, certain items of the Group’s properties
under development with a carrying amount of $3,113,666,000
(2017: $1,878,000,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing
bank borrowings granted to the Group as disclosed in note 31.

EEMEEAEARBEUNZBE 2YE
FIER 2BAKA - LB -
HEHBEERMEMATHERKA - K
SENERERARETRERH - R
E_T-\FF+ZA=T—HILFE "
Al e E & A EH G - BB
BEE(CT—tF &) -

R_ZE—NE+_A=+—8 ' &&=
B8R ™ {8 43,113,666,0000( = — +
4 :1,878,000,0007T) 2 EEMEZE
TIHEEEER  EARGASEER
ZETBRITIE 2 AR (AR &5 31 P
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23. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

All the properties held for sale are stated at cost. The Group’s
completed properties held for sale are situated in PRC.

An analysis of the carrying amounts of completed properties held
for sale by lease terms is as follows:

23.

HECKRIVF

FTBREMRARATER - AEBZF
EERIMRTIMAHTE -

EHEBE O 2 FEER T YEZEREE
DT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —EF—+tF
$°000 $000
Fr T+
Held under: AT HEARE

— long-term leases (over 50 years) — Rz REELY
in the PRC (#3850 4F) 29,815 47,870

— medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) — B> FhEAFRAY
in the PRC (10E504) 108,083 191,795
137,898 239,665

The Group carries out impairment testing at the end of each
reporting period. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
recoverable amount was re-assessed and no impairment was
provided (2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2018, certain items of the Group’s completed
properties held for sale with a carrying amount of $7,655,000
(2017: $8,031,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank
borrowings and undrawn bank facilities granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 31.

244 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
Annual Report 2018

ARERE RS HARETERE - R
BE-F—\F+-A=+—HI%F
& ARE S TG A - AR
SRRERE (CF—HF : ) -

RZZE—N\FE+_A=1+—8 ' ' K&H
AR M {8 A7,655000L( =& —+ & :
8,031,00070) Z A EE R IMEL AT
HEEEER  EARGASEER
FFERITERREARIRRRITEEZE
1R (I3 FTAREE) »



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

4. B 5 TR

2018 2017

—E-NF —E—+F

$°000 $°000

Fx Tt
(Restated)

(&&E5)

Trade receivables =) e e 321,316 151,484
Impairment RE (1,595) (1,467)
319,721 150,017

For the trade receivables arising from the sale of properties, the
Group manages the credit risk by fully receiving cash before
delivery of properties.

Leasing properties are normally settled on an advance receipt
basis, where the lessees are required to pay in advance for
several months’ rental payment and pay a security deposit as
well. However, in the case of long-standing customers with good
repayment history, the Group may offer these customers credit
terms.

For the business of development and operation of hotels, hotel
management services, hotel design and hotel construction
management services, the Group’s trading terms with its
customers are mainly on credit. The Group has set out policies
to ensure follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
The Group also reviews regularly the recoverable amount of
each individual trade receivable balance to ensure that adequate
provision for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over such trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

MIHEVMEEEZESRKFEMS -
AEBEEBEXNYEMPREHRES
BEEERR

HEME-—RUFBRSTAEE - ABEA
ARAXNBARS Y XNRES - A
M RBERFERCEZEMERM
AKESEAREEFPRAGER

o

¢ i

SUBEER  EEMAEEERRS B
ERFRBEERREERBERMS -
AEBEREEFZESERERUEE
FERHETT - NEBE B E BR AR
BURETTEN WA ET - AEBIRE
HIEM SR ER E SRR SR 2]
WElEHE - AREREL S AR @ SRR VR
RRZBERBEEE - AEELEZ
FE P RBFALHRIF B EMER L
EHEMERER L - BB RKHIE
REHFLE o
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (cContinued) 24. & 5 R (&)
The aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of RIEEEE HER - AR HA R0 bR B 18 4
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss B2 E BRI IE 2 R SITAT ¢

allowance, is as follows:

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —ET—+tF

$’000 $'000

Frt Tt

(Restated)
(&=z=751)

Within 3 months =@EAR 92,614 149,264
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBd=EAENEAAN 48,168 435
Over 6 months but within 12 months B SNEAETZEAR 105,954 103
Over 12 months BA+ =& A 72,985 215
319,721 150,017

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade B2 oRWEIB REBEREZS N

receivables are as follows: N

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt

(Restated)
(&E5)
At 1 January Rn—H—H - —

Effect of business combination RE—EZFH T2 E Bz 2

under common control 1,467 320
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 EMBE AN EMERNE R 2 E - =
At 1 January (as restated) R—A—HB (&&5) 1,467 320
Impairment losses, net BEEE  FE 128 1,147
At 31 December ®+=A=+—8H 1,595 1,467
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended
31 December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2018

= A ETREN))

BE—E-NF+=HA=+—H
_Lt‘/?-':/;_?/‘ B SRR E 9 5%
H T2 8E

REHE B HER R EREETRED
AT ERMEERRE - BEXTIRE
ZHERUEERAB D 2ZEAEF D
HaHz AHEE - ZEtERBREAEX
MHEER - BERERNEEBSAE
ZBRBEFE - BB R ARREE
ERTRR 2 BN AIFEEFL o

AEBERBBEREEEE S EBKFOR
ZIEERBREREINMT -

R-BE—-NE+=ZA=+—H

Past due
B
Less than 3to6 6to 12 Over

Current 3 months months months 12 months Total

B8 SR=ER =ZE~BR ~Et-fER RBBt-fEA @it

Expected credit loss rate AHEEBEX 0.018% 0.075% 0.088% 0.267% 10.458% 0.496%
Gross carrying amount (§'000) &8REE (L) 92,631 48,204 54,586 114,535 11,360 321,316
Expected credit losses ($'000) TAHEEEE (L) 17 36 48 306 1,188 1,595
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

248

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended
31 December 2017

The aging analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 that were not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows:

24. B EIWFIE &)

BE—_E—+tF+=-F=+—H
I FEEBESERIFE395EH T
e

BEEBETEREINR RZE—+
FH—A=T—RWFHEERERSE
BREE S EWIEZ Rk 5T a0
T

2017

—E—+F

$000

Fir

(Restated)

(F&E3)

Neither past due nor impaired I A HA ORI E 149,264
Over 3 months but within 6 months past due B HRER S = A AE X E AR 435
Over 6 months but within 12 months past due RN EAE T ZEAR 103
Over 12 months past due mEERA T —E A 215
150,017

Impairment under HKFRS 39 for the year ended
31 December 2017

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
under HKAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.
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25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS

25.

AR - EAEWEOR
RHEMEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
Notes $°000 $'000
PEE Fr Tz
(Restated)
€ ==))
Prepayments A A 5,763 2,958
Deposits and other receivables e R HE bR IE b 1,767,851 28,256
Amounts due from related parties  fEUREEE A £ ZUB 10 10
Amounts due from an JE U — P R R AR A B SR IE
intermediate holding company 2,045 3,899
1,775,669 35,123
Impairment allowance BB a (353) (139)
1,775,316 34,984

The amounts due from related parties and an intermediate holding

company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

PN B A\ £ R — R IR A R 2 K
HIEER  RERIZEREE -
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25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (Continued)

25. FEAFFIE « EfuEUIRFEE
REMERE 2

(@ The movements in provision for impairment of other @ FR - HEKRIE O RERES
receivables during the year are as follows: EDPONNE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—tF
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
(Restated)
(JEE3)
At 1 January - =
Business combination T 2 ERE O
under common control 139 845
At 1 January S 139 845
Impairment during the year FRRERPER,
recognised/(reversed) (#m) 2 RE
in profit or loss 211 (705)
Exchange differences 3 (1)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 353 139
The above provision for impairment of other receivables is a bl B At B W GR IR 2 R B B T
provision for individually impaired other receivables. &R 2B 2 H AL U R IR M AT
P
(o)  The balance includes: b) HEearETE
()  proceeds receivables in relation with the loan () EHEEARRBEEEFERR
repayment by R&F on behalf of Wanda International to REEEERZ ERER
the Company, amounting to $831,774,000. T8 831,774,000 T °
(i) proceeds receivables in relation with the loan iy  BEAAWHRREEZRMitE
repayment by AWH on behalf of Wanda Australia RE to MARAEEER 2 EUET
the Company, amounting to $715,871,000. 8 5/IE 715,871,000 7T °
(i)  the deposits made to Australia tax authority in relation (i) EELHERSERMHMEZ
to the disposal of interest in Wanda Australia RE, FEE 22 1 () SR M 50 745 44 B 2 A
amounting to $187,183,000. %% 187,183,000 7T °
()  Other than the aforementioned impaired other receivables, © B LEMERE s EMmEKERIEN

none of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to the
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
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26. CONTRACT INCREMENTAL COSTS 26. SHIBERA
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
—®E-N\F —E-N\F C"B-tfF
+=A=+—H —A—HB t+=A=+-—H
$°000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt
Contract assets arising from: THBEELECZEHNEE :
Costs for obtaining contracts of ~ EUS¥IZEEE A L2 A
sale of properties 54,067 41,839 —
Management expects the incremental costs, primarily sale RRIGYEHEESL  BIRETEHRE
commission and stamp duty paid/payable, as a result of obtaining ERA(EEREEME REN D
the property sales contracts, are recoverable. The Group has BB A FULE o ARE BN EBUEER
capitalised the amounts and amortised them when the related RSz S BEANME R T AR o

revenue are recognised.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract RZE—N\E+ZA=T—HEHIE=
incremental costs as at 31 December 2018 is as follows: ARz TEET W E RS A E SRR T ¢
$000
T
Within one year —FR 624
More than one year BB —F 53,443
Total contract incremental costs RE KL SRR 54,067
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27.

252

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

27. ZRFIRITERUAREE

RREEEY

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—tF

$°000 $000

Ft Tt

(Restated)

(&E5)

Cash and bank balances B NIRRT 2,742,303 2,589,567

Time deposits JEBER 3,995 11,365

2,746,298 2,600,932

Less: Pledged for long-term bank loans & @ B AKHFEITERK (4,938) (11,453)
An escrow account pledged for B RER TR

construction work ZFEERP (64) (191,380)

(5,002) (202,833)

Cash and cash equivalents Be MREeEEY 2,741,296 2,398,099

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to $2,341,569,000
(2017: $1,087,877,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.
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RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances
amounting to $943,000 and time deposits amounting to
$3,995,000 (2017: cash and bank balances amounting to $88,000
and time deposits amounting to $11,365,000) were pledged to
secure interest-bearing bank borrowings granted to the Group as
disclosed in note 31.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group deposited funds amounting
to $64,000 (2017: $191,380,000) in an escrow account as
guarantees for the settlement of construction billings.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

(@ On 27 November 2017, Dalong Industrial Group Limited
(“Dalong”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with Zhonglu Group, pursuant to
which Dalong has agreed to sell and Zhonglu Group agree
to acquire certain of investment properties owned by Fujian
Henglicheng (a direct subsidiary of Dalong). The disposal
of certain investment properties was completed in the year
ended 31 December 2018, and the loss on disposal of
investment properties has been recognised into other net
loss.

27.

28.

SRHERITERURE S
RIBSZEEY®

R-ZE—N\E+-A=+—8 A&EE
©FA943,000T 2 B & RIRITA SR K
3,995,000t 2 EAF R (=T — L4 -
©RE/A88000Tm 2B RIRITHEKR K
11,365,000 2 FE A fF 5%) B fEH 7 -

EAMBAERER 2T BIRITERZ
R (RAKIEE 31 FTiR) ©

RZZE—NFE+ZA=1+—8 K&
EREERFEAE©64,000L(=%

—-£4F : 191,380,000 T ) fE AL B EE
BRZER-

gﬁ%hﬁmﬁzééﬁ

a) R-FE—LtHF+t—-A-+tH &
NEFFREMBRARIAEEXEE
BRAR([KE ) B iREEET
T B KEBEREHEM
FIkEER T RBEZE (K
BE—HERMNBAR)BEAZET
REVE -BE_T—N\F+_H
=t—-RALEFEETREMED T
R - M EREMERZEED
REMERFRTER -

2018
—E-N\F
$°000
Fr

R=E—N\F—H—H
HEREYH

At 1 January 2018
Disposal of investment properties

37,041
(37,041)

(b) Details of the assets and liabilities classified as held for sale
from discontinued operations are included in note 13 to the
financial statements.

b) BEREKEEBZDBRFEL
5 ,E KB EZFHITER MR
RAFFEA

HI/

BEROERRERAA
—E-N\FEH

253



Notes to Financial Statements

B ISR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. E G R HME[NTRIE
An analysis of trade payables and other payables as at the end of RIREEAR 2 B 5 FE (T 3018 R fE 1
the reporting period is as follows: FIBZ DT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —EF—+tF
Notes $’000 $’000
BisE Fr T
(Restated)
(FE&E3)
Trade payables = AN a 630,190 502,548
Other payables H At fE T3R8 850,311 183,686
Accruals JESTE A 1,072 98
Dividends payables FERTRR B - 7,671
Interest payable on HABEFRERFILE
other borrowings b 126,667 96,232
Interest payable to an intermediate & — & A I A &) F &
holding company b 11,442 463,071
Interest payable to JEf B FEF B
financial institutions 1,795 936
Amounts due to an intermediate B — R IR A BIFOE
holding company ¢} 2,954,320 4,699,203
4,575,797 5,953,445
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 29. B 5 R H Mt ENFRIE )
Notes: Bif3E
a.  None of the Group’s trade payables are expected to be settled after a. WEAEEEZENFBEERERER
more than one year (2017: Nil). —FREE(ZT—LF &) o
The aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year, BIEBRZAH  RERZE SEMNFIE
based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZERESTAT ¢
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—tF
$°000 $000
Fr Tt
(Restated)
(#sE51)
Within 3 months =FEAR 481,347 330,575
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE=EARNEARN 4 44
Over 6 months but within 12 months ~ #B3ENEAAE+ =@ AR 12 114
Over 12 months Be+=@A 148,790 171,815
630,190 502,548
b.  The amount of $11,442,000 in interest payable to an intermediate b. JEH*F'EEJEPF'EEHW A R)FE11,442,000
holding company is repayable within one year (2017: $463,071,000), TEAR—FREE(ZZ—LF:
none of the Group’s interest payable to an intermediate holding 463,071 ,OOOTE) BEAEEEN—
company is repayable more than one year (2017: Nil). The interest MAEERARNMEAER —FRESR
payable on other borrowings is repayable on demand or within one ZE—F &) o HERZENF
year. These interest payables are unsecured and not subject to BERERIN—FRNEE - ZFEN
compound interests. BB AR R BAS HHER o
c.  The amounts due to an intermediate holding company is repayable @ R —EPREIERA R 2 RIEHEIRE
on demand or within one year and all these balances are unsecured KR —FAEE - MAEFEHREHAE
and interest-free. IR RE R o
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==
30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. BN AE
Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1 RZE—NFF+_A=+—BK=ZF
January 2018 are as follows: —N\FE—H—RZ&HNAEFEET :
31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—E-N\E§E —E-N\F
+=B=+—H —A—H
$°000 $°000
Fx Tt
Sale of properties HEME 92,974 16,093
Property management services MEEE RS 24,518 8,643
Other services E b AR5 726 780
Total contract liabilities aHaGERE 118,218 25,516
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver properties, BHEERRMRNYE MEEER
property management and other services. L th AR 75 i R 2 B 5K ©
=) A4 =%
31. LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 31. ERIEBER
Loans from financial institutions were repayable as follows: TR E R BREINT ¢
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
$°000 $'000
Fx Tz
Current: BNHER :
Bank loans — secured RITER — B 46,088 183,849
Non-current: JERNER :
Bank loans — secured IRITER — HHEHE 1,146,769 1,631,087
1,192,857 1,814,936
Repayable: A
Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIZEK 46,088 183,849
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFA 95,392 53,333
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRBRFA 1,051,377 1,577,754
1,192,857 1,814,936
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31. LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

3. TRIEBER @

(Continued)
The Group’s other bank borrowings bear interest at floating rates. B 2 B A SRIT 8 SRIZIF B FI R 5
The range of the effective interest rates during the year is as B FRAZERMNEHELNT :
follows:
2018 2017
—®-\FE T t%
Effective interest rates BERA = 3.38%-6.50%  2.25%-5.46%

(@ As at 31 December 2018, undrawn bank facilities
of the Group amounted to $ 4,073,108,000 (2017:
$4,064,788,000).

(b)  Certain loans from financial institutions as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 were guaranteed by Mr. Chen
Chang Wei (“Mr. Chen”), a former director of the Company.

(c) Certain loans from financial institutions as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 were guaranteed by an
intermediate holding company, Dalian Wanda Commercial
Management Group Co., Ltd..

The carrying amounts of all the Group’s borrowings during the year
were denominated in RMB and US$. The denominated amounts
at the year end are as follows:

@ R=ZF-—NF+ZA=+—8H:
REBRARRZIBITEESR
4,073,108,0007c( = & — £ & :
4,064,788,0007T) °

b) RZZBE—NFF+_A=+—HKZ=
T—+F+-_A=+—H8 ' &5F&
BEEERRARR —ZAITES
PRRAE A ([FRAEA ) LR -

© RZE-N\Ft-_A=+—HKZ=
F—tFt+-A=1+—HB ET=E
RIS S — AP REZERAFA
BEEERREEEBERNERAR
PR -

FR - AEEEIERZEREH A
RENETTE RERZEETES
FOAE :

2018 2017
= S —B—tF

$’000 $'000

Fr 7T

RMB loans and borrowings ARBERRER 213,744 407,894
US$ loans and borrowings ELERKER 979,113 1,407,042
1,192,857 1,814,936
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= oS x5, L
31. LOANS FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 3. TRIMIBE R @)
(Continued)
Assets of the Group pledged to secure the loans from financial REBEERFURSSRKEERR
institutions and bank facilities comprise: RITEECEERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
Notes $°000 $°000
Bt e Frx T
Buildings held for own use BIEERZIET 16 5,463 6,153
Construction in progress TR 16 608,095 336,183
Freehold land KA FEREL 17 159,119 168,794
Investment properties LEMZE 18 850,451 1,179,998
Prepaid land lease payments TEf T B EFRIE 19 16,737 18,036
Properties under development EEYE 22 3,113,666 1,878,000
Completed properties for sale HEERIYS 23 7,655 8,031
Restricted bank deposits ZRHISRITIF SR 27 4,938 11,453
Investment properties included in  FADEAEFEHE 2
assets classified as held for sale ~ BEZIREWE 28 - 37,041
4,766,124 3,633,689
32. LOANS FROM AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING 32. —EHEZER B E M
COMPANY
Loans from an intermediate holding company were repayable as —FEFEERARERZERAMT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-\FE T tF
Note $’000 $’000
BisE Fr Fir
Current: BIAR :
Loans from an intermediate —HREER AT ER
holding company a 1,445,489 3,608,449
Non-current: JEBNER :
Loans from an intermediate —MHR R AR ER
holding company a 678,321 757,929
2,123,810 4,366,378
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32. LOANS FROM AN INTERMEDIATE HOLDING

COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 35 sERR) +

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

BB TTHIR)

32. —[ERREIER AT B 2

Btk -
The carrying amounts of all the Group’s loans from an intermediate a. FA - ANEE—RHEFEERARZE2ED
holding company during the year were denominated in Great BERZEmMBEHARE(EE]) - B
British Pound (“GPB”), EURO (“EUR?), United States Dollar (“US$"), (BT l) ~ Ex((Exl) « Bim([R
Australia Dollar (“AUD”) and Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$”). The T RBT(BITEE - RERZ
denominated amounts at the year end are as follows: EBETESEAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
Notes $°000 $'000
B =E Fr T
GBP loans and borrowings REERRER 0] 507,150 1,213,144
EUR loans and borrowings BiTERRER (ii) 65,339 68,095
US$ loans and borrowings ETERRER (ii) 678,321 689,834
AUD loans and borrowings SRITERRER - 468,879
AUD loans and borrowings SRITERRER - 1,926,426
HK$ loans and borrowings BT E R R IER (ii) 873,000 -
2,123,810 4,366,378
Notes: FtaE :
i) These loans bear interest at rates of 5% per annum. 0] ZEERIREES% 2 FEET S o
(i)  These loans are interest-free. iy ZEEREBEE -
(i)  These loans bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum. (i) HEFEFIRTFI%ZFETE
Interest incurred during the year ended 31 December 2018 and b. BE_Z—N\FE+-_A=+—HIF

interest payable to an intermediate holding company as at 31
December 2018 are set out in notes 9 and 29 respectively.

EEEZFNERN=-ZZ—N\E+=A
=+ —BEMN R REERA R ZF A
D RIEHAKIEEQ & 29 °

REEERRARLT
—2—\FEH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (kx S8 #ERESN + LB TIIR)

33. OTHER BORROWINGS 3. HfufEFk

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —ET—+F

$°000 $°000

T T

Current BNHA 12,821 213,518
Non-current JEENEA 372,771 73,565
385,592 287,083

Notes: Bt

ESRRREEES 2 BRIE - REREE

The loans were obtained from entities controlled by Mr. Chen. Certain

other borrowing from the entity controlled by Mr. Chen amounting to
$12,821,000 (31 December 2017: $11,633,000) that bear interest at
15% per annum are unsecured and repayable six months after the
date of the respective drawdowns, and the interest generated for the
period from 1 April 2016 to 31 December 2018 has been waived by
the lender. Certain other borrowings from another entity controlled
by Mr. Chen amounting to $372,771,000 (31 December 2017:
$275,450,000) that bear interest at 10% per annum are unsecured
and repayable from nine months to twenty-one months after the
date of the respective drawdowns. Interest incurred during the year
ended 31 December 2018 and interest payable to related parties as at
31 December 2018 are set out in notes 9 and 29 respectively.

Q%Zamstmomnm_7 +E+=
A=+—8 : 11,633,0007T) 2 %& T HAbER
Eiﬂfw%ﬁg BEERTARNERZ
ZERENHBENEARNEER  MEXAED
WMEZE—ANFUA—HBHE_ZFT—N\F+=
A=+—HRHEHEEZHE - REREEE
2B —E®2372,771,000( ZF —+
F+=-A=+—H :275450,0007t) 2 #&
FEHAERIREFE10% 8 B EFAL
AREE zﬂakwaﬁﬁhlﬂi +—
BAREE BE2=_Z—N\F+=_A=+—
Eﬁi&%ﬁzﬂ%&%:?—ﬂ¢+*ﬁ
=+—BEMEEALZFED BIFAHFE
29 o

34. CURRENT TAXATION 34, BHAFLT

2018 2017

—E-NE —E—+F

$’000 $°000

Fx Tt
(Restated)

(F2&E%))

Current tax payable: FESBNERRRIA -

PRC Corporate Income Tax PR EFTSH 58,021 62,635
PRC Land Appreciation Tax FR R i I (E RS 127,114 215,765
185,135 278,400
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

35. SHARE CAPITAL

35. IR

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+tF
$°000 $000
Fr T
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE :
4,697,346,488 (2017: 4,697,346,488) 4,697,346,488 (= Z— L4 :
ordinary shares 4,697,346,488) i E A% 469,735 469,735

36. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 104
to 105 of the financial statements.

Nature and purpose of reserves
Share premium

The application of the share premium is governed by the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the respective articles of association of the PRC group
companies, each of the subsidiaries of the Group that is
domiciled in PRC is required to allocate 10% of its profit after
tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve reaches 50% of its respective registered capital.

36. f#fE

(a)

(b)

RAFERBEFE  AEBZE
BRESEHSENYHIREKE 104
1052 REZEFHRRE
Al o

R E R AR
MAniE{E

BRREZ AT ERE— NN\~
ERREE o

EERE

REFERRDERTFEEB QR Z
HEAAEER - AERERT B
ZEWBRBALERD L 10%
B ER AR 1205 A (R IR Bl & 5t il /=
EE) BATRANREE  EE%T
EEEEREEMEARNS0% °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (¥ 38 sERE) +

36. RESERVES (Continued)

BABTTIIR)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations in the PRC, the United
Kingdom, Australia and the USA.

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference
between the aggregate nominal value of the share capital
of the Company’s subsidiaries acquired and the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company in connection
with group reorganisation; and (ii) adjustments made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
the change in relative interests as a result of changes in the
Group’s interests in Amazing Wise Limited that do not result
in a loss of control.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the fair
value of the consideration paid to Wanda HK, an intermediate
holding company to the Company, for the acquisition of
the entire interest in Wanda Hotel Management HK and its
subsidiaries which are under common control of Wanda HK,
and the carrying amounts of the net assets of Wanda Hotel
Management Group acquired.
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36. @& @)

(b)

RBEERAZE @)

B 5 e

AEEZES R emrEPE -
B~ RAMEE M RB K 2 W
WREL ZFABINEEZRR °

Rl e

REBR R RS () AR TS
M A 2 IRANE(EBREEA N
HEBSHEMBITZIRMNEBELZE
7 KB AR RIEE R
REIEH 2 A% L/Uiﬁg%lzl-"ilﬁ“
Amazing Wise Limited 2 # #5 &
(W mBBUR XITHIME) FTEE 218
LiEn e -

BOtEE

aiEEEREEZEE (BE)
&ﬁlﬁ%"ﬂ% B%/\(x%i%
HEZEF) MASERE (AR
ZEFF‘%‘L BRAR]) XHRIE Z’Afc
BEEMKBEEZEEEREEE
EREZREENZER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

36. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
Distributable reserves

The Company’s share premium, special reserve and
accumulated losses as at 31 December 2018 may be
distributable to shareholders, after netting off with the
convertible bond reserve in certain circumstances prescribed
by Section 54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
was $2,054,658,000 (2017: $1,938,094,000 as restated).

The Directors of the Company did not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: Nil).

36. @& @)

(b)

RBEERAZE @)
A Ik

R—E-N\F+_A=+—H &
REZ DB ~ Rl R RET
BERARE-NN\—FRAEESE
BARFIME 2 & T BN TR A]
BEEFFERAIHDIK TR

RZE-N\F+ZA=+—H" 7
O TARARBIERFAE AR
5 42 %8 5 2,054,658,000 T ( = &
—+ 4 :1,938,094,000 7T ( & &
5I))) e

RRARESFEZZREEHE
—A¢+fﬂ:+—5¢¢E2k
B(ZZ—+F )
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

%

37. B E XSRS AV ED
DHEENE AT
TR AEEES ALK ERH

MERBWEFR o TXPRIEERB
ERAAEEA AT EMBEN S

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

B

The following tables list out the information relating to subsidiaries
of the Group which have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).
The summarised financial information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Amazing Wanda
Wise Wanda Americas
Limited Properties Real Estate
Group Investment Investment
Amazing Limited Limited
Wise Group Group
Limited BEEXRE BEINGERE
&5 BRARSEER BRAREE
$°000 $°000 $°000
Fx T T
2018 —E-N\F
Percentage of equity interest IR ERSE
held by NCI RMER B DL 47% 49% 40%
(Loss)/profit for the year DT IR R A
allocated to NCI REE (B18) 5 F (146,147) 69,703 (16,015)
Dividends declared to NCI 5K T IEE RS
AR S - - -
Accumulated balances of RS B B IEE A
NCI at the reporting date W REHEAEE 296,375 513,857 158,838
2017 —E—+F
Percentage of equity interest IR ERSE
held by NCI RMEER B DL 47% 49% 40%
(Loss)/profit for the year DT IR R
allocated to NCI RNEE (FE) &5 F (40,941) 19,736 (56,476)
Dividends declared to NCI 5K T IEE RS
AR S = = =
Accumulated balances of RS B B IEE A
NCI at the reporting date Wens RETRREE 518,259 503,225 116,181
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

37. BRE RFFERERAVED
DHEENB LR =

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)
Amazing Wanda
Wise Wanda Americas
Limited Properties Real Estate
Group Investment Investment
Amazing Limited Limited
Wise Group Group
Limited BEEBERE BEIMNEERE
£E ERATER BRATEE
$°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr
2018 —E-)\F
Revenue Wz 100,406 275,801 -
Total expense and HBF R EAth
other net (loss)/gain (B18), W35 (418,134) (133,551) (32,844)
(Loss)/profit for the year RNFE (B8), &5 (317,728) 142,250 (32,844)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ REFEEE
income for the year (E518) WA % (317,728) 142,250 (32,844)
Current assets MENE E 62,293 1,843,513 3,259,430
Non-current assets IERBNEE 1,832,322 1,548,659 781,620
Current liabilities mENaE (420,731) (772,747) (2,998,821)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (848,144) (1,570,738) (979,113)
NCI AR (4,296) - (222,652)
Net cash flows from/(used in)  E4(FTH) 23R &
MEIREE
operating activities K TRED 72,263 717,372 (199,793)
investing activities HETEED - (20,263) (261,146)
financing activities BMEEH (98,032) - (430,369)
Effect of foreign exchange rate  [ERE ) &
changes 1,115 (34,280) 6,229
Net (decrease)/increase in ReRRESEBEY
cash and cash equivalents CR) /s hnFsE (24,654) 662,829 (885,079)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

37. BRE RFFERERAVED
DHEENB LR =

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(Continued)
Amazing Wanda
Wise Wanda Americas
Limited Properties Real Estate
Group Investment Investment
Amazing Limited Limited
Wise Group Group
Limited BEBXRE BEFIMEERE
3] BRAREE BRARIEE
$'000 $'000 $'000
T T F7T
2017 T+
Revenue Weas 129,657 83,783 -
Total expense and HBH R EAth
other net (loss)/gain (E518) Wz %% (219,065) (43,504) (115,372)
(Loss)/profit for the year RNFE (B18) &5 (89,408) 40,279 (115,372)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ AEE2ME(EER),/
income for the year W A 42 %8 (89,408) 40,279 (115,372)
Current assets mENEE 136,907 1,279,896 3,046,715
Non-current assets FEMBENEE 2,391,527 1,607,604 515,451
Current liabilities mENaE (763,612) (285,536) (2,137,377)
Non-current liabilities JEmEaE (724,494) (1,574,973) (1,407,042
NCI FEFE AR R (55,292) - (181,803)
Net cash flows from/(used in)  E4%(FTH) 23R &
mE R
operating activities K TRED 4,807 6,921 (50,404)
investing activities HETEED (7,991) 7,201 (54,491)
financing activities BMEEH 12,339 = 934,320
Effect of foreign exchange ERFE) s B
rate changes 1,705 67,918 4,440
Net increase in ReKReEEY
cash and cash equivalents N FEE 10,860 82,040 833,865
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

On 18 May 2018, the Group completed the disposal of its
entire equity interest in Wanda Australia CP Group to AWH
for a cash consideration of AUD 315,044,422 (the “Australia
Disposal”). Further details of the Australia Disposal have
been set out in the Company’s circular dated 22 February
2018 and announcements dated 29 January 2018, 21
March 2018 and 18 May 2018.

The net assets of the Wanda Australia CP Group included in
assets and liabilities classified in held for sale at the date of
disposal were as follows:

(a)

38. HEMB LT

R-Z—NFREA+/\B » K&EH
SERK A AWH (&5 E A B 5 o 3501
MEEZ 2 AR - HENE
#315,044,422 3870 (BN &=
H]) - BERMNEEEHE E—F
HBEERAAR AT —N\F
AT+ ZHZBRAARAEZE
—\F—H=-+hB ZZE—N\F
A Zt+—HEZZE—N\FHA
FNBZRAER o
BEFERMNEENHE AHAA
DREARBIEREZEAERBEZE
BEREMNT :

2018
—E-N\F
Note $°000
B s Fi
Net assets disposed of: BEHEZEEFE
Property, plant and equipment  #13 = K& & 24,422
Construction in progress frETiE 138,791
Freehold land KAFEREL 943,432
Investment in a joint venture  R—REIAEREZIRE 2,479,412
Deferred tax assets BT E E 105,828
Properties under development #EiZ ¥ % 2,304,538
Trade and other receivables & 5 K& Lt fE Uy 5138 113,824
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 259
Pledged deposits [REEVESN 47,237
Trade and other payables B 5 REAERATIA (35,952)
Long-term loans RHER (4,839,779)
Reclassification of BREGINERS 2 IE N
exchange reserve fEE =D
on translation of
a foreign operation 32,536
1,314,548
Gain on disposal of o E— RS
a subsidiary NGl G 13 473,277
Transaction expenses R 68,196
1,856,021
Satisfied by: HETS
Cash consideration received ~ RAFEZWRZIHEERE
in the current year 1,113,613
Cash consideration received in - # I A G AN FFEUWER 2 R RE
the current year by the
intermediate holding company 742,408
1,856,021
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLAB IR )

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

38. HEME AT
@) (&)

FRALE—MMBARIZHEE IR
EEFEVMRNFB 2T

(b)

2018
—
$°000
Fr
Total consideration BRE 1,856,021
Cash consideration received in REERARRAFERE 2R &R E
the current year by
the intermediate holding company (742,408)
Cash and bank balances disposed of P HE R4 KIRTTHEH (47,496)
Net inflow of cash and ERLE—HNBARZHE X
cash equivalents in respect R FEYRAFE
of the disposal of a subsidiary 1,066,117
On 6 July 2018, the Group completed the disposal of its (b) RZZE—-—NFtAKB  xEH
entire equity interest in Wanda International Group to R&F TERMEAHEERBERRE

for a cash consideration of GBP35,609,277.96 (the “Wanda
International Disposal”). Further details of the Wanda
International Disposal have been set out in the Company’s
circular dated 15 March 2018 and announcements dated
16 January 2018, 7 February 2018, 6 March 2018, 12 June
2018 and 6 July 2018.
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35,609,277.96 % &5 ([ & #= B 7

EFE]) - S ERBRLESEE
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AARBHE—ZT—N\F—A+~
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEMB AT =)
(b) (Continued) (b) &)
The net assets of the Wanda International Group in assets BEEREER L E BB AS R
and liabilities classified in held for sale at the date of disposal RFEELEZEERABZEES
were as follows: EIT :
2018
—E-N\F
Note $°000
By &E Fr
Net assets disposed of: EHEZEETFE :
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - BB K& 238
Construction in progress FRETE 698,974
Freehold land KARKELM 246,223
Contract Assets BREE 51,480
Properties under development fEi2 ¥ % 2,995,398
Prepayments and TR SRIE B H At flE W SRR
other receivables 318,448
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 48,743
Trade and other payables B 5 MEAMEMNFIE (2,915,445)
Long-term loans RHER (1,556,685)
Non-controlling interests PR i e 64,923
Reclassification of exchange ~ HE BN ER 2 [E K,
reserve on translation of R EN DL
a foreign operation (27,406)
(75,109)
Gain on disposal HE— KB
of a subsidiary UNCIPAL 6 13 442,419
Transaction expenses RHHAX 2,760
370,070
Satisfied by: LEFE :
Cash consideration received in IAAFEUE 2B E KB
the current year 370,070
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 38. HEMB AT @
(b) (Continued) (b) &)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in ARALE—RKBARZRE KR
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: EEEMRANFEL DN
2018
—
$’000
Fr
Total consideration BRE 370,070
Cash and bank balances disposed of = HE&EZE 4 RIRTTHER (48,743)
Net inflow of cash and ERHE—RNBARIZERE K
cash equivalents in respect of R FEYRAFE
the disposal of a subsidiary 321,327
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39. MEBRERERMEE
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing () MEIZBELENEEEH
activities
Interests
payables to
Loans and financial
amounts institutions, other
duetoan horrowings and
Loans from intermediate an intermediate
financial holding Other holding
institutions company borrowings company Total
-BREER EftagE
DAERR RHRAR
Ef-BE -BhEER
CHRREER  BRAERE Hhfed ARAE ot
Note $000 $000 $000 $/000 $000
ks i r r 1 n
At1 January 2018 2-)\&-A-A 1,814,936 9,065,580 287,083 560,239 11,721,838
Changes flom fnancing zﬂéﬁ Sy
cash fows (609,092) (3,826,820) 97,320 (623,000 (4.962,492)
Iterest expenses HERx 9 - - - 184773 184773
Foreign exchange NERD
movement (12,087) (160,630) 1,189 17,892 (153,636)
At 31 December 2018 il
tZA=1-H 1,192,857 5,078,130 385,592 130,904 6,796,463
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39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 39. FEBREREBRMT @
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing () MEIZBELENEEEH
activities (Continued) (#&)
Interests
payables to
Loans and financia,
amounts institutions, other
duetoan barrowings and
Loans from intermediate an intermediate
financial holaing QOther holaing
institutions company borrowings company Total
il EfemiE
RASHR EftfsR
e~ —ERREER
SHBEER  BROTRE b AAZHE 3t
Note $000 § OOO $000 $000 $000
it i S S S r
At 1 January 2017 S s Rl 331,718 8,218,325 266,296 464,961 12,321,360
Changes from financing BERLER
cash flows (141,988) 12357832 (1,399) (170,703) 1,043,748
Inerest expenses HER% 9 - - - 240,405 242,40
Foreign exchange HESD
movement 160,636 352,093 2,180 25,952 560,761
Liabiltes crecty EARRRENERR
associated vith the LEEBRIN/ AR
assets classified as
liabilties held for sale (1,575,390) (862,670) - (2,376) (2,440,430)
At 31 Decermber 2017 I S 2
+ZA=1-H 1814936 9,085,580 287,083 560,239 11,727,838
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39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Total taxes paid

39. MEREREXRMT @

(b) EfNHIERZE

The total taxes paid during the year were: FARENTIALREE -

2018 2017
—g-N\% Tt
$’000 $'000
T T

Operating activities: K TRE
PRC profits tax paid B BEMER 82,438 88,379
PRC LAT tax paid B B L i E R 22,431 —
104,869 88,379

Investing activities: wEEE :
Overseas taxes paid B8 INRIR 31,957 —

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EAREIE

The Group had the following commitments for property
development expenditure at the end of the reporting period:

RB|EHR - AEEYMEHFRIH 2
T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F

$°000 $'000

Ft Tt

Contracted, but not provided for EEFOkER S 4,235913 12,627,924

The above commitments mainly include construction related costs
to be incurred in respect of the Group’s property development
projects.

BAEIERERAREYEERIA
BmEEZEREBEN -
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41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 41.

Details of the Group’s loans from financial institutions, which are
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 31 to the
financial statements.

42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 42.

As lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties under operating
lease arrangements on terms ranging from two to fifteen years and
with an option for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all
terms will be renegotiated.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

BERA

AEERBEEEMERNSREEE
R FHBEUR A R IRE 3 ©

REHERE
tEREREA

AEEREELEHELZHEHEREY
¥ HENF-_E=+REF ARERAE
HRERENR  ENSSENHEMmE

IR -

AN B AR 7B S E R A RT3 2 N AT HRH
REREN T HMRIE 2 KRR & FE
Wil eEm T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

$°000 $'000

Fr Tt

Within one year —FNRN 153,341 133,067
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MEZhGF (BIEEEFE) 359,959 342,150
After five years AFE 254,179 293,879
767,479 769,096
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42. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

As lessee

The Group leases certain office premises under operating lease
arrangements, negotiated for terms ranging from three to six years
with an option for renewal after the expiry dates, at which time all

terms will be renegotiated.

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R AR AL

=V PN

BB IR -

AEERBEEHEE
EVE - HERBRNF=Z2/F - IR
BB HRREEN  ERSSEND

REBRE A B
RBHzRKRDENZHSABN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (F& 2 A :EBE4N » HLABITIIR)

42, BEREEE #)

LHEERETHA

RETHER T 5

T
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+tF
$’000 $'000
Fr T+t
(Restated)
(F&E3)
Within one year —FR 22,115 30,368
In the second to fifth years, inclusive WEEHF (BIEEEFE) 1,354 14,907
After five years AFEE - =
23,469 45,275
oy
43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. FAREE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
$°000 $000
Fr T

Guarantees given to banks for: B TRAIEIRMA THRIT R

Mortgage facilities granted to BTAREEYEER
purchasers of the ZIRIBERE
Group’s properties 413,711 475,855
BEHEREBMRAT 275
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 43. ABE @)

The Group has provided guarantees in respect of the mortgage
facilities granted by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements,
in case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks. The Group is then entitled
to take over the legal titles of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee periods commence from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and end after the execution of individual
purchasers’ collateral agreements.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of
the ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less the
cumulative amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is
measured by estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on
the expected payments to reimburse the holders for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the purchasers. The amount initially recognised representing
the fair value at initial recognition of the financial guarantees was
not significant. The Group did not incur any material losses during
the financial period in respect of the guarantees provided for
mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the Group’s properties.
The directors consider that in case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage loans together with any accrued
interest and penalty, and therefore no ECL allowance has been
made in connection with the guarantees.
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44. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 44, ERBEEALTIRS

TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the (a) BUBHREREMIBLOFTHELANRZS
financial statements, the Group had the following significant GN - REENF R EEE A TH#EST
transactions with related parties during the year: ATEARRS :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —EF—+tF
$°000 $000
Fr T+
Note (Restated)
k=3 (F&E3)
Companies controlled by the B4 IERZAZERIZS| 2 A FA]
ultimate controlling
shareholder:
Purchase of equipment BERE (i) - 1,716
Sale of equipment SHE R - 1,902
Purchase of services BB R () 9 2,147
Property management Y E I RIS
services (i) 1,528 712
Hotel design services BT R AT BR TS (i) 14,828 2,485
Hotel construction B Rk TR AR TS
management services (i) 5,323 3,036
Hotel management services B & & 32 iR#S (i) 69,944 259,735
Rental income Gisherll 'O 6,203 5,772
Rental expense HEMx (i) 12,340 4,791
() It included the related party transactions of Wanda () HEEREARRGR-ZT—/N\F

TZRA=t—BKEzEE
BEEBEEZBEALR
5 o

Hotel Management Group, which was acquired by the
Company on 31 December 2018.

BRRBTIREAEEETRZEFE
R 2 B R ERRIRTET -

The above transactions were made according to the
published prices and conditions offered to the major
customers of the Group.

BEROERRERAA
—E-N\FEH
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44. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

44, ERBEAIRS @

(b) Transactions with key management personnel (b) EHIEEBAEZRNS
The remuneration of key management personnel of the REBEZETEEEAESHM(BE
Group, including the amounts paid to the Company’s ENARRESZZHRE)AT :
directors, is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —EF—+tF
$’000 $000
F T+
(Restated)
(F&E3)
Short-term employee benefits 5 E R A 18,730 6,460
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EERFETBRAENE 2 E—F
emoluments are included in note 10 to the financial BN S REMIEE10 ©
statements.
Loans from an intermediate holding company () —EFBEERARER
Please refer to note 32 for the loans from an intermediate —MEFEERARIEETAAF
holding company to the Company. Interest incurred during ZERFELBMES2 c RFERE
the year and interest payable to related parties as at 31 EZFBERR=ZZE—NF+=A
December 2018 are set out in notes 9 and 29 respectively. =+ —HESBEALZZFES R
FHAMIEE9 K 29 ©
Guarantees provided by an intermediate holding (d) —EFBEERARRMEZE

(d)

company

An Company’s intermediate holding company has
guaranteed certain bank loans made to the Group of up to
$979,113,000 (2017: $1,407,042,000) as at the end of the
reporting period, as further detailed in note 31 to the financial
statements.
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44. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of rental income
above constitute continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of loans from
an intermediate holding company, other related party
transactions and guarantees provided by an intermediate
holding company above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. However, they are exempt from
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

44, ERBEAIRS @

(e)

BEXZERz EmRA

FREBAESWRAZHEEALRS
BRETRAETHABRERLZ
SEMERD °

B Lt — R EER AR ER
HipBEA LR 5 K — P R
RARECERZBEALIRFE
PR LR RIE T MABPTESR 2 B
BRI EMERS - A B
AR ZEHRET EHRAIE T
ABFRE 2 WERE

EEEERRARAT 279
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e S =
45, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. IBREREI D 2 Em T A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIEMRR  SENeMmTAZREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: P -
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets Loans and
at amortised cost receivables
BB AFIRZ
TREE EBIRERFE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
$°000 $'000
T ¥t
(Restated)
(geE=5)
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIA 319,721 150,017
Financial assets included in prepayments &t A8~ 538 & E A g Uk 2108
and other receivables ZEEEE 1,769,553 32,026
Pledged deposits BT 5,002 202,833
Cash and cash equivalents He MBS EY 2,741,296 2,398,099
4,835,572 2,782,975
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

45. 1R8I 2 e T B )

TRIBE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REBHERATIRzERME &
2018 2017
= S —B—tF
$’000 $'000
Fr T
(Restated)
(Fe=E=5))
Financial liabilities included in trade FTAE S R EAFE S FRIE
and other payables ZaRAaE 4,574,725 5,953,347
Loans from financial institutions BRI E SR 1,192,857 1,814,936
Other borrowings HAbEK 385,592 287,083
Loans from an intermediate — R AR AR E R
holding company 2,123,810 4,366,378
8,276,984 12,421,744

46. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
reasonably approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in trade and other payables, loans from
financial institutions, loans from other borrowings and loans
from an intermediate holding companies approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

46. TR THZAREBERD

REESFH

AEEeRTAZEmMERERAAEE
BERE -

EHRENG  ReMBRLFEY oK
WER - EHRKFOR - sEARNFIER
LREMEWFRAZEREE  FTAES
REMENFEZEBEE  SRKE
B HERzER R —E T EEk
REAERZ AR BERAKEERS -
TEHARAEIAREHMLE -
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46.

47.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits and interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables, other receivables, trade payables and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings).

47. e AR EIEEERBER

(%)
LRI

AEEEEG TSN EES 7 AT E
EAREEAFBAERGFEZEGAR

TRETEMERMEERF TR IS
AN AREZBRBEANEN (BVZ B ER
ZEE)HNEAEAREY 2 HERE
JAE_ o

Increase Decrease

in basis in profit

points before tax

RRBEAT

HEEEH R

$’000

T
31 December 2018 —N\F+—A=+—H 100 (2,137)
31 December 2017 —E—+tF+=-A=+—H 100 (4,079)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
year and had applied the exposure to interest rate risk to bank
loans in existence at that date. The estimated percentage increase
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the year until the end of the next
reporting period.

LBRES T REFNEEHRFER
EACE A - 3 I =R R B A R FE AR N 5%
HEFEZRITER - BEHE8ME S
EEBBYHMNERNFNERE TEHREH
R BIBAREE E) 2 7T -
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

Had the disposal of Wanda Australia CP Group and Wanda
International Group been completed during the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group’s business would be principally
conducted in RMB and US$. The functional currencies of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC and the USA are RMB and
USS$, respectively, and these subsidiaries do not have significant
monetary assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than
their respective functional currencies. The functional currency of
the Group’s other subsidiaries is the Hong Kong dollar. The Group
also have monetary assets or liabilities denominated in EUR, GBP
and AUD.

The Company is exposed to currency risk primarily through
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, prepayments and other receivables, trade and other
payables, current taxation, loans from financial institutions, loans
from an intermediate holding company and amounts due from
subsidiaries that are denominated in GBP, EUR, US$, AUD and
RMB.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange
rates on the Group’s profit before tax and the Group’s equity.

47.

TRIEREE R B REER

(#)
N e )
TEIRAEE  BRBEARFIRAEE

RN RE AR ER AR AT
B2 BB -

Increase/
(decrease) Increase/
in foreign (decrease) Increase/
exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity*
RRE A1
E= R F i
EF(TH) &4, CR2) g, R *
% $°000 $°000
Fr Frx
2018 —B-N\F
If the Hong Kong dollar fin] 78 T H BT B2 (B
weakens against EUR 1 (653) (653)
If the Hong Kong dollar fini 78 7T 5 BT IS B
strengthens against EUR (1) 653 653
If the Hong Kong dollar i 78 T SR EE R (B
weakens against GBP 1 5,430 5,430
If the Hong Kong dollar fin] 78 T H, SR EE 1L E
strengthens against GBP (1) (5,430) (5,430)
If the Hong Kong dollar i 7T 3 =TTz B
weakens against US$ 1 (41,893) (41,893)
If the Hong Kong dollar i BT W R T A
strengthens against US$ (1) 41,893 41,893
If the Hong Kong dollar fis 7T iRt (B
weakens against AUD 1 5,895 5,895
If the Hong Kong dollar finf 785 7T SR T I B
strengthens against AUD (1) (5,895) (5,895)
If the Hong Kong dollar BT ARBRE
weakens against RMB 1 15,235 15,235
If the Hong Kong dollar fin 75 T H A R IR E
strengthens against RMB (1) (15,235) (15,235)
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  47. £l E [ EIE B EREER

AND POLICIES (continuea) (#%&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SNE LR (4%)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) Increase/
foreign exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity”
BRAAT
e ) e
EAH (TR 2, Ci ) &, O ) *
% $'000 $'000
T F7T
2017 —T—+F
If the Hong Kong dollar i B 7T W B T B2 (B
weakens against EUR 1 (681) (681)
If the Hong Kong dollar fin] 78 T H BT B
strengthens against EUR (1) 681 681
If the Hong Kong dollar i 788 7T S SR EE R (B
weakens against GBP 1 (12,891) (12,891)
If the Hong Kong dollar il 78 7T 4 SR BB (E
strengthens against GBP (1) 12,891 12,891
If the Hong Kong dollar WS 7T i ETTizE
weakens against US$ 1 (33,051) (33,051)
If the Hong Kong dollar fin 78 7T 5, 5 T IE B
strengthens against US$ (1) 33,051 33,051
If the Hong Kong dollar fin 75 T H SR TTEZ B
weakens against AUD 1 (99,095) (99,095)
If the Hong Kong dollar fir 7T BT IEE
strengthens against AUD (1) 99,095 99,095
If the Hong Kong dollar BT ARBRE
weakens against RMB (&%)
(restated) 1 7,380 7,380
If the Hong Kong dollar iP5 T H A R IEE
strengthens against RMB ¢ =l
(restated) (1) (7,380) (7,380)
* Excluding retained earnings * NEERE R
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk. The extent of the
Group’s credit exposure is represented by the aggregate balance
of cash at banks, restricted bank deposits, trade receivables,
prepayments and other receivables.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure

47. e AR EIEEERBER

(%)
EEEE

AEEYBEMEHEERR - NEE
ZEERBRS MRITHEE - XRHIRTT
FHARE 5 BBEFIRE - BAKERE
BN IR 2 FERRARER o

R-E-—NF+ZA=+—H2Z
BEER KR FLEMRER

TEREIVRBEAEEEERRLEER
i B E E (BRIEE M E R AT E B AR
HTNERAREES 1 2180 TRVER) -
FPRZZE—NE+-_A=+—HHEL
BERIBEGEHZEEEZREREER

%o 25 e @ MAREBMEERKR®E

=

to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts. BERMBEREOEERMR
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188
BHEE
B8 FERHEEFSR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
RN F2RE HEIMER EH (@03
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr T T T
Trade receivables* B S ENG A - - - 321,316 321,316
Financial assets included in st ATBRFUE K
prepayments and other Hi Il E0E
receivables — Normal** ZERMEE—EE"™ 1,769,906 - - - 1,769,906
Pledged deposits [REwrEE
— Not yet past due — MBI 5,002 - - - 5,002
Cash and cash equivalents R KRESEY
— Not yet past due — [HABE 2,741,296 - - - 2,741,296
4,516,204 — — 321,316 4,837,520
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  47. £l E [ EIE B EREER

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018 (Continued)

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

- The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are
not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to
be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The extent of the Group’s credit exposure is represented by the
aggregate balance of cash at banks, restricted bank deposits,
trade receivables and other receivables.

For deposits at banks, deposits are only placed with reputable
banks.

For the trade receivables arising from the sale of properties, the
Group manages the credit risk by fully receiving cash before
delivery of properties. The Group has set out policies to ensure
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group
also reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable balance to ensure that adequate provisions
for impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial position after deducting
any impairment allowance.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017 (Continued)

In addition, the Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees to secure
obligations of such purchasers for repayments. Detailed disclosure
of these guarantees is set out in note 43. Except for these financial
guarantees by the Group as set out in note 43, the Group does not
provide guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of each reporting period is disclosed in note
43.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables and other receivables
are set out in notes 24 and 25, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and other
loans.

47. e AR EIEEERBER

(%)

R-Z—tF+ZA=+—HZ
BRe Rk E)

AN AEESETYREMERTH
RITRE - WREERUMESZFER
BRETZER - AERSERFA
WERHNMIFEAS ° B T RMIFE 43 FTEIA
SEFRM ZZEMBER - AEEL
BERHEERMEASBEEHEERR
REREHR - BZEFVBEREREL
= (= B R TR HTE 43 (E I EE -

BRAAEERE S R IE & b Uk
HES|IBZZERKR ZFHS(LHEES
R FE24 K2 25 ©

RBEEER

AEEFERERERDHESHE LA
REESHERZAR - ZTAERA
SECEMTAREREE (WEHRW
FOR) Z2|H B AR TBHIE 2R IR E R

=
B

AEEZEEREAERRITERRE
fthERAERE & R HEEERE R 2
FEEJZEH% °
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  47. £l E [ EIE B EREER

AND POLICIES (continuea) (#%&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REIEEREREE)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end RREHR - NEBERBFTOARITE
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted NRzemBEZHBHBEREAT :

payments, is as follows:

2018
—B-N\E
Less than
1 year or 1to2 2to5 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FAR
REX —EWE MZRE BREF @st
$°000 $°000 $000 $°000 $°000
T T T T T
Loans from financial CRIEEE T
institutions 106,268 152,750 1,125,680 - 1,384,698
Other borrowings HfER 12,821 447,325 - - 460,146
Loans from an intermediate  — &1 F R 7]
holding company = 1,508,487 678,321 - - 2,186,808
Trade payables and BIRENFIER
other payables H A e 5018 4,574,725 - - - 4,574,725
6,202,301 1,278,396 1,125,680 - 8,606,377
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  47. £l E [ EIE B EREER

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

(%)

RBETERE#E)

2017
—TtE
Less than
1 year or 1to2 2t05 Over
on demand years years 5 years Total
—FAK
RER —EmMF MERE HBiRhE st
$000 $:000 $:000 $:000 $000
T T T T T
Loans from financial T RIEEE R
institutions 254,736 115,121 1,713,837 — 2,088,694
Other borrowings HAOEFR 243,855 75,778 = = 319,633
Loans from an intermediate  — &1 REHEAL A A)
holding company g3 3,789,934 68,095 689,834 = 4,547 863
Trade payables and B IRENFIER
other payables H b fE1T 518
(restated) (EE5) 5,953,346 = = = 5,953,346
10,241,871 258,994 2,403,671 — 12,904,536
Capital management ERER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

AEREAEE 2 TZARA/RERE
BREEEELE I RERRIEZ
BERLEE  UXFHEEBRBERER
ReEBEE-

AEBEEEEEARE  WIRKHEEBR
B LERAEECRRSHBIELFE -
RERIFABEARE  AEEXEH
ERRFKE - MRREREE A H
TTH D - NAFEEYENERNEERE
12 BRIEFIELESD -
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio and a debt-to-
asset ratio. The gearing ratio is defined as net debt divided by
total equity plus net debt. Net debt comprise loans from financial
institutions, including current and non-current portions, other
borrowings and loans from an intermediate holding company, less
cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. The debt-to-
asset ratio is total liabilities net of advances from customers divided
by total assets. The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting
period was as follows:

47. e AR EIEEERBER

(#)
BEREE (&)

in@iﬁﬁﬁﬁsﬁﬁtt%&ﬁf@ﬁﬁé

LREITER - ERBBELERERR/MN
,\%ﬂ'&%ﬁ[ﬁ%u RREDRNBEFEE - AF
FHEERSRBEER(ERAMEIE
BIEEE D) ~ HMfERK - —REPREERA
AEFRREE RS FEY REERTF
R BERHEELERALEERES
BRGAREE - RBREMRZERE
BRI

2018 2017

—E-N\E —EF—+tF

$°000 $°000

F T+t

(Restated)

(#e&E5)

Loans from financial institutions T RIEEE K 1,192,857 1,814,936

Other borrowings HAbER 385,592 287,083
Loans from an intermediate holding —MAFEERARER

company 2,123,810 4,366,378

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeRREEEY (2,741,296) (2,398,099)

Pledged deposits BT (5,002) (202,833)

Net debt BEFH 955,961 3,867,465

Total equity B 3,207,391 3,355,723

Total equity plus net debt RS INEESE 4,163,352 7,223,188

Gearing ratio BARBELE 22.96% 53.54%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The debt-to-asset ratio as at the end of the reporting period was
as follows:

47.

TRIEREE R B REER

(%)
BEXEE @)

RIBEMRZEBHEELRMT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
$’000 $'000
Fx Tt
(Restated)
(&E5)
Total liabilities waE 9,126,040 16,369,499
Less: Advances from customers B BEER (63,974) (67,945)
9,062,066 16,301,554
Total assets BEE 12,333,431 19,725,222
Debt-to-asset ratio BEHEELE 73.48% 82.64%
=& VA
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 48. SREHIREE
There are no events after the reporting period which should be T 5% 5 B 75 S 3k Bt B HA A N R 28 T 4%
disclosed till the date these financial statements were approved. B EHEREIR o
= e
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 49, Lt ERE 5

As stated in note 2, comparative figures have been restated to
reflect the effects of the business combination under common
control and certain comparatives figures have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

HINMT 2Pl - LB FEEIIAR
BRNFE—ZEH T2 EXBEH 2 TE &
ETHBRBFEENDBUNTAAFE
Z2FHR -
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  50. &XA B BF #AR R 3R
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

R|BERR - KRB BARKRE FHL0

294 Wanda Hotel Development Company Limited
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Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
$°000 $'000
T tr
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB MEE 468 1,043
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR 2 HE 1,781,782 1,023,782
Loans to subsidiaries BTHBEARZER 719,476 718,006
Total non-current assets IEmEN B ERE 2,501,726 1,742,831
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables HAOfEYFIR 843,322 60,993
Loans to subsidiaries BTHBRARIZER 438,655 5,151,476
Amounts due from an intermediate JE U — fiE PR I FE AR A B F0R
holding company 1,871 —
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 312,158 22,359
Total current assets BN EERE 1,596,006 5,234,828
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Other payables H e 3RIE 4,576 1,652,389
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B R R 508 11 —
Amounts due to an intermediate FEA — R R IR A B 508
holding company \ 179,860 —
Loans from an intermediate — R AR A R E R
holding company 1,380,150 2,476,292
Interest payable to an intermediate FES — AR AR A Bl H) S
holding company 8,742 441,149
Total current liabilities mE B EARE 1,573,339 4,569,830
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFRE 22,667 664,998
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERARBERE
LIABILITIES 2,524,393 2,407,829
Net assets BEFE 2,524,393 2,407,829
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners BAREE AELER
of the parent
Share capital N 469,735 469,735
Reserves (note) fa (B aE) 2,054,658 1,938,094
Total equity B 2,524,393 2,407,829
Ding Benxi Ning Qifeng
TZ85 BHIE
Chairman Executive Director
e HITER
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50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  50. XA BB #AR R FR ()

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: =T -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARREBRENT :
Share Special Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R4 E FRIEE ey wEr
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Frx Fr Frx Fr
At 1 January 2017 R-_ZT—+tF—H—H 1,935,266 127,961 (114,716) 1,948,511
Loss for the year and total REFBER
comprehensive loss for REFEHEEBRERE
the year — — (10,417) (10,417)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
and 1 January 2018 +=-—A=+—H
—T—)\%—A—H 1,935,266 127,961 (125,133) 1,938,094
Gain for the year and total NEE W K
comprehensive income NEE2E N REE
for the year — — 116,564 116,564
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\F
+=A=+—8 1,035,266 127,961 (8,569) 2,054,658

51. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 51, #L /8B 3R%

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue PBEBRER_E—NF=ZA=-_+HKE
by the board of directors on 20 March 2019. EEHE R ETIE -

BEEERRARAT 295
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Financial Summary

BITEREE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—HLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mFE —F-AfF —TRF —FtFf ZB-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET THETT FHET FET THERT
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =51) (& =51)

RESULTS ES

Continuing operations BERSEER
Revenue Wias 185,849 2,078,406 428,512 656,380 1,019,791

Profit/(loss) before tax from — FHELAEER 2

continuing operations B ATRF (B518) (46,405) 1,409,045 182,980 (88,244) (84,391)
Income tax credit/(expenses) FHERLER 2
from continuing operations ~ Fr3Fi#E % (BsZ) 51,902 (608,659) (134,957) (186,326) 17,853

Profit/(loss) for the year from 15 BEE %R 2
continuing operations AERLHF/ (E18) 5,497 800,386 48,023 (274,570) (66,538)

Discontinued operations  #& I &% ¥3%
Profit/(loss) for the year from 4 IFRE 2

discontinued operations AEZHF (EE) (122,591) (821,218) 59,087 (379,669) 898,880
Profit/(loss) for the year REZHHN,/ (EE) (117,094) (20,832) 107,110 (654,239) 832,342

Profit/(loss) attributable to & AEIHEE A

owners of the parent FE(bER,/ (EE) (176,026) (262,693) (29,622) (285,438) 766,716
Non-controlling interests et 58,932 241,861 136,732 (368,801) 65,626
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERF,/ (E18) (117,094) (20,832) 107,110 (654,239) 832,342
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Financial Summary

YRS

At 31 December
R+=H=+—-H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mFE —F-AfF —TRF —FtFf ZB-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET THETT FHET FET THERT
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =51) (& =51)

ASSETS and LIABILITIES ¥ERERE

Total assets BEE 12,184,402 15,408,014 16,871,801 19,725,222 12,333,431
Total liabilities BaE 8,706,053 12,508,887 13,928,608 16,369,499 9,126,040
Net assets BEFE 3,478,349 2,899,127 2,943,193 3,355,723 3,207,391

Equity attributable to owners & A BB A

of the parent FEfh R 2,769,147 2,188,931 2,009,382 2,420,504 2,220,090
Non-controlling interests it 709,202 710,196 933,811 935,219 987,301
Total equity RS 3,478,349 2,899,127 2,943,193 3,355,723 3,207,391
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Property Portfolio
MBS

1. MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 1. FEEEYE

Expected
Stage of date of Gross Group’s
Location Intended use  completion completion Site area floor area interest
et REE
B RERZ % TREER %“ZIRH HEEE EEmEE MR
(sa.m.) (sa.m.) (%)
(FHK) (FHK)
400 East Waterside Drive, Residential Under 2020 4,838 176,000 54%
Chicago, lllinois, 60601 and commercial  development —ZE=ET4F
USA EEREE ERT
2. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 2. FESRIYE
Gross Group’s
Location Existing use floor area interest
rEE
& BRAZE EEEE ARz
(sa.m) (%)
(%)
Hengli City Residential and 1,452 50.35%
No. 128 Wusi Road commercial
Gulou District EEREE
Fuzhou City, Fujian
R M T
wiER
FPUEE 128 5%
18 735k
Site P05, north to Huan Cheng Nan Road Residential and 14,602 51%
No. 1, Guilin, commercial
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, FEREFE
the PRC
H B E AL TR B R &
AT IR R — B
LAk P05 th 38
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Property Portfolio
A

3. MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT 3. =EEFEREYE

Gross Group’s Term of

Location Existing use floor area interest lease
rEH

V& B AR EEME K g HE

(sg.m.) (%)

(FHK)

The Commercial Podium of Commercial 53,387 50.35% Medium
Hengli City [GES AR R
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
Rt M
wiER
FPUEE 128 5%
BHMEETE
Portion of the Carpark of Commercial 10,386 50.35% Medium
Hengli City [GES # A
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
RERM T
SEE
FPYEE 1285%
BAWE D FES
Portion of the Office of Commercial 11,192 50.35% Medium
Hengli City GES R Hj
No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
fRERM T
g
F UL 128 5%
EARBIHAE

The Shopping Mall of Commercial 152,440 51% Medium
Site P05, north to [GES HR A
Huan Cheng Nan Road

No. 1, Guilin, Guangxi Zhuang

Autonomous Region, the PRC

H Bl ERLIE 8RR

TR BRI Y — B

LAJE PO5 387535
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Property Portfolio
MBS

No. 128 Wusi Road
Gulou District
Fuzhou City, Fujian
BERIMNT

iE R

F UL 128 5%
(EWAEIRIL: /N
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4. MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWN USE 4. FEFFERAYZE
Gross Group’s
Location Existing use floor area interest
rEH
A= HRAZE EEEE ARz
(sg.m.) (%)
(FFFK)

40/F the office of Office 981 50.35%

Hengli City WRE






